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We're driving the
transformation of our
industry to meet the
challenges of the future

ABOUT US
—

Balfour Beatty is a leading international infrastructure group ,
with 26,000 employees driving the delivery of powerful new . 2040

\mbitions

solutions, shaping thinking, creating skylines and inspiring a new
generation of talent to be the change-makers of tomorrow.

We finance, dg\{elop, build, maintain and operate .the mcreasmgly Find out more at
complex and critical infrastructure that supports national economies balfourbeatty.com
and deliver projects at the heart of local communities.

O. Magic
Moments

During 2020, our people and partners worked hard

to keep the wheels of the economy turning, READ ABOUT OUR
transport networks moving, communities CULTURAL
connected and essential services running. FRAMEWORK
You'll find photos of our employees’ magic INSIDE

moments throughout the report or by visiting:

instagram.com/balfourbeatty

Front cover: Katerina
Itopoulou, Project Engineer.
Ealing Common Depot track
renewal, London


http://instagram.com/balfourbeatty
http://balfourbeatty.com

OUR CULTURAL FRAMEWORK
]

Our refreshed cultural framework, launched in December 2020, provides a simple
and clear view of our purpose, values and behaviours under our Build to Last strategy.
The framework reflects who we are now as an international group, who we want to
be, what we value and what drives the way we work; always Lean, Expert, Trusted

and Safe, and — if we are to remain a market leader — always Sustainable.

Our purpose — explains the clear and enduring reason our business exists

Building New Futures

We are leading the transformation of our industry to meet the challenges of the future. \We harness
the power of digital and cutting-edge innovation to redefine the possible and drive productivity. Trusted
by customers to deliver sustainable solutions and strengthen communities we leave a legacy we are
proud of. Always safe. Always reliable. Always improving lives.

We support each other to deliver and succeed, placing equal value on all perspectives by embracing

diversity and inclusion. Together we deliver powerful new solutions, collaborating with governments,
our customers and partners to shape thinking, create skylines and inspire a new generation of talent

to be the change-makers of tomorrow. Balfour Beatty: Building New Futures.
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More about
our business
model

Our strategy - is the day-to-day guide we
use to uphold our purpose

Build to Last

3\\.\‘(‘ to Las’

Build to Last is our strategy for continuous improvement. EXHER

It's fundamental to how we're building a market leading Trusted

Balfour Beatty for the next 100 years. It's our platform Safe

for sustainable growth, productivity, inclusive talent — all Sustainable

ensuring the best capability to deliver on our promises 5 &
. . 0// - \“‘

and our enduring commitment to Zero Harm. 0'1,,9 New ™

[3]p12

More about
our strategy

Our values - the way we do business. The norms and beliefs that drive
the way we work and how we measure ourselves

SUSTAINABLE

[3]p12

More about
our values

Our behaviours - reflect the things we will do to consistently deliver
to the standard set out in our values

p46

More about
building a
positive culture



IN THIS REPORT
—

In the following sections, discover Balfour Beatty’s approach to developing
and leveraging its capabilities and how the Group is creating value for all
stakeholders through continuous improvement as well as encouraging
and supporting employees to develop a positive culture.

Leading in
our markets

We discuss macro trends and opportunities in our
chosen markets, the way we operate and how we
create value for all our stakeholders as well as the
cutting edge solutions we are leveraging to meet
our customers’ challenges.

p16 Market review
p22 Business model
p24 Stakeholder value
p26 Innovation

@ ABOVE
UK: Ealing Common Depot track renewal, Transport for London

Expert
capabilities

Our three operating divisions outline their key
achievements throughout 2020 and how they

are delivering our Build to Last strategy. We also
look at our Investments portfolio in more detail.

p32 Construction Services
p39 Support Services
p42 Infrastructure Investments

p44 Directors’ valuation of the Investments portfolio

@ ABOVE

Building a
positive culture

Our disciplined contracting is further strengthened by our
approach to building the right culture — where people are
encouraged and supported to always do the right thing,
achieve high performance and make a positive difference,

every day.

p48 Health, safety and wellbeing
p52 Business integrity

p55 Sustainability

p71 Our people

p88 Risk management

@ ABOVE
US: Renovation of Hoover High School, San Diego Unified School District



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONTENTS ‘

The Group has presented financial performance measures which are
considered most relevant to the Group and used to manage the Group’s
performance. An explanation of these measures and appropriate
reconciliations to statutory measures are provided on pages 12 and 13.
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BALFOUR BEATTY AT A GLANCE

International

infrastructure experts

Balfour Beatty is driving the transformation of the construction and
infrastructure industry to meet the challenges of the future.

Group highlights

UNDERLYING REVENUE'

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

£8.6bn 26,000

ORDER BOOK!

United Kingdom

£9.1bn

UNDERLYING PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

£36m

DIRECTORS’ VALUATION
INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO

£1.09bn

@ United States

£5.2bn

@ Hong Kong

£2.1bn

£16.4bn

GROUP ORDER BOOK

p/9

Focused on growing markets

The challenge of building a new and sustainable future requires an industrial transformation. We are leading the way,
working together with governments, our customers and partners to reshape thinking, reinvent skylines and strengthen
local communities. Together we deliver powerful new solutions improving lives, leaving a legacy we are proud of and

inspiring the change-makers of tomorrow.

PROJECTED GROWTH OF BALFOUR BEATTY'S CHOSEN MARKETS

United Kingdom
2024

2019 £32.0bn

Source: Infrastructure and public construction;
Construction Products Association (Autumn 2020),
BICS Quarterly Briefing (July 2020)

£43.3bn'

2020 £30.5bn +42% |

United States
2024

2019 US$315bn

Source: Infrastructure, buildings and multifamily housing
construction in Balfour Beatty's chosen states; Dodge
Market Forecast (August 2020)

US$324bn

2020 US$264bn SNPXLA

Hong Kong

2024 HK$163bn

2019 HK$143bn

Source: Civils and public and private buildings construction,
Construction Industry Council (April 2020)

2020 HK$155bn

$45%

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates, before non-underlying items.

N
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Our
divisions

Construction
Services

MAGIC MOMENTS '}

Hong Kong: M+ Museum, West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority.
Photo credit: Samson Tse

Support
Services

MAGIC MOMENTS

UK: Love Lane Trams Track Renewal,
Transport for London.
Photo credit: Owen Stratford

Infrastructure
Investments

US: Los Angeles Airport Automated
People Mover, Los Angeles International
Airport. Photo credit: Paul England

Expert
capabilities
Balfour Beatty benefits
significantly from a broad set

of complementary capabilities
across the Group.

> Our Construction Services
businesses operate across
infrastructure and buildings
markets in the UK, the US and
in joint venture in Hong Kong

> Their capabilities include civil
engineering, building, ground
engineering, M&E, refurbishment,
fit-out and rail engineering

> Our Support Services
businesses operate principally
in the UK, designing,
upgrading, managing and
maintaining critical national
infrastructure

> Their capabilities span water,
gas and electricity networks,
rail and highways

> Our Infrastructure Investments
business develops and
finances both public and
private infrastructure projects
in the UK and the US

> It operates and maintains
infrastructure projects and a
portfolio of military housing and
student accommodation assets

Selective
bidding for
contracts

Our stringent gated lifecycle
process allows us to carefully
control our project portfolio on
an ongoing basis.

ORDER BOOK'

£13.7bn

ORDER BOOK'

$£2.7bn

DIRECTORS’ VALUATION

£1.09bn

Financial
performance

UNDERLYING REVENUE'

£6,964m

UNDERLYING PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£29m

STATUTORY PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£41m

UNDERLYING REVENUE'

£1,067m

UNDERLYING PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£46m

STATUTORY PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£50m

UNDERLYING REVENUE'

£556m

UNDERLYING PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

£20m

STATUTORY PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

£15m

1 Including share of joint
ventures and associates,
before non-underlying items.

[2]p32

p39
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OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Our response
to COVID-19

Our experts have been helping keep the wheels of the economy turning, transport networks
moving, communities connected and essential services running during COVID-19.

Whilst far reaching in its impact on the
Group’s operations, the COVID-19 pandemic
has proven the resilience of Balfour Beatty's
Build to Last strategy.

Throughout the pandemic we have
protected our capabilities and strengths
and balanced the needs of all

our stakeholders.

Despite the initial disruption, 95% of our sites
were open by the end of June with the Group
safely executing projects and contracts for its
customers. Through the second half of the

year, Balfour Beatty's operations and productivity
recovered steadily, and today all the Group's sites
and operations are open and operating safely.

Our COVID-19 strategy

Across its US, UK and Hong Kong
operations, the Group reacted swiftly
and decisively to COVID-19 with a clear
strategy to:

%Q@% keep people safe

continue to build and maintain
the infrastructure economies
and the public rely on

keep cash flowing through
the supply chain

support employees, whether
on-site, working remotely
or furloughed

Keeping people safe

The health, safety and wellbeing of all those
who work with and for Balfour Beatty, as well
as the general public, has remained the
Group's priority.

Across the Group, office-based employees
were encouraged to work from home, supported
by the accelerated roll out of Office 365
including the adoption of Microsoft Teams to
conduct virtual video meetings.

In the UK, we supported the Government's
position to allow the construction and
infrastructure industry to continue operating
where it could do so safely. We developed
COVID-19 Site Operating Procedures and these
have been followed by all of our operations.

In the US, we supported the Federal
Government'’s position to classify construction
workers and residential rental industry
professionals as essential workers operating
in critical infrastructure sectors and fully
adhered to COVID-19 regulations from
federal, state and local authorities.

In Hong Kong, our 50:50 joint venture
Gammon adhered to the COVID-19 guidance
set out by the Government's Centre for
Health Protection.

LEADING THE INDUSTRY

Building and
maintaining critical
infrastructure

COVID-19 has brought about a welcome
shift in understanding and recognition of
what we as a society need and rely on: from
the roads, rail network and drivers that
deliver medical supplies to hospitals and
food to supermarket shelves, to the Wi-Fi
and power supplies that have kept
businesses working — and the people which
keep all of this going. This recognition has
been why key worker status was granted to
SO many in our sector.

15

WeTe delighted at the way
Balfour Beatty has responded
to the COVID-19 crisis.

SHESQ Manager, National Grid

)

Balfour Beatty, in collaboration with other Tier One contractors and supply chain
partners, published a COVID-19 industry research report, conducted by Loughborough

University: “COVID-19 and construction: Early lessons for a new normal?” which
explores the industry’s health and safety response to the pandemic and potential
medium to long-term benefits arising from extending and embedding these new
working practices.
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Throughout the pandemic Balfour Beatty
continued to construct and maintain this
critical infrastructure at the backbone of
economies and people’s daily lives as well
as projects at the heart of local communities,
whilst also stepping up to rapidly provide
critical facilities to support the fight
against COVID-19.

In the UK, acting as principal contractor,
Balfour Beatty, along with its local supply
chain, converted Glasgow'’s Scottish Events
Campus into the NHS Louisa Jordan hospital
providing over 1,000 beds for patients requiring
treatment for COVID-19. The team successfully
completed the works in just 20 days.

In the US, the Pavilion at Penn Medicine
project in Pennsylvania opened 120 patient
rooms 15 months ahead of the facility’s planned
opening, with Balfour Beatty employees
working around the clock for 17 days to
deliver 122,000 square feet of space in the
emergency department.

In Hong Kong, Gammon helped fast-track
temporary COVID-19 quarantine facilities

by providing project management and
mechanical, electrical and plumbing services
to construct 110 units at Penny’s Bay in just
64 days. The team completed 95% of all
works using modular integrated construction
methods which reduced the amount of time
the team were required on site.

Read more about how we innovated through the
pandemic in our innovation section on page 29
or visit: bit.ly/bbcovidmicrosite

Keeping cash
flowing through
the supply chain

Ensuring the liquidity of our supply chain
partners who are vital in everything we do,
has never been more important.

Throughout the pandemic Balfour Beatty
worked closely with its supply chain partners
to ensure disruption caused by COVID-19
was minimised.

In the UK, our accounting services centre in
Newcastle is responsible for the processing
of all payments and effectively implemented
its business continuity plan, resulting in an
improvement in the percentage of invoices
paid within 60 days from 89% in the first half
of the year to 91% in the second half of the year.

In the US, the team developed a centralised
supply chain insights resource to provide up to
date prices and availability of key materials and
commodities so that projects could find the
materials they needed quickly from our supply
chain partners to keep projects on programme.

Watch our film which thanks our experts
who have stepped up during COVID-19
bit.ly/bbsteppedup

g == |

Supporting employees

We ensured all of our 26,000 employees, thousands of them site-based and without easy
access to IT, had the latest information on COVID-19 as it became available. We did this

through a range of channels including:

Cascade ‘toolbox talks’

Daily email bulletins
with the latest
COVID-19 news updates

Weekly site poster packs and videos
accessible via QR codes to
communicate safety messages and
updates to site-based employees

A dedicated page on our corporate
website hosting training and guidance
for colleagues who were placed on
furlough leave

Balfour Beatty’s employee engagement
index score saw a significant increase to
75% (2019: 66%).

Through My Contribution, our employee-led
change programme, we launched our
‘Bouncing Back’ campaign which generated
more than 550 ideas from our employees for
how we could bounce back from COVID-19.
Read more on page 28.

In the US, a safety observation app was
utilised enabling employees to access
government checklists and guidance on
outbreak planning, preventative and response
measures, strategies and other best
practices to help evaluate COVID-19

jobsite safety.

Continuing the focus on health and safety,
the Group launched ‘The Big Conversation’ to
connect employees from across the UK, US
and Hong Kong - to encourage open and
honest conversations about health and
safety. More than 300 projects participated
with teams collaborating across the globe.

In the UK, Balfour Beatty continued firm in its
commitment, despite the pandemic, to
developing its future workforce with a 30%
increase in its intake of Graduates,
Apprentices and Trainees in 2020. -

© RIGHT
Laura McWilliams, Superintendent.
Victory Commons 1, Dallas

and site signage using
centrally driven
messaging

Health and wellbeing
webinars and virtual
conferences

A drumbeat of senior management
blogs outlining key developments and
helping to keep employees engaged
and fully informed

A new intranet site to host guidance,
toolkits and FAQs to support line
managers and their teams, which has
received 145,000 visits since launch

Summary

The COVID-19 crisis has had a significant
impact on the construction and infrastructure
industry. But it has also provided an
opportunity to reflect. It will act as an
accelerant to the pace of change in some key
areas. Balfour Beatty will play its significant
part in strengthening and streamlining the
industry to allow it to emerge stronger from
the COVID-19 pandemic.

iafioar Bostly
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zGSCXnCV4Bg
https://interactive.balfourbeatty.com/covid-19/p/1

GROUP CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION

#

Infrastructure
investment will play
a major role in the
global post COVID-19

recovery

Dear shareholder,

In 2015 when | wrote to you for the first time
as Chair of Balfour Beatty, | said that we were
beginning the changes necessary to restore
the business to strength. The Group had
once again presented disappointing financial
results, was plagued with legacy issues and
had fought off a proposed merger with
Carillion, a company which entered liquidation
only three years later in 2018.

Six years on and having announced | will be
stepping down this year, | write for the last
time as your Chair. In doing so, | am able to
reflect on the transformation that the business
has undergone. Today, Balfour Beatty is
focused on growth markets with improved
governance and risk management; we have
driven substantial employee engagement
across the company; dramatically improved
our customer satisfaction score to 95% in
2020; significantly reduced our carbon emissions
and, most importantly, seen a 66% reduction
in our Lost Time Injury Rate — all whilst building
one of the strongest balance sheets in the
sector, including an enviable cash position.
These efforts have not been without recognition,
with Balfour Beatty securing Britain's Most
Admired Company in our sector for the second
consecutive year; an award made even more
notable as it represents the views of our
peers, financial analysts and city commentators.

In my six years as Chair, | have been pleased
to work alongside Leo Quinn and the executive
team. It has been my role to guide, to support,
to offer counsel, to challenge and to encourage.
My time at Balfour Beatty has been in equal
parts, energising and rewarding and | am
immensely proud of what we have achieved
together. | shall leave knowing that the Group
is strong and well-positioned for the world in
which it operates.

Navigating COVID-19

This resilience which has been developed
and embedded over several years, was
thoroughly tested by the unforeseen events
of 2020. Throughout the last twelve months,
our robust processes and the controls developed
under Build to Last have helped Balfour Beatty
to navigate a constantly changing and difficult
environment. | applaud the collective effort of
our 26,000 employees and our supply chain
partners, who have enabled us to continue

to deliver safely for our customers and
communities. Indeed, they have been an
inspiration throughout my tenure, but never
more so than in the last year.

COVID-19 has cast a long financial shadow
over the entire globe. Balfour Beatty has not
been immune because, although we have
kept the majority of our sites and contracts
open and operating safely, in order to support
economies and daily life, COVID-19 impacted
productivity across all our geographies.
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We took decisive action to protect the Group's
financial strength and capabilities to ensure
that, as more normal trading conditions
return, we have the capability and expertise
to deliver on our impressive order book.
Working to balance the needs of all stakeholders,
we cancelled the final 2019 dividend
announced in March 2020 and did not declare
an interim dividend in August 2020. The
Board and Executive Committee volunteered
to take a temporary 20% reduction in salary
to relieve some of the cash flow pressures
and to protect others elsewhere in the
business. This, combined with a range of
other actions including stopping all discretionary
spend, helped us to maintain liquidity — critical
in support of our thousands of supply

chain partners.

Balfour Beatty has weathered many storms
in its 111-year history to emerge stronger.
This period will have been no exception.

As we worked carefully through the challenges
of 2020, our earnings-based businesses
recovered through the second half of the
year. Our order book increased strongly,
driven in part by the UK Government granting
HS2 Notice to Proceed in April. | am proud
that, due to Balfour Beatty's market-leading
position, we and our joint venture partner
VINCI will be helping to deliver such a
transformational scheme to strengthen

our national infrastructure.

Despite delays caused by COVID-19, in the
second half of the year the Group continued
to win significant infrastructure projects
across all its geographies. Key successes
included over £1 billion of work secured on
the Third Runway project at Hong Kong
Airport, the reconstruction and widening of
Oak Hill Parkway, the interstate highway in
the West of Texas in the US, and major
contracts for the M25 and M3 in the UK.
We are optimistic that output will rebound
in 2021 and into 2022.

Now, with our operations seeing a path back
to their performance levels of 2019, and then
beyond, and given the strength of our financial
position at the end of 2020, the Board has
taken the decision to repay the £19 million
claimed in 2020 from the UK Government’s
Job Retention Scheme.

Markets

Governments around the world — and across
our core markets — are taking decisive action
to invest in significant long-term fiscal stimuli
to ignite their economies. That means that
infrastructure investment will rightly play a
major role in the global post-COVID-19
recovery, given its powerful multiplier effect
on jobs and spending. Many of these plans
have a specific focus on sustainable
infrastructure, from which Balfour Beatty

is well-positioned to benefit.



Sustainability

We decided that in 2020 it was timely to set
out a new sustainability strategy. We know
that global construction has a significant
environmental footprint and, therefore, a key
role to play in supporting decarbonisation,
reducing waste and meeting international
commitments on biodiversity. Having
achieved our previous carbon emissions
reduction target ahead of schedule, our new
ambitions include going beyond net zero
carbon by 2040. As part of this, in 2020,

the Group continued to take great strides

in reducing energy and fuel consumption and
emissions. In 2020 our carbon intensity from
our Scope 1 and 2 emissions reduced by
18.8 tonnes of COe/£m revenue, 55% below
our 2010 baseline. We will continue to work
collaboratively with customers, industry and
our supply chain to ensure that we meet our
targets and ambitions.

Health, safety and wellbeing

The health, safety and wellbeing of our
employees remains paramount in all we do.
It is our number one priority.

Notwithstanding COVID-19's impact on
working life and team interactions, continued
improvement in our health and safety practices
was reflected in a reduction in our lost time
injury rate (excluding international joint
ventures) to 0.10, a 66% reduction since
2014. In addition our UK and US employee
survey revealed that 84% of our employees
feel empowered to speak up in the workplace
if they see anything potentially unsafe —
contributing to over 200,000 health and
safety observations made in 2020, including
best practice, that are helping us take action
before incidents happen and ensure that we
continuously improve.

Despite our focus and drive for continuous
health and safety improvement, tragically
four colleagues lost their lives this year while
working at or with Balfour Beatty. Three fatal
incidents occurred in Hong Kong and one in
the UK. Additionally, in the US a member of
our joint venture partner’s workforce was
fatally injured. My heart goes out to their
families, friends and colleagues. We have
learnt from these terrible tragedies.

As we continue to strive for Zero Harm —
meaning no injury, ill health or environmental
incident caused by our work activities — we
launched Balfour Beatty's ‘Big Conversation’
in November. This campaign leveraged our
international footprint with hundreds of our
teams across the UK, US and Hong Kong
connecting and collaborating remotely to share
best practice, experiences and expertise.

The Board

Last year | announced | would be stepping
down from the Board at the 2021 AGM and
the search is progressing for my successor.
The new Chair and the Board will continue
our commitment to building a diverse and
inclusive workforce, attracting talented
people with a broad range of skills and
experience from all backgrounds into our
Group, including the Board. Whilst we have
made good progress over the last few years
all of us recognise that this is a vital area and
one where more needs to be done.

Capital returns

Balfour Beatty has announced a new
sustainable capital allocation framework
which provides a balanced approach to
address the investment needs of the
business, regular dividend payments and
additional returns to shareholders.

The Group's profitability in 2020 was impacted
significantly by COVID-19, but the strength of
its financial position and its future prospects
provides the Board with the confidence to
reinstate the dividend by recommending a
final dividend for 2020 and announce a

£150 million share buyback programme for 2021.

Section 172 statement

The Directors take their responsibilities to
shareholders and stakeholders very seriously.
During 2020, the Board reviewed the Group’s
main stakeholder groups and existing channels
of engagement with each so that their views can
be understood and considered in Board
discussions and decision-making. In addition to
having regard to the interests of the Group's
stakeholders, Directors also consider the impact
of the Group's activities on the communities
within which it operates, the environment and
the Group's reputation. The Directors seek to act
in good faith in the way most likely to promote
the success of the Company for the benefit of its
shareholders in the long term and to act fairly
between all of the Company’s shareholders.
Through the Board and its Committees,
Directors have taken action to promote and
support these objectives across the Group,
details of which can be found th hout this
Annual Report as set out here:

Conclusion

Although 2020 was an unsettling and
incredibly difficult year, it was also one which
demonstrated the immense resilience Balfour
Beatty has developed since the beginning of
Build to Last, in creating a business able to
maintain its disciplines, capability and
financial strength, in a period of challenge,
arguably unprecedented in our lifetimes.

| wish all those who work with and for
Balfour Beatty the very best as the Company
delivers on its undoubted capacity for success
by capitalising on governments’ infrastructure
stimuli in its chosen markets in the next
decade. It has been an honour and a privilege
to play my part in the Company's history —

| will leave confident in the knowledge that
Balfour Beatty has a formidable future ahead.

Philip Aiken AM
Group Chair

9 March 2021

> The Company's purpose, values and
behaviours in the front cover pull out.

> A description of key stakeholder groups and
how the Board has engaged with
stakeholders on pages 113 to 115.

Broader Group engagement with
stakeholders and an assessment of their
priorities relating to sustainability matters
on pages 24 and 25.

The range of activities undertaken across the
Group relating to sustainability matters on
pages 55 to 70.

Details of how high standards of integrity are
maintained on pages 52 to 54.

The proactive and pragmatic approach of the
Group toward risk on pages 88 to 102.

The framework of the Company’s
decision-making on pages 116 to 118.

Details of the Company's governance
processes and practice on pages 105 to 121.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

#

“

Well positioned

financially,

operationally and
culturally to deliver

our goals

Capacity for
enhanced returns

Balfour Beatty’s goal throughout Build to Last
has been to create a sustainable foundation
for its next 100 years. Since 2015, the Group
has continually upgraded its capability, processes
and governance to ensure leadership in its
chosen markets. It has underpinned this with
a culture which encourages every employee
to make a difference, consider all stakeholders
and continually improve performance. At the
end of 2020, the Group formalised its credentials
in a future net zero world with a new
sustainability strategy, Building New Futures.

The best measure of long-term business
resilience is cash performance —and in
delivering another year of positive cash flow
the Group exceeded its external guidance
with £5627 million of average net cash. This
performance was achieved despite the
impact on profit from COVID-19, while
maintaining Balfour Beatty's key strengths
and delivering a record £16.4 billion order
book at year end. With its strong balance
sheet, medium term visibility and market
outlook, the Group now has enhanced
capacity to drive cash generation through
earnings growth and restarting disposals of
Investments assets.

Over the last four years, the Group has
generated sufficient cash flows to pay down
over £430 million of debt and preference

shares, while maintaining its Investments
portfolio at £1.1 billion. Today, Balfour Beatty
is announcing a new capital allocation framework
which provides a balanced approach to
address the investment needs of the business,
regular dividend payments and additional
returns to shareholders. In January 2021,

the Group commenced a share buyback
programme, which is today being increased
to £150 million for 2021.

Supporting stakeholders through
the crisis: maintaining strengths

for the future

The wellbeing and safety of all those who
work for and with Balfour Beatty, and of the
public, remains the Group's priority. Since the
start of the pandemic, Balfour Beatty's focus
has been to manage the rapidly changing
situation in order to balance the needs of its
stakeholders while protecting the Group’s
capability and strength. In achieving this, the
dedication of the Group's employees in
supporting each other and the Group’s
customers has been outstanding. It is in large
part due to them that Balfour Beatty has for
the second year running won the coveted
Britain’s Most Admired Company award for
our sector.

The first decision to minimise the impact of
COVID-19 was keeping the Group's sites
operational in line with government guidance,
where it was safe to do so. Most sites
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remained open for business as employees
and partners continued to execute contracts
for customers safely. At the same time, the
Group maintained liquidity for its supply chain
and put in place extensive support for employees
— whether on-site, working remotely or
furloughed. In achieving this, Build to Last's
investments in upgraded systems, processes
and leadership proved their value as Balfour
Beatty demonstrated resilience against
unforeseeable challenges.

In response to the pandemic, all stakeholders
played their part. Governments provided employee
assistance schemes and tax deferrals. Senior
employees voluntarily took temporary salary
reductions, as did the Group's Board and
Executive Committee. In addition, the final
dividend for 2019 was cancelled.

Between April and October, the Group made
use of the UK Government's Job Retention
Scheme (JRS), and supplemented salaries for
employees placed on the scheme. The scheme
worked effectively as it allowed Balfour
Beatty to retain employees during heightened
uncertainty when sites were closed and to
bring them back as sites re-opened. Given
the strength and resilience of the Group’s
balance sheet, Balfour Beatty fully repaid the
UK taxes it had deferred in 2020 during the
year and will repay the £19 million that had
been claimed under the JRS. In addition,

the Board commenced a share buyback
programme in January 2021 and has
recommended a final dividend for 2020.

Financial summary: maintained

strong cash performance

In 2020, for the fifth year running, the Group
delivered positive cash flow with the year-end
net cash balance at £581 million (2019:

£512 million) and average net cash at

£527 million (2019: £325 million). The strength
of Balfour Beatty's balance sheet provides
the flexibility to make the right long-term
decisions and allowed the Group to repay
US$46 million of its US private placement
notes in March 2020 and fully redeem its
preference shares for £112 million in July 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020,

the Group reported a significant reduction

in profitability due to a combination of the
impact of COVID-19, a reassessment of end
of contract forecasts in Construction Services
and the decision to defer any disposals from
Infrastructure Investments given prevailing
market conditions. For the first half of the
year, the Group reported a loss from
operations, then partially recovered in

the second half of the year with all
segments recording a profit resulting in a
full year underlying profit from operations

of £51 million (2019: £221 million).



#

MAGIC MOMENTS

Operations: impact of COVID-19
All the Group's businesses were impacted by
COVID-19, although this varied according to
geographic and operational footprint.

For the full year, UK Construction recorded
an underlying loss as site closures, lower
productivity, additional operating costs and
lengthening site programmes triggered a
reassessment of the Group's contract end
forecast positions. After adjusting for the
decision to repay the UK Job Retention
Scheme, UK Construction did return to
profitability in the second half of the year but
specific sectors, such as aviation, have seen
a material slowdown throughout the year. US
Construction was also negatively impacted
by COVID-19 as all geographies were
affected, most notably Washington State
where sites were closed in the second
quarter and in Florida where the hospitality
sector was materially impacted throughout
the year.

At Gammon both revenue and profit
increased in the year as the impact of
COVID-19 in Hong Kong has been lower than
in the UK and US, in part due to Hong Kong's
experiences from previous viruses such as
SARS. Given the timing of the spread of
COVID-19, the Group was able to take
learnings from Gammon, such as working
safely and efficiently in enclosed spaces
whilst maintaining social distancing, then
apply them across the rest of the Group.

In Support Services, the business has been
resilient with the Group’s contracts generally
designated as critical infrastructure and as
such profit was broadly in line with the prior
year. The Group was able to accelerate road
and rail maintenance programmes for some
customers due to lower volumes of traffic in
the year, but this was offset by general
disruption on projects and other customers
reducing maintenance expenditure given the
economic uncertainty.

Board of Directors: Group

Chair succession

Having been the Group Chair since 2015, Philip
Aiken notified the Board of Directors of his
intention to step down at the next Annual
General Meeting in May 2021. The Board
would like to thank Philip for his tremendous
leadership and stewardship of the business
during the transformation of Balfour Beatty.
The Nomination Committee is overseeing the
externally supported search for a successor.

Order book: clear visibility over
the medium term

The Group’s order book at year end increased
by 15% to £16.4 billion (2019: £14.3 billion).
The order book now stands at around two years
of revenue, providing clear medium-term
visibility. The increase in 2020 was due to
the addition of over £3 billion of contracts
following the UK Government issuing Notice

to Proceed on HS2 in April, including Balfour
Beatty's largest ever contract for the Area
North main civils work. Additionally, Gammon,
the Group's 50:50 joint venture based in
Hong Kong, won its largest ever contract
with, in total, c¢. HK$20 billion worth of
contracts from the Hong Kong Airport
Authority — a significant existing customer.

Over the last three years, the order book has
increased approximately 45%, driven by
winning large public sector infrastructure
projects in the UK, US and Hong Kong. In
addition, the quality of the order book continues
to improve. At year end, almost 90% of the
UK Construction order book is with public or
regulated customers and 80% is under target
cost or cost reimbursable contracts (including
the recent HS2 contracts). In the US, where
the percentage of private customers is higher
in the Buildings business, price risk is managed
through construction management contracts.
The increase in total order book value
coupled with the shift towards lower risk
contracts provides increasing confidence that
the Group will deliver profitable managed
growth on a sustainable basis.

Infrastructure: global fiscal stimuli
In November, the UK Government released
details of its five-year plan, the National
Infrastructure Strategy (NIS), to deploy
infrastructure investment to drive economic
recovery, level up and meet the UK's net zero
emissions target by 2050. The £640 billion of
funding announced for developments in
roads, railways, power networks, schools,
hospitals and telecommunications represents
an increase of around £100 billion compared
to previously announced plans.

In January 2021, Balfour Beatty was selected
as one of 30 companies working in a new
partnership with the UK Government to steer
the COVID-19 economic recovery as part of
the Build Back Better Business Council.

The council will focus on innovation,
infrastructure and skills, all key areas of
focus for Balfour Beatty.

In the US, there is strong bipartisan support
for accelerated infrastructure investment.
The new President has announced a Build
Back Better recovery plan proposing
significant investment in infrastructure.
Although nationwide forecasts show a
decline in the overall construction market,
Balfour Beatty is positioned in regions that
are expected to perform better than the
national forecast as demographic shifts
continue to favour the Group's chosen states
(Southern Smile) in the medium term.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

#

Gammon has a material share of the Hong
Kong market, which has historically benefited
from significant public sector investment.
This appears set to continue with the
Government'’s recently announced ambition
in its February 2021 budget to increase
spend materially over the medium term.

Build to Last: Lean, Expert, Trusted,

Safe, Sustainable

Since 2015, the Group’s Build to Last
strategy has created a self-help culture based
on four values: Lean, Expert, Trusted, Safe.
The Group's progress is measured using cash
flow and profit from operations, employee
engagement, customer satisfaction and Zero
Harm, respectively. In 2020, a fifth value was
added to this framework — Sustainable,
measured by CO, emissions.

Lean: The disciplines learnt during Build to
Last have served the Group well in ensuring
effective and efficient operations. In 2020,
underlying net operating expenses reduced
further to £226 million (2019: £267 million) —
a reduction of more than 50% since the start
of Build to Last (2014: £470 million, adjusted
for foreign exchange movements).

The Group's successful focus on cash
generation is evidenced by average net cash
in 2020 at £627 million — ahead of previous
guidance and over 60% higher than the prior
year (2019: £325 million). As a key part of its
strategy to create value by achieving market
leadership, the Group has invested over
£600 million since 2015 in equity assets
(Infrastructure Investments), capex (IT,

plant and fleet) and capability (training

and development).

These disciplines in cash management and
cost efficiencies have been fundamental to
the Group's financial transformation and
today’s announcement of its new capital
allocation framework.

Expert: Customers buy Balfour Beatty's
services due to the expert capabilities of

the Group and its employees. The key metric
for Expert is employee engagement, and the
challenges presented by COVID-19 have made
this even more important. It is a powerful
testament to the progress made since 2015
that employee engagement in the October 2020
survey rose to 75% (2019: 66%; 2015: 60%).
The survey provides a clear tracker of progress
in creating the kind of company where people
want to build long-term fulfilling careers,
which is of key importance given the strong
order book and growth in chosen markets.
The survey results are consistent with the
reduction in the Group’s voluntary attrition
rate in the UK, with the twelve-month rolling
average now at 10% (2019: 11%, 2014: 16%).

For the second year running, Balfour Beatty
secured the accolade of Britain's Most Admired
Company in the Heavy Construction category
of the longest running annual survey of
corporate reputation in the UK. Organised by
leading specialists and academic partners,
the awards represent a peer-review, considering
views from board-level representatives,
financial analysts and city commentators to
identify Britain’s best public companies and
leading employers across 25 sectors. Balfour
Beatty was scored against 13 criteria points,
securing the highest marks in six categories.
The Group was praised for its quality of
products and services, long-term value
potential, competitiveness and quality of
marketing as well as its commitment to
diversity & inclusion, inspirational leadership
and driving forward world-class projects for
multinational customers.

In October, Balfour Beatty signed an open
letter to Audeliss and INvolve committing to
engaging and measuring long-term actions
for black inclusion within its business. This
UK based initiative saw Balfour Beatty become
the first in its industry to commit to engaging
and measuring long-term actions for black
inclusion. This builds on the Group's 2018
Diversity and Inclusion strategy, with initiatives
such as the reverse mentoring programme,
focus groups with BAME colleagues, and
Affinity Networks for under-represented
groups raising awareness for diverse
perspectives and experiences within

the business.

In October, the Group announced a 30% rise
in its UK graduate intake in 2020 compared to
2019, which contributed to an increase in the
total percentage of Balfour Beatty's UK
workforce in ‘earn & learn’ positions at year
end t0 6.0% (2019: 5.4%). This commitment
is consistent with Balfour Beatty placing as
the sixth most desirable company that
students aspire to work for once they have
completed their studies. More than 15,000
UK-based university students and graduates
were surveyed, with Balfour Beatty the only
construction and infrastructure company
placed in the league table.

During the year, the Group received its 6,000th
idea from its My Contribution programme
which crowd sources ideas from employees
who want to bring about positive business
change. The milestone idea was from the
HS2 team to improve the efficiency of concrete
deliveries via innovative new technology.

Trusted: Balfour Beatty is trusted to “do what
we say we will do” and is measured on this
metric by customer satisfaction. In the year,
around 2,000 customer satisfaction reviews
were carried out with the Group customer
satisfaction score at 95% (2019: 94%; 2014:
77%). The Group continues to focus on
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active risk management underpinning strict
adherence to the Build to Last values with
investment in IT-based processes and controls.
These include the Gated Business Lifecycle
process, the Digital Briefcase and Project on
a Page. Together, these provide management
with a clear, consistent line of sight on all
stages of work being bid and delivered,
together with key tools for managing
commercial risk and project execution.

The Group has achieved important successes
in playing its part in the global response to
COVID-19 through the determination and
dedication of its workforce. Acting as
principal contractor, Balfour Beatty converted
Glasgow's Scottish Events Campus (SEC)
into the NHS Louisa Jordan hospital providing
over 1,000 beds for patients requiring treatment
for COVID-19. In Pennsylvania, the Pavilion at
Penn Medicine project opened 120 patient
rooms 15 months ahead of the facility’s planned
opening, with Balfour Beatty employees
working around the clock for 17 days to
deliver 122,000 square feet of space in the
emergency department. In Hong Kong,
Gammon helped fast-track temporary
COVID-19 quarantine facilities by providing
project management and mechanical, electrical
and plumbing services to construct 110 units
at Penny's Bay in just 64 days.

In June 2019, allegations about the handling
of certain work orders were publicised about
a number of US military bases managed by
Balfour Beatty Communities (BBC).
Subsequently, the US Department of Justice
(DoJ) commenced an investigation into the
allegations of false claims. Balfour Beatty
instructed Hunton Andrews Kurth LLP, BBC's
outside counsel, to conduct its own investigation,
and BBC proactively contacted the DoJ to
notify them of the review. Balfour Beatty's
own investigation is substantially complete,
and the Group's findings have been shared
with the DoJ.

Balfour Beatty has made a provision in its
2020 year end results for an estimate of the
historical incentive fees that its investigation
was unable to fully verify and which BBC has
proposed to be repaid. The Group's external
counsel is engaging with the DoJ, with the
intention of seeking resolution but as the DoJ
investigation is still ongoing, the Group is not
able to provide any further indication or measure
with sufficient reliability the outcome of the
investigation, including timing or any quantum
of any possible fine, penalty or damages that
may arise.

Safe: Construction is an inherently dangerous
industry. It is therefore essential that the safety
and health of everyone who comes into
contact with Balfour Beatty's operations is
the top priority.
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During 2020 four individuals working across
the Group's operations have lost their lives,
one in the UK and three in Hong Kong.
Additionally, an individual working for a joint
venture partner lost their life in the US. Full
investigations have been undertaken to
ensure learnings are shared and implemented
quickly across Balfour Beatty. In remembering
those lost, the Group will continue to strive
for Zero Harm by making conditions as safe
as possible on its sites.

In August, both the UK and US businesses
recorded a whole month without a lost time
injury — for the first time since 2016 —
demonstrating Zero Harm in action. For the
full year, the Group’s lost time injury rate
(excluding international joint ventures), calculated
as the lost time injuries that occur per every
100,000 hours worked, reduced to 0.10
(2019: 0.14; 2014: 0.29). All other lagging
indicators also showed improvement.

During the year safety assumed an even
greater emphasis as Balfour Beatty developed
new COVID-19 Site Operating Procedures to
support safe working to government guidelines.
Despite the challenges of adapting operations
to maintain social distancing, Balfour Beatty
has seen a positive and significant reduction
in injury rates. In November, the Group launched
a new safety engagement approach ‘The Big
Conversation” where projects partnered across
the UK, US and Hong Kong to share learning
on fatal risk controls and mental health.

Sustainable: In December, Balfour Beatty
included a fifth Build to Last value and launched
the Group's new sustainability strategy,
Building New Futures. Sustainability has
always been at the heart of Balfour Beatty.
From reducing carbon emissions by over
50% in the past decade, to improving
biodiversity, training the next generation,
channelling spend through smaller
businesses, and looking after employees.
Balfour Beatty is currently rated AA by MSCI
and medium risk by Sustainalytics.

As a key lever of economic growth, the
construction and infrastructure industry will
be central to a sustainable recovery. New,
low carbon infrastructure (HS2, wind power,
new nuclear, rail electrification, energy efficient
buildings) will play a leading role in stimulating
growth. From the Green New Deal proposed
by the US President, to the Green Industrial
Revolution launched by the UK Prime Minister,
governments are investing in ensuring that
economies come back stronger from COVID-19
without the increase in carbon emissions that
accompanied the last financial recovery.

The new sustainability strategy goes further
and has been developed using a materiality
assessment with input from key stakeholder
groups in the UK, US and Hong Kong. It is

focused on the three areas most important
to the Group’s business — the environment,
materials and communities. The strategy
requires faster, more significant action
setting out:

> 2030 targets, including a formal
commitment to a science-based target
to reduce carbon emissions; and

> 2040 ambitions to go beyond net zero carbon,
to generate zero waste and to positively
impact more than one million people.

Outlook: 2021 in line with 2019
Balfour Beatty's operations recovered steadily
through the second half of 2020 and today,
all the Group's sites are open and operating
safely in accordance with local regulations.

Despite the continuing COVID-19 restrictions,
the Board expects that the earnings-based
businesses (Construction Services and
Support Services) will deliver underlying
profit from operations for 2021 in line with
2019 (£172 million).

As a result of market uncertainty caused by
COVID-19, in 2020 Balfour Beatty did not
dispose of any Investments assets. In 2021,
the Group will re-commence the sale of
Investments assets timed to optimise value
to shareholders, as demand for high quality
infrastructure assets in the secondary market
is expected to exceed supply.

For 2022 and beyond, the strength of the
Group's order book and positive infrastructure
markets creates the capacity to drive
profitable managed growth and sustainable
cash generation.

Capital allocation framework:

sustainable return of surplus capital
Over the last four years, Balfour Beatty has
repaid over £400 million of debt and preference
shares, principally from selling approximately
£100 million per annum of Investments assets
into the secondary market, whilst reinvesting
approximately £50 million per annum in new
Infrastructure Investments opportunities. The
Group has established one of the strongest
balance sheets in its sector, with average net
cash over £500 million and an Investments
portfolio valued at £1.1 billion. From this
position of strength, Balfour Beatty commenced
a share buyback programme in January 2021.

Balfour Beatty understands the importance
of delivering attractive total cash returns to
shareholders. The Group is therefore committed
to maintaining an appropriate balance between
investment in the business, maintaining a
strong capital position and cash returns to
shareholders. The new capital allocation
framework comprises:

2 continued investment in organic growth
opportunities in Infrastructure Investments
which meet the Group's return hurdles;

> active realisation of Investments assets
with disposals timed to optimise value
for shareholders;

> a strong but efficient balance sheet which
provides the financial platform to make
long-term business decisions, in response
to both opportunities and periods of
market dislocation;

> commitment to paying a sustainable ordinary
dividend, targeted at a pay-out ratio of 40%
of underlying profit after tax (excluding gain
on disposal of Investments assets). The
Board expects dividends to grow over time
with underlying profit; and

> additional cash returns via share buybacks
(or other mechanisms depending on market
conditions) broadly based on surplus cash
delivered from Investments disposals as
well as surplus operating cash flows.

As part of this framework, Balfour Beatty is
increasing its initial £50 million share buyback
programme, commenced in January 2021,

to £150 million for 2021, which it expects

to complete by 31 December 2021.

Conclusion

Throughout the pandemic, Balfour Beatty
has focused on balancing the needs of all
stakeholders whilst protecting the Group’s
capability, disciplines and financial strength.
The transformation delivered under the Build
to Last strategy has enabled the Group to
successfully navigate these challenges

and from this platform Balfour Beatty has
the capacity to deliver enhanced
shareholder returns.

Leo Quinn
Group Chief Executive

9 March 2021
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OUR STRATEGY: BUILD TO LAST

Delivering
Build to Last

Launched in 2015, Build to Last is our strategy for continuous
improvement. It is the day-to-day guide we use to uphold our
purpose, and underpins everything we do.

ABOUT BUILD TO LAST

Build to Last is fundamental to
how we're building a market-
leading Balfour Beatty for the
next 100 years. It's our
platform for sustainable
growth, productivity, inclusive
talent — all ensuring the best
capability to deliver on our
promises and our enduring
commitment to Zero Harm.

The Build to Last strategy is
measured against our five

values — Lean, Expert, Trusted,

Safe and Sustainable.

Whilst far reaching in

its impact on the Group's
operations, the COVID-19
pandemic has proven the
resilience of the Group's
Build to Last strategy.

We create value for our
LEAN customers and drive
continuous improvement

We're thoughtful and agile, continuously
challenging our ways of working to
improve health and safety and productivity,
eliminate waste and enhance quality

to make us more competitive.

Our highly skilled
colleagues and
partners set

us apart

EXPERT

Our people are leaders. We're the
experts of today and inspire the
leaders of tomorrow. We invest in
our colleagues, building their skills
and knowledge, to develop a
passionate, world-class workforce
drawn from all parts of our society.

OURKPIs

Net cash (Em)
excluding non-recourse borrowings

Underlying profit from
continuing operations (Em)

Employee engagement
index (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2020:

£581Im
20162

2020:

£5Im
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2020:

75%
2571



3\\'\\(‘ to La.S‘[

Lean
Expert
Trusted
Safe
Sustainable
)
00//07"9 New ““\\‘&

We deliver on our
promises and we
do the right thing

TRUSTED

We build trust every day by
delivering on our promises, always.
We're accountable for our decisions
and work with the upmost integrity to

ensure we're making the right choices.

G

In December 2020, Balfour Beatty included a fifth
Build to Last value and launched the Group’s new
sustainability strategy, Building New Futures.

Leo Quinn, Group Chief Executive

o)

We make safety

SAFE
personal

Safety is our license to operate. Nothing

is more important than the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues and the
communities we serve. We are unrelenting
and uncompromising in our commitment
to achieving zero harm.

We act responsibly to
SUSTAINABLE protect and enhance
our planet and society

We leave a positive legacy for the people
we work with, the communities we work
in, and the world in which we operate.

We want to enhance our impact on the
environment, working with our supply chain
partners, customers and communities to
ensure our choices are sustainable.

OURKPIs

Customer satisfaction
average (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2020:

95%
p52

Lost time injury rate (LTIR)
excluding international joint ventures

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2020:

0.10 LR
p48

Total Scope 1 & 2 emissions (tCO,e)
per £m revenue

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2020:

18.8 tCOe
2] p55
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Leading in

our markets

We discuss macro trends and opportunities in our chosen markets, the way we
operate and how we create value for all our stakeholders as well as the cutting
edge solutions we are leveraging to meet our customers’ challenges.

In this section

MARKET REVIEW

Our chosen markets show strong
underlying drivers and continue
to deliver significant opportunities
for the Group.

BUSINESS MODEL

We are well positioned to ensure
high-quality outcomes for all our
stakeholders by operating in
attractive markets, leveraging
synergies between our business
units and continuing to focus on
world-class delivery.

Read more on
>Ip16
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STAKEHOLDER VALUE

In striving to achieve our purpose
of Building New Futures, we touch
the lives of many people. Working
with our stakeholders across the
industry and beyond, we continue
to innovate, lead the market
through driving change, shape

the debate and inspire a new
generation of talent to be the
change-makers of tomorrow.

Read more on
>Ip24

INNOVATION

We harness the power of digital
and cutting-edge innovation to
redefine the possible and drive
productivity. Trusted by customers
to deliver sustainable solutions and
strengthen communities, we leave
a legacy we are proud of.

Read more on
>1p26




Ealing Common Depot, L.ondon

Pictured here is our team working on the renewal and remodelling of the east end of the Ealing Common Depot as part of our
ten-year, London Underground Track Renewals contract. Our works were successfully undertaken 24 hours a day during a

six-week blockade using innovations such as a 3D excavator. The excavator draws information from a 3D model of the site to
understand where it is, allowing the bucket to be controlled automatically, without input from the operator.

One of the benefits of
using the 3D excavator is
that it removes the need
for further machinery
such as a dozer, saving
additional hiring costs.

EXPERT

This type of excavator is
the first of its kind in the
UK, exclusively
developed by Balfour
Beatty's expert plant and
fleet team and its supply
chain partner, Trimble.

TRUSTED

The 3D excavator is one
of many innovations the
team use on site to
deliver cost and
programme efficiencies

for Transport for London.

The excavator's bucket
level and grade can be
controlled remotely by
GPS, allowing a quicker,
higher-quality installation,
reducing the time the
workforce need to spend
on the network.

SUSTAINABLE

The use of the 3D
excavator reduces

the carbon impact of
the project through

the significant reduction
in the number of
diesel-powered large
plant required on site.
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MARKET REVIEW

Well positioned in
our chosen markets

Balfour Beatty operates in a number of carefully selected
markets, based on level of opportunity and ability to

outperform its competitors.

Macro trends

Our chosen markets show strong underlying
drivers and continue to deliver significant
opportunities to the Group.

UK public sector spend

In both the short and long term, the
infrastructure market outlook is positive and
is boosted by the government’s £640 billion
National Infrastructure Strategy, providing
the highest levels of investment in decades.

In the short term, buildings markets have
been impacted by COVID-19, although this
has been less severe in Balfour Beatty's
focus area of public projects.

The completion of the UK's trade agreement
with the European Union creates greater
certainty in the market and enables the
government to focus on its broader agenda,
including build back better, driving
opportunities for Balfour Beatty.

Strong infrastructure stimulus

opportunities in the US

There is strong bipartisan support for
infrastructure investment and, following his
recent election victory, President Biden has
announced a Build Back Better recovery plan
providing “historic investments in infrastructure”
and creating opportunities across the market
for Balfour Beatty.

November's election also saw voters approve
several state bonds earmarked for school
construction, which will offset declines in
other buildings markets.

Stable spend in Hong Kong
Underpinned by the government’s HK$100bn
a year planned investment, Hong Kong
continues to deliver a strong pipeline of
infrastructure and construction projects.
After short term uncertainty, private

sector investment is expected to return

over the medium term.

Strong market drivers

Through Build to Last, Balfour Beatty has
focused its operations on markets with strong
fundamental market drivers, underpinned by
macro demographic and economic trends.

The first of these is public sector spend —

as monetary policy stimulus reaches its limit,
governments are increasingly turning to fiscal
stimulus through infrastructure investment

to drive employment and economic growth.

As a trusted partner to public sector clients, the
Group benefits from not only increasing spend,
but also long-term certainty around that spend.

The second is growth, both in population
and productivity - as infrastructure remains
a critical pillar necessary to support population
and economic growth. In the US, the Group
continues to benefit from population migration
to our chosen geographies, which necessitates
increased investment in new and upgraded
infrastructure, particularly within healthcare
and transportation segments.

The third factor is increasing emphasis on
decarbonisation and sustainability. In the UK,
the government’s target of reaching net zero
carbon emissions by 2050 is driving an ever
increasing demand for efficient, decarbonised
infrastructure solutions able to meet the
country’s current and future needs. The same
sentiment is echoed in the US, with the President
promising to make historic investments in
clean energy solutions and decarbonisation.
Balfour Beatty's focus on being a sustainable
contractor, as set out in our new sustainability
strategy, Building New Futures, makes the
Group a suitable partner to deliver this historic
level of green infrastructure work.

The fourth factor is around increasing
partnership in established infrastructure
markets. As client organisations mature,
Balfour Beatty is increasingly able to work
collaboratively to develop mutually beneficial
models of working, sharing risk and upside
appropriately. This is exemplified by the UK
Government's Construction Playbook which
places a greater emphasis on creating social
value and aims to make the government a
more responsible buyer.
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Better
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FORECAST INCREASE IN THE UK,
THE US AND ASIA INFRASTRUCTURE
SPEND ON CURRENT TRENDS
2015-2040 (US$ 2015 prices)

United Kingdom

United States

+76.9%

Source: Global Infrastructure Hub
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UK: Construction
and Support Services

Strong underlying growth

Highways England: unprecedented spend
Funding for the second Road Investment
Strategy (RIS2) has been increased by a further
£2 billion to deliver additional projects such
as the Lower Thames Crossing.

The total spend of £27 billion over the
2020-2025 period is a significant increase
over the £15 billion spent in RIS1 between
2015 and 2020.

Exciting local roads market

The local highways maintenance market
is forecast to see significant investment
with the announcement of an additional

HIGHWAYS ENGLAND’S ROAD INVESTMENT STRATEGY

Smart Motorways Alliance

£2.5 billion in funding, increasing local
council budgets by 45% over the next five
years. Further, over £700 million of
outsourced contracts are up for renewal
between 2021 and 2025. With long-term
security from its ongoing contracts, Balfour
Beatty is well positioned to capitalise, win
new work and achieve sustainable growth.

Investment in rail maintenance

As the UK rail industry transitions from one
Network Rail control period to the next

(CP5 to CP6), the work focus is shifting,

with maintenance and renewals receiving

an extra £10bn of funding over the latest
five-year period. Further, the formation of the
Project Speed taskforce, to pull forward and
accelerate infrastructure investment, and the
ramp up of Transport for Wales’ £700m Core
Valley Lines programme are expected to

® Construction Services

Support Services

create a strong pipeline of construction work.
As an agile operator offering a range of rail
capabilities, Balfour Beatty is well placed

to deliver both maintenance and core
construction work.

Strong power pipeline

The power transmission and distribution
industry is expected to see a wave of new
demand as the UK plans for a green industrial
revolution. Investments in renewable energy
to become the Saudi Arabia of wind power
and new nuclear generation capacity are
pillars of these plans. Trusted and safe
contractors such as Balfour Beatty are well
placed to deliver these works and the
associated infrastructure to enable the
networks to support this influx of new,
green power generation.

® Secured work O Future opportunity

Lower Thames Crossing

Other
Schemes

Regional Development Partnership

£27bn
RIS2 (2021-25)

£15bn

South
Roads

North
Roads

M25 Connect Plus

RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE SPEND

Central Rail Systems Alliance

RIS1(2015-20)

® Construction Services

Manage
and
Operate

Support Services ® Secured work O Future opportunity

Transport for Wales

King's

Cions Euston

Crewe

Project Speed

£53bn
CP6 + TfW (2019-24)

£38bn
CP5(2014-19)

Maintenance

Uckfield

Midland Main
Electrification

Line

Multi-
Stosrﬁel!g;ver purpose Tampers
vehicles
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MARKET REVIEW CONTINUED

Smarter procurement

Construction Playbook

The implementation of the UK Government's
Construction Playbook aims to make the
public sector a more responsible and sustainable
buyer, emphasising the importance of
creating value, both socially and in terms of
work delivered. This new focus matches well
with Balfour Beatty’s Build to Last values and
given our strong track record and sustainability
strategy, Balfour Beatty is well positioned to
support these goals.

Growth of public sector frameworks
Construction procurement in the UK
continues to evolve, presenting opportunities
for progressive and collaborative contractors.
Leading the way are innovative frameworks
such as SCAPE, Crown Commercial Services
(CCS) and NHS Shared Business Services
(SBS), which are redefining how construction
is procured nationwide, and Balfour Beatty

is participating as a major contractor on all.
This trend is set to continue with SCAPE
announcing its planned £13 billion next
generation construction framework in 2021.

Long term strategic alliances

Public bodies charged with operating and
maintaining infrastructure assets are
increasingly embracing longer term alliances
which encourage industry collaboration to
drive higher efficiency and service standards.
Network Rail’s Track Alliances and Highways
England’'s Smart Motorway Alliance bring
together leading industry players, including
Balfour Beatty, to collaboratively and quickly
deliver a combined £10 billion of work over a
ten-year period.

Transformational green

infrastructure agenda

The Government has prioritised the
decarbonisation of the transport and energy
sectors in order to meet the target of net zero
carbon emissions by 2050. In order to make
this ambition a reality, a generational investment
in infrastructure is planned through the

£640 billion National Infrastructure Strategy.
With over 110 years of history building Britain's
infrastructure, Balfour Beatty is well positioned
to capitalise and build the infrastructure of
the future.

New nuclear

Nuclear has been identified as a key source
of large scale, low carbon energy for the UK
and the government is providing £525 million
to bring forward the next generation of new
nuclear power stations. Balfour Beatty is
playing a critical role in constructing Hinkley
Point C and is well placed for the proposed
Sizewell C and Bradwell B nuclear plants.

Transportation

The confirmation of HS2 Phases 1 and 2A
has reaffirmed the government’s commitment
to rail, with this project set to transform
connectivity in the UK. The authorisation of
further phases and the proposed Northern
Powerhouse Rail programme will continue
this trend of generational investment in this
sector for years to come. Balfour Beatty

is already playing a pivotal part in this
transformation through its work on both Old
Oak Common station and the main civils
works for Area North.

UK: TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS GENERAL INVESTMENT IN TRANSPORT AND ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE

Gross addressable client spend per year

HS2 Phase 2A
All works for Birmingham
to Crewe section

Sizewell C
Nuclear power
station in Suffolk

®

£14bn
£12bn
£10bn HS2 Phase 1
All works for London to
West Midlands section
£8bn
£6bn
O Hinkley Point C
f4bn - Nuclear power
@J station in Somerset
£2bn Crossrail 1
East to West underground
@ link across London
£0bn

2020

ON TRACK TO NET ZERO: CORE VALLEY LINES ELECTRIFICATION

2021

Q

2022 2023

Lower Thames Crossing
New road tunnel connecting
Kent and Essex

Northern Powerhouse Rail
New rail project linking major
cities in the North of England

A @

D@

=)

Bradwell B
Nuclear power
station in Essex

—

HS2 Phase 2B

All works for Crewe
to Manchester and
West Midlands to
Leeds sections

2024 2025 2026

As a flagship project for Transport for
Wales (TfW), the “once in a generation”
Core Valley Lines investment aims to
provide a faster, greener rail service and
improve connectivity for over 1.5 million
people within the Cardiff Capital Region.
The £738m infrastructure investment
includes electrifying over 170km of
track, allowing electrified trains

to replace the carbon-heavy diesel stock
currently in use, and is set to provide
numerous economic and environmental
benefits. TfW has a target for 100%

of the traction load to come from
renewable sources, with solar panels
installed along the route set to provide

a portion of the project’s energy needs.
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US: Construction Services

Our chosen markets are well diversified. Change shown between 2019 and 2024

Transportation

Investment in transport infrastructure is
expected to see strong growth, receiving
bipartisan support at a federal level with
investment packages up to US$2 trillion
currently in discussion.

@ +26%

Health

The COVID-19 pandemic has exposed the
need for urgent investment in the health
sector and, along with an ageing population
demographic, is expected to drive continued
growth in healthcare construction demand.

@ +28%

Education

Several recently approved state level education
bonds, including US$13 billion in California,
are expected to drive strong spend on school
building construction.

@ +13%

Multifamily housing

Although impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic, a strong economic recovery is
expected to drive demand in the multifamily
housing market as unemployment reduces to
pre-pandemic levels and migration continues
to Balfour Beatty's chosen states.

@ +5%

Our chosen states are the fastest growing in the US
Balfour Beatty’s US operations are focused on specific, high growth regions known internally as ‘The Southern Smile'.
This starts in the Pacific Northwest, runs through California, Texas, Florida and up through Georgia and the Carolinas to
Washington D.C. These areas are population hubs with growth and migration projected to continue driving increased

investment, particularly in transportation and social infrastructure.

NATIONWIDE

California Schools Bonds

US$13bn made available for

2020
US$884bn

OUR CHOSEN STATES

2024
US$324bn

construction of new schools.

+5.3% p.a.

Sources: Dodge and FMI Market Forecast

Unified Transportation Program

10 year plan guiding the development of
major transportation projects. Over
US$20bn of funding in 2020.

Commercial

The commercial buildings market is projected
to recover slowly over the coming years,
recovering to pre-pandemic levels by 2024.

© 0%

Hospitality and leisure

The hospitality and leisure sectors
were substantially impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic. These sectors
are expected to see slow recovery
in the medium term.

 -11%

@

ATL Regional Transit Plan
Proposed US$27bn mass transit
expansion program in Georgia.
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MARKET REVIEW CONTINUED

Gammon

Stable core markets

Hong Kong

Significant investments in transportation
and social infrastructure are expected to
drive growth in Hong Kong. Investments
into major expansions of Hong Kong Airport
and the MTR subway system have started,
bringing a strong pipeline of infrastructure
projects which will be further supported

by the government’s recent announcement
to materially increase investment in the

Hospital Development Plans

Over HK$500bn earmarked to expand,
redevelop and construct new hospitals
to serve 500,000 more patients by 2036.

Long Term Aviation Investment @
The HK$144bn third runway

development at Hong Kong Airport

marks the beginning of a long-term

investment in aviation, with a

further HK$9bn expansion

programme already underway.

@

GREEN GUARANTEES: A PIONEER IN ASIA-PACIFIC

As a market leader in sustainable
construction Gammon has implemented
one of the first green guarantees in the
Asia-Pacific on a Kai Tak residential
project which will cover nearly
40,000m? and will be built to a BEAM
Plus Gold rating, one of the highest
building sustainability certifications in
Hong Kong. To achieve this Gammon is
delivering the project using sustainable
construction practices to reduce the
environmental impacts of construction,
improve environmental quality and
prioritise end-user wellbeing. Gammon
has also replaced diesel generators
with a jointly developed battery power
system, the Enertainer, to reduce noise
and air pollution, increase energy
efficiency and cut carbon emissions

by 85% on site.

medium term. This increase in public
spend is set to offset a slowdown in
the commercial construction sector.

Singapore

Project delays have materially impacted
the Singapore market in the short term.
However, these projects are scheduled to
proceed in 2021, driving a quick recovery
in this market as public spend commences
on infrastructure works such as the Cross
Island MRT line and the Jurong Lake
district development.

®

®
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CIVILS AND BUILDINGS

CONSTRUCTION
2024

HK$163bn

Source: Construction Industry Council
(April 2020)

Residential and Rail Developments
Over 15 sites have been designated
for sale in 2021-22, to provide up to
16,500 new homes and three new
railway developments as the
government aims to meet its target of
building 430,000 new homes by 2029.

HK$1 Trillion Infrastructure

Investment

Over the next decade, the Hong Kong
government plans to invest over
HK$1 trillion in developing
infrastructure.




Investments:
UK & US

Attractive range of opportunities
continue to come to market

Student accommodation:

strong US/UK demand

Though impacted in the short term, student
accommodation remains a significant and
recession-resilient investment opportunity in
the US and the UK, the two largest markets
globally. Balfour Beatty will continue to leverage
its strong reputation for both investment and
construction in the sector.

States, counties and cities using P3

The US has become an increasingly exciting
market for public-private partnership and, to
date, 37 states (plus D.C.) have passed
legislation allowing P3 projects. The 2015
federal FAST Act helped to expedite P3
planning processes and led to some major
local projects, such as the newly approved £9
billion Maryland 1-270 project, one of the
largest P3 projects in the country. Any future
infrastructure stimulus package is expected
to further support this growth.

Housing opportunities

Balfour Beatty Communities continues to
see attractive multifamily accommmodation
come to market, providing ample opportunity
to invest profitably in the regeneration of
these properties.

LOWER FOR LONGER RATES
CONTINUES TO DRIVE DEMAND

The infrastructure asset market has
undergone a significant shift in recent
years. Low interest rates have
increased the attractiveness of
alternative, yield bearing assets such
as infrastructure. This trend has been
evident in the UK and US with
investors attracted to infrastructure
assets by solid fundamentals, strong
returns and the perceived low risk
nature. This rising demand and
increased investor confidence has
been reflected in the steady increase
in valuations across the infrastructure
asset class. With a well-established
Investments portfolio Balfour Beatty
is well placed to deliver strong, long
term returns.

Source: Preqin

Jde

Ely
c
=

Student accommodation
University procured on-campus student housing and other buildings.

Residential/Regeneration
Urban regeneration in partnership with local councils.

i oe

TARGET SEGMENTS

Student accommodation
University procured on-campus student housing and other buildings.

@)

P3 social and transport
Courthouses, schools and other government buildings.
Mass transport and roads.

®

Military housing
Unaccompanied personnel housing renovations and improvements.

@)

Multifamily housing
Acquiring and renovating housing focusing on geographies with strong
population and existing Balfour Beatty Investments presence.

GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT
US$bn
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BUSINESS MODEL
I

Why our customers choose us

Expert people

Our engineering and project management
expertise allows us to deliver complex,
one-of-a-kind projects and has made us a
trusted construction partner for public and
private sector alike.

World class track record

With over 110 years of experience
successfully delivering transformational
infrastructure projects, Balfour Beatty has
cultivated a strong track record of quality
and reliability.

Innovation

Innovation is part of the Balfour Beatty
culture, harnessing the power of digital and
cutting edge technology to drive productivity
and redefine the possible.

Financial stability

Balfour Beatty’s strong balance sheet
is a testament to strong governance.
It gives customers confidence we are
able to deliver, and we are here for the
long term.

Build to Last values

Balfour Beatty has built an industry-leading
brand on its reputation as a partner that is
Lean, Expert, Trusted, Safe and Sustainable
—our five Build to Last values.

Sustainable focus

Balfour Beatty takes its responsibility as

a custodian of the planet seriously and that it
leaves a positive legacy in the communities
it works in.

Reducing risk in
our order book

As part of our Build to Last strategy, Balfour
Beatty has strengthened its governance,
focusing on reducing risk in its order book by
selectively bidding for work it is best placed
to deliver on terms that are attractive to the

Group. This reduction has been most £2 .7 n
noticeable in the UK Construction Services

business, where the proportion of fixed price

work has fallen to 20% at the end of 2020, 46%
partly as a result of the HS2 Area North contract.

HY 2018

HY2018 FY2020
- Fixed price 50% 20%
-~ Target cost 46% 70% i
< Cost plus 4% 10%
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UK Construction
order book

FY 2020

£6.4bn

70%




How our Group works together

Multi-disciplinary collaboration is core to Balfour Beatty’s identity; our Construction Services,
Support Services and Infrastructure Investments teams work closely together to ensure
high-quality outcomes for our stakeholders. The Group's business model has not changed as
a result of COVID-19 or the UK leaving the European Union.

(7]
-
=
Y]
=
1]
=
o
-
()
=
(=)
=
-

Profitable work for construction business Cross-selling across customer base

INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT
INVESTMENTS (1l) SERVICES (CS) SERVICES (SS)

A proven track record We manage strong We maintain, upgrade and
of developing and construction businesses manage vital services across
financing projects. in the UK, US and the power transmission,

Hong Kong. utilities, road and
rail sectors.

Delivery skills support investment opportunities Knowledge transfer

Working collaboratively across the Group

East Slope Residences, UK Los Angeles Airport Automated Littlebrook Substation, UK
Balfour Beatty financed, constructed People Mover, US As part of National Grid's transformation
and is operating a new on-campus Balfour Beatty, with its joint venture partners, ~ Programme, Balfour Beatty is replacing
student accommodation development for is financing and constructing the US$1.95 the high voltage Littlebrook substation.
University of Sussex, providing rooms billion project to develop a 2.25-mile This project combines multiple aspects
for over 2,000 students. above-ground airport transport system of the Group’s construction and support

connecting passengers with airline terminals.  Services capabilities, including ground
engineering and power.

00 00 ©0
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STAKEHOLDER VALUE

Sharing the value we create

In striving to achieve its purpose of Building New Futures, Balfour Beatty touches the lives
of many people. Working with its stakeholders across the industry and beyond, the Group
continues to innovate, lead the market through driving change, shape the debate and inspire
a new generation of talent to be the change-makers of tomorrow.

Customers

Why are they important?
Collaborative and long-term mutually beneficial
relationships with our customers are the foundation
of our success.

Our priorities
> Be the partner of choice by delivering on
our promises

> Selective bidding to ensure we are pursuing
the right opportunities with partners who
value our expertise
> Deliver high-quality, safe, sustainable solutions
2020 engagement examples
> Regular communications with our customer base

at operational, management, executive and
Board level

> The use of MAP as our customer satisfaction
and feedback tool. MAP is aligned to ISO 44001,
the international accreditation for collaboration

> Customer account management plans

OUTCOMES

> Lean, Expert, Trusted, Safe and
Sustainable solutions

> Collaborative relationships
> Improved customer satisfaction score

> Continued delivery of essential services and
projects throughout the COVID-19 pandemic

)@ Employees
.

Why are they important?

Talented and engaged employees committed to
upholding our values, enable us to deliver on our
Build to Last strategy, ensuring we win the best
and most exciting projects and continue to build
a great place to work.

Our priorities

> Zero Harm - no injury, ill health or environmental
incident caused by our work

> Attraction and retention of talented people from
a diverse range of backgrounds

> Improved employee engagement

2020 engagement examples

> Arefreshed cultural framework providing a simple
and clear view of our purpose, values and
behaviours under our Build to Last strategy

> Enhanced communications to keep our people well
informed such as daily e-newsletters, health and
wellbeing webinars, impactful toolbox talk material
and virtual conferences

> Group-wide surveys to measure and understand
employee engagement and identify
improvement priorities

> My Contribution ‘Bouncing Back’ campaign to
crowd source employee ideas for positive
business change

> Employee-led affinity networks for
under-represented groups to encourage and
support diversity and inclusion

> Launch of the ‘Big Conversation’ to connect
employees from across the UK, US and Hong Kong
and encourage open and honest conversations
about health and safety

> Lean, Expert, Trusted, Safe and
Sustainable solutions

> Improved employee retention rate
> Increased employee engagement index score

> 550+ My Contribution ideas raised to help us
‘bounce back’ from the COVID-19 pandemic
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> Supply chain and
strategic partners

Why are they important?

Our many supply chain partners, large and small,
are an invaluable resource fundamental to the
successful delivery of all of our projects. We also
work with trusted partners in a number of long-term
joint ventures which are critical to our success.

Our priorities
> Zero Harm - no injury, ill health or environmental
incident caused by our work

2 Be the partner of choice by delivering on our promises

> Digital technology implementation to enhance
efficiency and consistency (UK Constructionline,
e-catalogues, DocuSign)

> Keep cash flowing through the supply chain

> Develop a sustainable supply chain in
collaboration with our suppliers

2020 engagement examples
> Adedicated supply chain webpage and regular
newsletters during COVID-19 pandemic

2 Local virtual ‘Meet Balfour Beatty’ supply chain events

2 Membership of the UK Supply Chain
Sustainability School

> Development of collaborative business partnership
with our key partners in line with ISO 44001:2017

> Lean, Expert, Trusted, Safe and
Sustainable solutions

> Local employment
> Collaborative and long-term relationships
> Over £1.1 million spent with SMEs in the UK

> Prompt payment of supply chain partners




Communities

Why are they important?

Our activities can have a lasting impact on the
communities in which we operate — we strive
to leave a lasting legacy.

Our priorities

> Delivering the Group's sustainability 2030 targets
and 2040 ambitions to go Beyond Net Zero Carbon,
Generate Zero Waste and Positively Impact More
than 1 Million People

> Work in partnership with communities to
understand and support local needs

> Establish relationships with key community
stakeholders to develop a programme of
impactful community investment activities

> Contribute to environmental wellbeing

2020 engagement examples

> Community engagement plans for projects
through Involved in the UK and Green and Caring
in Gammon as well as local initiatives in the US.
This includes STEM activities with schools,
colleges and universities, charity and volunteering
activities, and promotion of local jobs and
business opportunities for SMEs and minority
owned businesses

> Communication with communities under the
Considerate Constructors Scheme (UK)

> Developing training programmes such as
apprenticeships, graduates and work experience as
part of our commitment to The 5% Club in the UK

> Bringing construction to the classroom with virtual
work experience, collaborating with SCAPE and
Learn Live to encourage young people to consider
a career in construction in the UK

OUTCOMES

> The proportion of UK employees in earn and
learn positions (graduates, apprentices,
trainees and industrial placement students)
increased to 6.0%

> Employees raised £721,939in
charitable donations

> Above industry average score for the
UK'’s Considerate Constructors Scheme
at 41.8 out of 50

G

The Balfour Beatty handling of the COVID-19
situation is impeccable and unsurpassed.

Niccolo Barattieri di San Pietro
Chief Executive Officer, Northacre

)

ui-w Governments

Why are they important?

Public policy, laws and regulations define the business
environment in which Balfour Beatty operates.
Governments — and their associated bodies —

are also Balfour Beatty's largest customers.

Our priorities

> Support governments’ understanding of the
potential impact of proposed new policies and
legislation on the markets in which we operate
and our activities

> Active engagement on key issues within the
political arena

> Promote the value of the construction and
infrastructure industry for wider economic prosperity
to secure ongoing infrastructure investment

2020 engagement examples

> Meeting key public officials and their staff

> Response to government consultations, inquiries
and hearings

> Published ‘Seizing the day’ thought paper, which
outlines nine key points and recommendations
and explores how change can be accelerate to
allow the industry to thrive post lockdown

> Engagement with the UK Government'’s
‘Acceleration Unit" aimed at removing barriers and
speeding up the commissioning of key
infrastructure schemes

> Briefing the Prime Minister's office in advance of
the publication of our new sustainability strategy
and receiving a public endorsement from the
Prime Minister

> Trusted delivery partner for governments

2 Publication of UK Government'’s Construction
Playbook, which Balfour Beatty contributed
to and helped to shape

2 Infrastructure at the heart of plans for
post-COVID-19 recovery in all of our key
markets, and seen as a positive driver for
economic growth

Shareholders

Why are they important?

Shareholders are the owners of Balfour Beatty.

The Board places great importance on having positive
relationships with all shareholders and seeks to ensure
there is an appropriate level of dialogue with them.

Our priorities

> Provision of financial and non-financial information
to shareholders (retail and institutional) in a timely
and accurate way

> Presentation of investor feedback to the Board
and management

> Enable the market to fairly reflect the fundamental
value of the Company in the share price

2020 engagement examples

> Delivering half year results virtually, for the first
time in response to COVID-19

> Regular briefings via regulatory announcements,
webcasts and presentations as well as annual and
sustainability reporting

> Regular direct engagement via meetings
and conferences

> Dedicated Investor Relations department

> Regular updates to the Investor Relations web pages

> Clear and consistent information for existing
and potential shareholders

> Increased engagement on ESG matters
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INNOVATION

Cutting edge outcomes to
benefit all our stakeholders

Balfour Beatty continues to drive innovation, foster an innovation culture and

invest in value-adding initiatives across the UK, the US and Hong Kong.

Using digital tools
to deliver better
outcomes

During 2020, Balfour Beatty continued to
drive forward its digital transformation.

The focus was particularly on increased
digital integration between Balfour Beatty
and its supply chain partners to streamline
processes, improve accuracy, accelerate
delivery and reduce costs. These developments
have seen an increase in on-time delivery and
improved customer engagement and outcomes.

> Balfour Beatty has been accredited to
international Building Information Modelling
(BIM) standard ISO 19650, an international
standard which defines the collaborative
processes for the effective management
of information. Only a handful of Tier 1
contractors are certified to ISO 19650. This
means that by following an international
standardised way of managing information,
we can work more productively and
professionally, while clients benefit from
more efficient and predictable outcomes.
Gammon, our Hong Kong based joint
venture, has also successfully received the
ISO 19650 Kitemark certification — one of
the few companies in Hong Kong and
Asia to be recognised for their wider
digital transformation.

> Balfour Beatty’s Mid-Atlantic team has

been using Twinmotion, a real-time rendering
tool that allows users to quickly import 3D
models and produce high-quality images,
panoramas, and standard or 360-degree
Virtual Reality (VR) videos. This powerful
visualisation tool can also be used to create a
360-degree immersive VR experience of
any space without a VR headset: it can be
accessed as a 3D walkthrough on a
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standard work computer. The team has
used the technology to help design its new
office space in Falls Church, Virginia.

> Balfour Beatty, in collaboration with

construction workforce technology
specialists MSite, has adopted an
innovative mobile phone application.
Downloaded directly onto employees’
mobile phones, the app provides each
employee with a digital identity, enabling
contactless entry to site using biometrics.
The technology also reduces the need for
employees to touch surfaces when entering
sites, as well as collecting data to accurately
monitor site attendance levels.

2 On the AB3 road improvement scheme in

Hull, the project is using three of the first
JCB electric mini excavators to eliminate
tailpipe emissions. These electric excavators
need to be charged daily on a site that has
no mains power. Previously a diesel generator
would have run 24/7 to provide on-site
power, but this would have eliminated the
environmental benefits gained through the
electric excavators. Innovating again, the
team used a Prolectric ProPower Solar
Hybrid Generator to reduce emissions,
noise and fuel use and provide clean
energy for the electric excavators.

> Balfour Beatty's US Buildings team have

taken training out of the classroom and into
a virtual environment. Due to COVID-19
and the cancelling of in-person safety training,
the team recognised the need to provide
another avenue for safety training. These
are now provided online through Microsoft
Teams. Colleagues can tune in for live
presentations or catch up later, accessing
programme materials such as playbooks
and safety exhibits. This flexibility has seen a
significant increase in attendee numbers.

> Connect Plus, a consortium comprising

Balfour Beatty, Edge Orbital Holdings Ltd
and Egis Investment Partners, which operates
and manages the M25 and its key arterial
routes on behalf of Highways England, has
successfully digitally mapped all 120 miles
of the M25 — together with strategic
partners Connect Plus Services, Sensat
and Osborne. This involved using drones to
remotely capture physical photogrammetric
survey data safely and efficiently, without
the need for traffic management or lane
closures. Over 30 days, the team undertook
the largest drone mapping endeavour to
have taken place in the UK to date. This
resulted in the production of highly accurate,
geo-referenced 2D and 3D representations
of the UK's busiest motorway and its adjoining
trunk and slip roads without disruptive
closures. The data is being used to create
a digital representation of the M25
environment which will become a key source
of detailed information, supporting the team
in planning and decision-making, ultimately
reducing the need for physical surveys to
be carried out in a live highways environment.

2 Gammon established the Hong Kong

construction industry’s first on-site 5G
Smart Control Centre to support the
design and fabrication of 700 COVID-19
quarantine units in 87 days and the build of
a dedicated quarantine facility at Penny’s
Bay, ahead of the 90-day contract period.
Over 95% of the works were completed
using Modular Integrated Construction
(MiC) methods. The quarantine units were
fully fitted out in mainland China while a
"flying factory’ onsite was used to fabricate
underground pipe modules. Manufacturing,
logistics and testing and commissioning
status such as those for quality checks, the
location of the MiC unit deliveries and



testing results are available at the touch of
a key, with data relayed from detection
systems on the site — including those
monitoring the wearing of safety helmets,
demarcation of danger zones and the
presence of fire or smoke.

2 To improve site safety, Balfour Beatty
VINCI (BBV) worked with HS2 Ltd and
innovative software developer 3D Repo to
develop advanced 4D learning technology
that enables site teams to identify, record
and resolve site hazards as part of their
virtual construction sequence evaluation
and training. The technology, SafetiBase4D,
sees site workers enter the Mission Room,
which creates a four dimensional, 360°
virtual version of a BBV construction site
on HS2's area north route. In the safety of
an office environment workers can go on
site and explore, discuss and agree the
project’s delivery sequence, and identify
safety issues and agree how to resolve them.
Teams inside the Mission Room and others
joining remotely via the internet are able to
virtually tag hazards at a specific place and

time in the virtual build sequence.

Energy efficiency

Reducing carbon
emissions with
FEcoNet technology

In the UK, Balfour Beatty,
in collaboration with
Sunbelt and Invisible
Systems, has developed
state-of-the-art technology
to manage the power
supply of site compounds
and reduce carbon
emissions across its
construction sites by up
to 80%. The system,
known as EcoNet, works
by controlling and
reducing the energy
output from key

appliances in cabins,
such as those in
kitchens, drying rooms
and office spaces. Once
fully embedded, it is
expected that Balfour
Beatty will save a
minimum of 2,200
tonnes of CO, emissions
every year, with individual
sites reducing their
carbon emissions by
between 30% to 80%

of their normal levels.
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THE WORLD'S FIRST DIGITAL TWIN OF SITE CONCRETING

Gammon has made significant concrete
waste savings by integrating concrete
sensor data with BIM in what we believe

| tobe the world’s first digital twin of site
. concreting. The new cellular gateway

introduced in ConcreteDNA Pro, Converge
Signal, automatically transmits sensor
data (measuring the compressive strength
of concrete as it cures) to the cloud in real
time. ConcreteDNA Pro introduces
concrete performance and temperature
differential analytics, which means project
teams can track and ensure concrete is
meeting expected standards. Gammon
has reduced by one third the amount of
concrete used and saved more than

110 tonnes of concrete waste using this

. technique on its Hong Kong Science &

Technology Parks Corporation’s Advanced
Manufacturing Centre project, significantly
lowering the project’s carbon footprint.

Scan the QR code to
watch our EcoNet
animation
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INNOVATION CONTINUED

’ My Contribution (MyC)

Critical to the success of our Build to Last
strategy is ensuring that every member of
our workforce is engaged and has a personal
stake in making the business stronger and
helping us to deliver continuous improvement
for all our stakeholders.

My Contribution is an online collaboration
platform which encourages and empowers
everyone to be an innovator and for
innovation to take place across every part
of our business. It has played a key role in
helping Balfour Beatty go from strength

to strength over the past six years, and has
proven its value most recently during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Measuring performance is a fundamental
part of My Contribution. As part of the MyC
upgrade in 2020, we launched a suite of new
and improved dashboards providing complete
transparency and real time reporting on the
progress and delivery of ideas.

In December 2020, we ran our first annual
My Contribution Kudos Awards — our
opportunity to showcase and recognise the
outstanding improvements and contributions
across the UK business during the year, and
the people who have made them happen.
With a final showcase of 11 ideas each
sponsored by an Executive Committee
member, our winning entries were:

MY CONTRIBUTION EXEC

Employee Voted Winner: QR Code
Permits — This winning idea submitted by
Leigh Clarke, Site Manager was to streamline
the daily issuing of work permits, by using
QR codes linked to BIM 360 Field this
allowed project team members to check
the permit request is completed correctly
and is in order before work commences.
This simple and effective use of existing
technology was trialled on the Badenoch
and Strathspey Community Hospital project

in Aviemore, Scotland, and has huge potential

to be deployed across the business. After
sponsoring the idea during the Kudos Awards,
the CEO for Balfour Beatty's US Operations
saw its potential and has made a commitment
to rolling it out to all US projects.

Group Chief Executive Kudos Award:
Next Level Project Integration — in a world
where we have multiple digital systems, the
concept of Common Coding builds a single
language across all departments, meaning
our data can be integrated across one
powerful ecosystem. This idea should deliver
cost savings of £15 million over five years on
the HS2 Area North project alone and will be
a game-changer across Balfour Beatty.
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My Contribution

and COVID-19:
Bouncing Back
campaign

In April 2020, the Group ran a My Contribution
campaign called ‘Bouncing Back'. The aim
of the campaign was to make sure Balfour

Beatty was in the best possible position to
bounce back from COVID-19.

Over the course of the campaign, our
workforce in the UK and US generated
more than 550 ideas. These fell into four
core themes:

> A Great Place to Work: This includes
new ways of working from encouraging
more flexible approaches to reducing
travel and carbon emissions.

> Digital Future: Exploring how we can
use technology to enhance how we
operate as a business, reduce our
carbon emissions, and deliver better
for our customers.

> Back to Business: Considering how
our sites can scale back up in the new
normal, from embedding new
approaches using technology to ongoing
social distancing.

2> New Markets and Capabilities:
Examining opportunities for utilising our
skills and expertise, in new and adjacent
markets as well as optimising the use of
internal capabilities from across the Group.

Combined, the ideas in these

themes formed a strategic roadmap
which is helping make sure that Balfour
Beatty bounces back from COVID-19
even stronger.

O LEFT
New and improved MyC
dashboard



Innovating through the COVID-19 pandemic

@ ABOVE
4D modelling on the M4 J3-12 Motorway upgrade

Balfour Beatty has relied on its ability to
innovate and to adopt new technologies,
technigues and approaches throughout the
COVID-19 pandemic to keep its workforce
safe, keep sites open and continuing to
deliver for its customers. In many cases
we have had to entirely rethink how we
carry out operations in order to meet
social distancing requirements, reduce
the number of our workers out on site
and respond to more rigorous

hygiene requirements.

> Balfour Beatty adapted its in-person tours
which showcase the amazing work that's
being carried out on schemes such as the
Manchester Engineering Campus
Development and the Midland Metropolitan
University Hospital, by making tours
virtual. This allows viewers to take a remote
walk-through, and provided detail on key
aspects including social value, mechanical
and electrical works and design.

2 Our team delivering the Hoover High
School Theatre and Classroom Building
Additions project in San Diego brought in
QR codes to provide contactless access
to vital information. By scanning the QR
codes workers or visitors can access
important materials, including Balfour
Beatty’'s Zero Harm safety video, job site

orientation documents, logistics plans and

more. The QR codes also replace paper
sign-in sheets by directing workers and
visitors to an online check-in form, facilitating

compliance with local government
mandates. With this technology in place,
any person entering the job site has
access to documents via mobile devices
that would have previously been handled
by multiple people.

2 The M4 J3-12 Motorway team are using
4D modelling on the project to plan the
large-scale weekend closures required to
demolish and install the new motorway
bridges. This modelling incorporate a
two-metre bubble around each person to
help the team plan socially distanced
activities and identify specific tasks.
Where these have been identified the
team have found ways to change the way
that task is undertaken.

> Balfour Beatty took part in Learning in
Lockdown, a virtual work experience
programme led by SCAPE and their
partners, Class Of Your Own, Engineering
Development Trust and Learn Live. The
programme gave nearly 2,000 students
in year 10/S4 from 300 secondary schools
across England, Scotland and Wales the
unigue opportunity to complete a week
of work experience during the COVID-19
lockdown, which would otherwise not
have gone ahead.

Visit our COVID-19 microsite for more
examples of innovations and best practice:
bit.ly/bbcovidmicrosite

Leveraging technology to
work collaboratively with

supply chain partners

In 2020, Balfour Beatty focused on accelerating
digital initiatives to improve the way it works
with its supply chain, increase efficiency,
digitise manual processes and create cost
and time savings.

One of the most noteworthy components of
the digital supplier journey is DocuSign — a
digital tool for remote, online contract signing.
Where contracts were once signed on paper
and copied multiple times for relevant parties
sent via the postal system, this has now
been taken online, increasing the speed of
completion and reducing paper waste. In
2020, 2,600 contracts were digitally signed
with 82% signed within 48 hours and some
even being returned within the hour. This
significant improvement shows the true
benefits of maintaining momentum around
the digitisation of manual processes for
advantages in time saving and efficiency as
well as further developing our relationship
with sour supply chain partners.

Summary

This year has seen Balfour Beatty successfully
continue its digital transformation, accelerate
its adoption of new technology such as
Microsoft Teams, and continuously innovate
to adapt to new ways of working imposed by
the COVID-19 pandemic to not only support
our recovery but also to emerge stronger than
before. We have worked with our customers,
supply chain partners and with governments
more closely than ever before, innovating at
pace to ensure the industry could safely keep
essential operations running, supporting jobs
and economic growth at a time when this was
desperately needed.

SCAN HERE TO WATCH VIDEOS OF
OUR LATEST INNOVATIONS

4D Modelling

Concrete
Sensors
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WHAT WE DO

In the UK, Balfour Beatty
operates across construction
and infrastructure support
services. These projects range
from generational projects like
HS2 to long term maintenance
contracts for local councils.

i
" The Group's US and Hong

i Kong businesses operate

| across transport infrastructure
T and buildings construction

segments with projects
spanning social infrastructure
such as hospitals and schools
to heavy infrastructure
projects such as the Los
Angeles Airport automated
people mover and the third
runway at Hong Kong Airport.

8
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Victory Commons 1, Dallas, Texas

This US$101 million project involves the construction of a 375,000
square foot, 12-storey office building comprising 11 levels of office
space and a seven-storey parking garage to be completed in 2021.

LEAN

The project utilises pull
planning, a visual and
collaborative lean
construction practice,
which allowed the team
to complete the garage
early and top-out the
building on schedule,
despite the challenges of
the COVID-19 pandemic.

VICTORY NORTH
PARKING GARAGE
COMPLETED
IN 2015

EXPERT

The team leveraged
established and
collaborative supply
chain relationships to
ensure a cost effective
solution and timely
project commencement
in 2019.

TRUSTED

Balfour Beatty is the
partner of choice for the
customer, Hillwood
Development, having
worked with them for
over 15 years and
successfully delivered
numerous projects
including the 14-storey
Perot Museum Nature of
Science building.

SAFE

The team carefully
planned project
deliveries to the site
coordinating with the
City of Dallas and Dallas
County to ensure the
safety of visitors to the
adjacent temporary
COVID-19 testing facility.

SUSTAINABLE

Approximately 96% of
all waste hauled from
the Victory Commons 1
construction site is
recyclable, befitting a
project that is targeting
LEED Silver certification,
an internationally
recognised green building
certification accreditation.

DALLAS HORSESHOE

ROAD IMPROVEMENT

SCHEME COMPLETED
IN 2017

yodai a16sjensg
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5% ROAD IMPROVEMENT
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Construction

Services

Our Construction Services businesses operate
across infrastructure and buildings markets in the
UK, the US and in joint venture in Hong Kong.

UNDERLYING REVENUE!

£6,964m

2019:£6,858m

STATUTORY REVENUE

£5,968m

2019: £5,95Tm

UNDERLYING PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£29m

2019: £125m

STATUTORY PROFIT FROM
OPERATIONS

£41m

2019: £126m

ORDER BOOK'

£13.7bn

2019:£11.1bn

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates,

before non-underlying items.

_ E Discover more at
balfourbeatty.com

Key points

> Resilient revenue performance following
2019 order book increase

> Material impact on profit as a result
of COVID-19

» UK Construction impacted by site
closures, lower productivity, additional
operating costs and contract re-assessments

£8 million profit in H2 adjusting for
repayment of UK Job Retention Scheme

US Construction impacted by site
closures, slowdown in hospitality sector
and contract re-assessments

Revenue and PFO up 10% at Gammon;
Hong Kong less impacted due to lessons
learnt from SARS experience

Financial review

COVID-19 had a material impact on the financial
performance of Construction Services in
2020. The underlying revenue increased by
2% to £6,964 million (2019: £6,858 million),
a 2% increase at CER, as a result of higher
volumes at Gammon. Underlying profit from
operations reduced to £29 million (2019:
£125 million) with the UK particularly impacted
by COVID-19. The order book increased to
£13.7 billion (2019: £11.1 billion) following
Notice to Proceed at HS2.

Revenue in the UK decreased by 1% to
£2,190 million (2019: £2,213 million) as an
expected increase given prior year order book
growth was offset by site closures and other
disruption caused by COVID-19. The national
lockdown in the second quarter of the year,
where Scotland was effectively closed

and productivity in London was limited
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TOTAL REVENUE'

81%

2019: 82%

due to public transport availability, led to
a lengthening of site programmes which
triggered a reassessment of the Group’s
contract end forecast positions.

UK Construction reported an underlying loss
from operations of £23 million in the first half
of the year. This increases to a £34 million
loss after adjustment for the intended repayment
of funds received through the UK Job Retention
Scheme which together with a profit of

£8 million for the second half resulted in a
full year underlying loss from operations of
£26 million (2019: £47 million profit). Specific
sectors, such as aviation, have seen a
material slowdown throughout the year.

The UK Construction order book more than
doubled during the year to £6.4 billion (2019:
£3.0 billion) following Notice to Proceed at
HS2. Balfour Beatty, in joint venture with
VINCI, will deliver Lots N1 and N2 south of
Birmingham — comprising extensive earthworks,
ground engineering, viaducts and tunnels
along a 90-kilometre stretch —and the London
hub station at Old Oak Common. The increase
in order book occurred whilst maintaining the
Group's policy of selective bidding. During
Build to Last, there has also been a shift
towards a lower risk contract portfolio in UK
Construction, with a reduction in the number
of fixed price contracts offset by an increase
in target cost contracts and framework
agreements. Both target cost contracts and
framework agreements require early contract
involvement with the customer to ensure
greater clarity around scope, schedule and
cost which, in combination, reduces delivery
risk for all parties. As at December 2020, the
UK order book was 80% target cost and cost
reimbursable compared to 50% at June 2018.


www.balfourbeatty.com

Revenue in the US increased marginally

by 1% (2% at CER) to £3,789 million

(2019: £3,752 million) as an expected
increase given prior year order book growth
was broadly offset by site closures and other
disruption. In part due to the impact of
COVID-19, there were a number of civil
infrastructure projects where operational
developments led to contractual recoveries
and end of contract forecast positions being
re-assessed which contributed to the
underlying profit from operations for the year
reducing to £26 million (2019: £52 million).
Following a 25% rise in 2019, the order book
decreased 20% to £5.2 billion (17% at CER)
following a slow down of orders in the second
half of the year. Although nationwide forecasts
show a decline in the overall construction
market, Balfour Beatty is positioned in
regions that are expected to perform better
than the national forecast as demographic
shifts continue to favour the Group's chosen
states (Southern Smile) in the medium term.

At Gammon, Balfour Beatty's 50:50 joint
venture based in Hong Kong, the Group’s
share of revenue increased by 10% (10% at
CER) to £985 million (2019: £893 million).
Underlying profit increased to £29 million
(2019: £26 million), as the impact of COVID-19
in Hong Kong has been lower than in the
other geographies in which the Group operates
and in response to the pandemic the Government
provided an employee assistance scheme.
This is partly due to Hong Kong's experiences
from other viruses such as SARS which has
meant that wearing face masks in public is
part of the culture. Given the timing of the
spread of COVID-19, the Group has been
able to take learnings from Gammon, such as
working safely and efficiently in enclosed
spaces whilst maintaining social distancing,
and apply them across the rest of the Group.

MAGIC MOMENTS

UK: Gedling Access Road, Nottinghamshire County Council. Photo credit: Paul Stephenson

MAGIC MOMENTS

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 2020 2019
Revenue’ PFO Order book" Revenue' PFO Order book'
£m £m £bn £m £m fbn
UK 2,190 (26) 6.4 2,213 a7 3.0
us 3,789 26 5.2 3,752 52 6.5
Gammon 985 29 21 893 26 1.6
Underlying? 6,964 29 13.7 6,858 125 1.1
Non-underlying 6 12 - 6 1 =
Total 6,970 41 13.7 6,864 126 1.1

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates.
2 Before non-underlying items (Note 10).

A reconciliation of the Group's performance measures to its statutory results is provided in the Measuring our financial performance section.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

#

The order book at Gammon increased by
31% (31% at CER) to £2.1 billion (2019: £1.6
billion) following significant wins at Hong
Kong Airport, which is expanding capacity by
adding a third runway. Gammon has been
awarded contracts for the expansion of the
Terminal 2 building and to deliver tunnels and
associated works for an automatic people
mover and baggage handling system. In
addition, Gammon won another Central
Kowloon Route contract to deliver buildings,
mechanical and electrical works for the
Highways Department.

Operational review

UK Construction

In November, the UK Government released
details of its five-year plan, the National
Infrastructure Strategy (NIS), which sets out
the UK Government's plans to transform
infrastructure to drive economic recovery,
levelling up and meeting the UK's net zero
emissions target by 2050. The £640 billion of
funding for developments in roads, railways,
power networks, schools, hospitals and
telecommunications represents an increase of
around £100 billion compared to the status quo.

Included within the NIS are budgets for some
of the Group’s key customers such as Highways
England and Network Rail. At Highways England
the second Road Investment Strategy (RIS2)
has been increased by a further £2 billion for
delivery of additional projects such as the
Lower Thames Crossing. The total budget of

MAGIC MOMENTS |
s

UK: Hinkley Point C, EDF Energy. Photo credit: Patrick Brady

£27 billion over the 2020-2025 period is a
significant increase over the £15 billion spent
during RIS1 (2015-2020). At Network Rail
the work focus is shifting with maintenance
and renewals receiving an extra £10 billion of
funding as part of the total CP6 budget at
£53 billion (2019-2024) — materially higher
than CP5 where £38 billion was spent in the
period 2014-2019.

In December, the UK Government launched
the Construction Playbook, which sets out a
shared ambition between government and
industry for the sector to deliver public sector
works in a more modern and efficient way.
The 14 key policies in the Playbook set out
how the Government will assess, procure
and deliver construction and outlines the role
the construction sector will play in both the
UK’s recovery from COVID-19 and work to
bring greenhouse gas emissions down to net
zero by 2050. The publication of the Playbook
builds on the great strides made by industry
and the Government in recent years, notably
during COVID-19, and is instrumental in
ensuring the sector moves forward together
with its key customer.

Balfour Beatty is one of 30 companies working
in a new partnership with the Government to
steer the COVID-19 economy recovery as
part of the Build Back Better Business
Council. The council will focus on innovation,
infrastructure and skills — all key Balfour
Beatty themes.
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Whilst the infrastructure market, with the
highest level of investment in decades,

is positive the buildings market is more
challenging. Balfour Beatty will continue
to be selective in the work that it bids,
through increased bid margin thresholds,
improved risk frameworks and improved
contract governance.

Following the Grenfell Tower tragedy in 2017,
the Group mobilised a dedicated team to review
its approach to building fire safety. This
included expert advice, enhancing its training
and development approach and establishing
a Fire and Building Safety resource. The current
landscape around building fire safety in the
UK is complex, involves multiple stakeholders
and is an industry-wide issue. In the UK, the
Group is currently investigating a small
number of completed building projects with
cladding, alongside the building owners or
the developers, to agree the right course

of action.

The Brexit transition period between the EU
and UK came to an end on 31 December 2020
and the Trade and Co-operation Agreement,
which governs significant aspects of the
trade relationship between the UK and EU, is
now in force. Balfour Beatty's Group-wide
committee continues to monitor developments
and issue guidance, particularly in relation to
the flow of goods and people across borders.
Specific risks and mitigations continue to be
monitored at a project level and controlled by
individual business units.

The UK Construction business is organised
into two business units consisting of:

2 Major Projects: focused on complex
projects in key market sectors such as
transportation (road and rail), heavy
infrastructure and energy; and

2 Regional: civil engineering, ground
engineering, mechanical and electrical
engineering, and building, providing private
and public customers with locally delivered
flexible and fully integrated civil and
building services.

At Major Projects, the A14, Britain's largest
road project, opened to traffic in May, eight
months early. The Balfour Beatty joint venture
upgraded the 21-mile stretch between
Cambridge and Huntingdon from two to
three lanes in each direction and built a new
12-mile bypass south of Huntingdon. To open
the scheme early, the integrated delivery
team focused on innovative and sustainable
construction methods with the use of digital
asset management and in-field visualisation
software. In addition, the Group also opened
the M6 Junction 2-4a Smart Motorway
project on time in March 2020.



#

MAGIC MOMENTS
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UK: Vine Street student accommodation, Urbanest. Photo credit: Tim Moat

At the M4 Smart Motorway contract,

a Balfour Beatty VINCI joint venture is
converting the hard shoulder into an
additional lane for traffic and introducing
electronically policed variable speed restrictions
between junctions 3 and 12. During the year,
the scheme reached a major milestone by
completing its final bridge demolition. The
project has now passed the halfway point
and remains on track for completion in 2022.

At the Hinkley Point C nuclear power plant,
Balfour Beatty achieved two important
milestones in the year, completing the
tunnelling for intake tunnel 1 and the final
concrete pour on the first intake head which
will sit on the sea-bed. The project, to
construct a pair of underwater tunnels to
supply the nuclear power station with cooling
water and a third tunnel to discharge heated
water back into the Bristol Channel, is using
three tunnel boring machines to excavate
around nine kilometres of tunnel.

At HS2, Notice to Proceed was issued in
April with the formal start of construction in
September. Balfour Beatty, in joint venture
with VINCI, will deliver the c. £5 billion Area
North section south of Birmingham. Balfour
Beatty's in-depth expertise in delivering
critical major infrastructure across the UK
will combine with and complement VINCI's
global capability in high speed rail. Construction
is already well underway, with over 250
Balfour Beatty employees transferred to the

project, as all four key dates required in 2020
were delivered to schedule.

HS2 also awarded a Balfour Beatty/VINCI/
SYSTRA joint venture a c. £1 billion construction
management contract for the Old Oak
Common station in London. Balfour Beatty
and VINCI each have a 41.75% share in that
joint venture, with SYSTRA having the
remaining 16.5%. Procurement processes
continue across multiple HS2 workstreams.
In December, a Balfour Beatty/VINCI/TSO
joint venture was shortlisted for four lots of
track systems contracts and a Balfour Beatty
/ NG Bailey joint venture was shortlisted for a
tunnel and M&E systems contract. The
Group will also tender for contracts on Phase
2a, which was approved by parliament in
February 2021, as the line extends north of
Birmingham to Crewe.

In addition to adding HS2 contracts to the
order book, Balfour Beatty secured a place
on Highways England’s Smart Motorway
Alliance (SMA). The Group was named as
one of three contractor delivery partners in
the SMA that will deliver the future smart
motorway programme worth up to £4.5 billion
over 10 years. Of the three delivery partners,
Balfour Beatty will be predominantly responsible
for Southern England where the Group will
manage and deliver construction activity and
associated engineering works, including the
conversion of existing motorway infrastructure,
reconstruction of bridges and installation of

roadside technology, to improve the safety
and capacity of the strategic road network.

The Regional business comprises:

> Regional Construction: public and private
projects, providing customers with locally
delivered, flexible and fully integrated civil
and construction services;

> Balfour Beatty Ground Engineering:
specialist geotechnical contractor providing
innovative piling and ground improvement
solutions; and

> Balfour Beatty Kilpatrick: heavy mechanical
and electrical (M&E) installations and
building services.

Construction procurement in the UK
continues to evolve, presenting opportunities
for progressive and collaborative contractors.
Leading the way are innovative frameworks
such as SCAPE, Crown Commercial Services
(CCS) and NHS Shared Business Services
(SBS) which are redefining how construction
is procured nationwide, and Balfour Beatty is
participating as a major contractor on all. The
frameworks allow local authorities, local
enterprise partnerships and other public
sector bodies to commission works through
a procurement process that provides the
fastest route to market. In October 2018, it
was announced that Balfour Beatty had been
appointed as the sole contractor to SCAPE's
second-generation civil engineering
frameworks, valued at a combined total of up
to £2.1 billion over four years (2019-2022). In
December 2020, as part of the £10.5 billion
NHS SBS, it was announced that Balfour
Beatty had been selected as one of seven
contractors on Lot 5: Public Sector (National)
£35m+. As part of the UK Government'’s
Build Back Better initiative these frameworks
will become increasingly important to help
kick start the UK economy.

In the year, the Regional business successfully
completed the new temporary NHS Louisa
Jordan hospital, at Glasgow's Scottish Events
Campus (SEC), on behalf of the Scottish
Government. Acting as principal contractor,
Balfour Beatty, along with its local supply
chain and partner contractors, completed the
works in just 20 days. In addition, the Group
is currently constructing a ‘'mega lab’ in the
Midlands which, when completed, will
materially increase the UK's coronavirus
testing capability.

Despite the impact of COVID-19, which led
to delays on projects in the Regional business,
good progress continues to be made on
many of its contracts with a major milestone
reached following completion of Eastern
Gateway Phase 1, part of the Wokingham
Major Highways programme which
comprises 10 road projects that are being
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delivered under the SCAPE framework for
Wokingham Borough Council. Other material
ongoing projects include: the seven-storey
'MEC Hall’ building at the £287 million
Manchester Engineering Campus Development
(MECD) project; the £267 million contract to
complete the Midland Metropolitan University
Hospital in Birmingham; the £186 million
contract to construct student accommodation
at the University of Sussex; the £96 million
Caernarfon bypass project in North Wales;
the £83 million East Leeds Orbital Road
project; and phase one of the East Wick and
Sweetwater residential project at the Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park.

Although COVID-19 has delayed the contract
signing of some large projects in the Regional
pipeline the Group was awarded a £197 million
contract to construct Phase Two of the
Lewisham Gateway regeneration scheme on
behalf of Lewisham Gateway Developments.
The contract will see Balfour Beatty construct
four mixed-use buildings, including 530
homes for rent, 119 co-living units, a cinema
and gym, office facilities, as well as retail and
restaurant areas. Included in awarded but not
contracted (ABNC) at 31 December 2020,
the Group has been selected as preferred
bidder for a new Mayfield Riverside
retirement complex.

US Construction

There is strong bi-partisan support for
accelerated infrastructure investment in the
US. The new President’s economic recovery
plan, called Build Back Better, includes
investing in modern, sustainable infrastructure
— from roads to bridges, to energy grids and
schools. In the US approximately 80% of
revenues are generated from the general
building market (Buildings), with the civil
infrastructure market (Civils) accounting for
the remaining 20%.

The US Buildings business operates in
specifically chosen growth regions. As the
population further migrates south and west,
it continues to drive urbanisation and demand
for buildings and social infrastructure. The
construction management business (lower
risk contract with the contractor principally
responsible for delivery risk) is focused on
specific states, known internally as ‘The
Southern Smile’. This starts in the Pacific
Northwest, runs through California, Texas,
Florida and up through Georgia and the
Carolinas to Washington D.C. The core
markets remain as commercial, education,
hospitality, residential and healthcare. Balfour
Beatty was recently named the Southeast’s
No.1 contractor in the education sector for
2020 (Florida, North Carolina, South Carolina,
Georgia, Alabama and Tennessee) and has
long been one of the largest education
contractors in California (ENR rank No.2).

MAGIC MOMENTS

US: The Atelier residential tower, Zom Living. Photo credit: Cameron Wahl

This diversified geographical and operational
capability provides resilience against the recent
slowdown in the Buildings market as a result
of COVID-19. With blue-chip repeat customers
and significant state-backed education bonds,
including another US$13 billion approved in
California at the same time as the Presidential
election in November, the Group's opportunities
remain robust in the medium term.

In the year, Buildings completed several
notable projects including:

> 1331 Maryland: In October, Balfour Beatty
completed a 14-storey luxury apartment
project providing residents with unrivalled
views of Washington D.C. The project has
won a number of awards, including being
named ‘Best Project’ in the Speciality
Construction category by ENR MidAtlantic;

> Jacksonville Regional Transportation
Centre (JRTC): the 67,000 square foot
project delivered 21 bus bays, seven bus
staging bays and space for future micro
and e-mobility solutions. The JRTC was
awarded ‘Project of the Year' by the
Associated Builders and Contractors,
Florida First Coast Chapter in the
institutional US$25-100 million category;

2 Hoover High School: located in San Diego,
California, Balfour Beatty demolished three
buildings replacing them with new
classrooms, administrative building,
theatre and outdoor courtyard;

> Legacy Magnet Academy: located in Tustin,
California, Balfour Beatty constructed this
new 1,400 pupil school in time for the
2020/21 academic year. The project was
built on a former Marine Corps Air Station
and was designed to mimic aircraft hangers
and incorporate elliptical glulam beams and
trellis steel on a 32-acre site which also
includes an outdoor amphitheatre;
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> Capitol Crossing: located in Washington
D.C., a 2.2 million square foot multi-phase
development including two LEED Platinum
certified 12-storey office buildings and a
700,000 square foot parking garage; and

2 River Landing: located in Miami, Florida,
Balfour Beatty delivered 360,000 square
feet of commercial space, 118,000 square
feet of office space, 528 apartments, more
than 2,000 parking spaces and a
landscaped riverwalk.

During the year, progress has been made on
significant projects including:

2 Pavilion at Penn: in response to COVID-19,
the Pavilion at Penn Medicine project in
Pennsylvania fast-tracked 120 patient
rooms 15 months ahead of the facility’s
planned opening, with Balfour Beatty
employees working around the clock for
17 days to deliver 122,000 square feet of
space in the emergency department as
part of the project to deliver a 1.5 million
square foot hospital with 47 operating rooms;

2 The University of North Carolina at
Wilmington: Balfour Beatty completed the
first phase of the project with over 1,000
beds available for freshman students from
August. The second phase of the project,
providing a further 776 beds, will be
delivered in August 2021;

2 Bowie State University (BSU): construction
of the BSU project commenced in
February 2020 and in November, Balfour
Beatty topped out the project in Maryland.
Scheduled to open in August 2021, the
170,000 square foot housing community
will bring 557 beds to the campus, as well
as a variety of amenities; and



#

2 Pacific Beach Middle School: in December,
Balfour Beatty topped out work on a
two-storey classroom hall. In addition,
there will be three new classrooms in the
library media centre, as well as renovation
and expansion of other amenities.

In the year, the Buildings business
booked material new phases of existing
contracts and standalone new contract
awards as follows:

2 Microsoft Redmond Campus: in 2018, the
Group was selected, in joint venture with
Skanska, as general contractor on Microsoft's
head office refresh in Redmond, Washington.
The next phase of the project which in total
will deliver 18 new buildings, clustered into
four distinct villages to create a unified
campus, was signed in March 2020;

> Broward County Convention Center: in
2019, Balfour Beatty signed a construction
agreement for the expansion of the Broward
County Convention Center and new
construction of an 800-room hotel. In
January 2020, the second phase (of five)
of the US$780 million project in Fort
Lauderdale, Florida, was signed;

2 Museum Place: Balfour Beatty has been
awarded a US$127 million contract for a
redevelopment project that will renovate
the historic Randall School creating a
vibrant arts campus and new residential
apartment building in Washington D.C;

> Epic Phase II: having successfully
completed Epic Phase | in 2019, Balfour
Beatty has been selected to construct the
next phase of the project in downtown
Dallas, Texas which will include the largest
Uber office outside of San Francisco; and

2 Walter Tower: Balfour Beatty has been
contracted to construct the US$100 million
Walter Tower, a premier luxury residential
tower which will be one of the tallest
residential buildings in Raleigh,

North Carolina.

Included in ABNC at year end, US Buildings
has been made preferred bidder for:

a US$160 million project for the Oxnard
Union High School District, California;

and a US$110 million luxury apartment
development featuring two 24-storey
towers in West Palm Beach, Florida.

In Civils, the Group is focused on highway
projects in Texas and North Carolina and mass
transit rail projects in major cities across the
US, including the electrification of existing
lines. These large and growing markets are
supported by the ¢. US$77 billion 2020 Unified
Transportation Program (UTP) from the
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT)
and a number of state-backed infrastructure

bonds (over US$200 billion of multi-state
transportation bonds). As part of the ongoing
process to focus the business, Balfour Beatty
has decided to exit the water sector.

In October, a Balfour Beatty joint venture
team opened the US 183 South expressway
to traffic in Austin, Texas. After four years

of construction, over 95% of the US 183
corridor from US 290 to SH 71 is now operating
as the primary route to and from the airport
serving as an alternative to 1-35 and providing
significant improvements to the corridor,
including new multi-modal transportation
options, improved safety, system connectivity,
travel times and congestion relief. In September,
the North Metro Rail line project (known as
the ‘N line’) officially opened to the public in
Denver, Colorado, following completion of six
new stations and 13 miles of track.

Significant progress has also been made on
key projects with the following all now over half
way through construction: the US$625 million
Southern Gateway (45% Balfour Beatty, 55%
Fluor Corporation) project; the US$1.08 billion
Green Line extension (25% Balfour Beatty)
project; and the Caltrain project, a US$697
million contract for the electrification of the
52-mile rail corridor between San Francisco
and San Jose. Following the joint venture
(Balfour Beatty 30%) breaking ground on the
Los Angeles International Airport’s (LAX)
Automated People Mover (APM) project in
2019, the project took a significant step with
the placing of concrete for the first segment
of the 2.25 mile elevated guideway and
completing structural steel erection activities
for the Maintenance and Storage Facility
(MSF). Once complete, the APM will
transport travellers into and out of LAX. The
APM electric train system will connect LAX
passengers to airline terminals, a rental car
facility, a parking facility and the Metro's
regional transit system.
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At IH-635 (45% Balfour Beatty, 55% Fluor
Corporation) in Texas, the design is complete
and construction activities have commenced.
In August, Balfour Beatty was awarded,

in joint venture with Fluor Corporation,

a contract to deliver the Oak Hill Parkway
infrastructure project for TxXDOT. The project
will reconstruct and widen approximately
seven miles of interstate highway and
improve long-term mobility for communities
in Austin, Texas.

Gammon

Gammon has a material share of the Hong
Kong market which continues to deliver a
strong pipeline of infrastructure and
construction projects. Historically the Hong
Kong market has benefited from high public
sector investment, which appears set to
continue with the Government'’s recently
announced ambition (budget speech in
February 2021) to increase this spend
significantly over the medium term. Major
expansions of the Hong Kong Airport and
MTR subway system have started and are
expected to continue in the coming years,
whilst social infrastructure programmes to
develop hospitals and universities are well
underway. This increase in public spend is
set to offset a slowdown in the commercial
construction sector.

In Buildings, the focus is on the use of
Design for Manufacture and Assembly
(DfMA) and modular construction to improve
productivity and efficiency and expanding the
customer base on a selective basis. In Civils,
the strategy is to lever engineering
excellence, with a key area of future work
likely to be from significant infrastructure
programmes in Hong Kong and in Singapore.

US: Thunderbird flyover over the Pavilion Penn Medicine project. Photo credit: Joseph Ebert
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

During the year, the Buildings business
helped fast-track temporary COVID-19
quarantine facilities by providing project
management and mechanical, electrical and
plumbing services to construct 110 units at
Penny’s Bay in just 64 days. Subsequently in
June, Gammon was awarded a contract for

Phase Il of the temporary quarantine facilities

including construction of a 5G Smart control
centre giving the project management team
control over all aspects of the works at all
phases, whether on-site or off-site. The
centre ensured all members of the team had
access to the latest design and enhanced
collaborative working such that over 700
units were installed in just one month. The
business also designed and installed the
heaviest DFMA thermal tanks in Hong Kong
at the Global Switch Data Centre (Phase 2)
project in Tseung Kwan O.

Work has continued on major Buildings
projects including the construction of M+,

a new 33 gallery museum in the West
Kowloon Cultural District of Hong Kong and
the Lohas Park project to deliver three 54-56
storey residential towers. Work has also
continued on a number of Civils projects in
Hong Kong, including Tuen Mun-Chek Lap
Kok Link Northern Connection, where
Gammon is providing electrical and mechanical
facilitation to serve the newly constructed
5-kilometre tunnel, and the Sai Sha Road
widening project.

In December 2019, Gammon moved into a
new office it has constructed at Quayside. In
2020, the building achieved Gold level WELL
Precertification, making Gammon the first
construction company in Hong Kong to have
been awarded this international designation.
The WELL Building Standard is awarded by
the International WELL Building Institute and
has become a central certification in the
growing importance of developing buildings
that promote the health and wellbeing of its
users. WELL focuses on seven categories of
building performance: air, water, nourishment,
light, fitness, comfort and mind.

In addition, Gammon's plant yard was
awarded a top prize at the China Light and
Power Smart Energy Awards. Gammon
Technology Park which incorporates all plant
and equipment operations, including design
and development, maintenance, assembly
and disassembly capabilities won the Grand
Award in the category of best renewable
energy for the installation of a new solar
panel system on the roof of the main building.
Gammon has also received the ISO 19650
Kitemark certification, making it one of the
few companies in Hong Kong to be recognised
for its wider digital transformation. The
British Standards Institute (BSI) Kitemark for
innovation management has been designed
to help organisations improve their
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Hong Kong: Central Kowloon Route - buildings,
mechanical and electrical works, Highways Department,
HKSAR Government. Photo Credit: Lee Ho Hang

performance and demonstrate the value and
impact of their innovation outcomes to
stakeholders and customers.

Gammon had a number of notable new
contract awards in the year including:

2 Hong Kong Airport Terminal 2 expansion:
Gammon'’s largest ever award, a HK$12.9
billion contract for Airport Authority Hong
Kong to expand the main Terminal 2
building and construct interconnecting
bridges, mechanical and electrical works
as well as associated viaducts and roads.
The expansion of Terminal 2 forms part of

the three-runway system project, which on

completion will allow for both arrivals and

departures from one terminal and increase

overall passenger capacity;

2 Hong Kong Airport automatic people mover

(APM): a HK$7.2 billion contract for Airport

Authority Hong Kong to construct tunnels

and related works for an APM and baggage

handling system (BHS). The scope of work
includes combined 1.8 kilometre-long
eight-cell tunnel structures for the APM and
BHS systems, 19 ancillary buildings, as
well as building services and airport
systems; and
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Hong Kong: Central Kowloon Route - Kai Tak West,
Highways Department, HKSAR Government.
Photo credit: Lunggy Fung

> Central Kowloon Route M&E: a
HK$5.7 billion contract by the Highways
Department of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
to construct buildings, mechanical and
electrical works for the Central Kowloon
Route (CKR). Gammon is also constructing
the Kai Tak West Section of the CKR which
includes underwater and cut-and-cover
tunnels, as well as roads.



Support
Services

Our Support Services businesses operate principally
in the UK, designing, upgrading, managing and
maintaining critical national infrastructure.

Key points

2 Revenue and profit demonstrate
strong resilience

» Contracts generally designated as
critical infrastructure

» Acceleration of some road and rail
projects, offset by economic uncertainty

> Focus on power, road and rail maintenance

2 Exiting UK gas and water markets

Financial review

Although impacted by COVID-19, Support
Services has shown strong resilience in the
year. The Group was able to accelerate road
and rail maintenance programmes for some
customers due to lower volumes of traffic
in the year, but this was offset by other
customers reducing maintenance expenditure
given the economic uncertainty.

Support Services revenue increased by 4%
to £1,067 million (2019: £1,023 million) as

a result of higher volumes at power transmission
and distribution, and transportation. Underlying
profit from operations for the year was
broadly in line at £46 million (2019: £47 million)
as the increase in volume was offset by
disruptions caused by COVID-19. The order
book decreased to £2.7 billion (2019:

£3.2 billion) following the Group's decision
to withdraw from the gas and water sectors.

Operational review

The Support Services segment comprises
utilities and transportation businesses. Utilities
operates across power transmission and
distribution and the gas and water sectors.
Transportation operates across rail, highways
and managed road schemes for local authorities.
The overall market is positive with areas of
growth in power, road and rail partially offset
by areas of decline in gas and water where
Balfour Beatty is withdrawing from the
market as future opportunities do not meet
the Group's selective bidding criteria.

The power transmission and distribution
sector is likely to see a wave of new demand
as the UK’s Build Back Better initiative is
underpinned by key environmental targets.
Investments in renewable energy (wind
power and new nuclear generation capacity)
will provide the power business with material
opportunities over the medium term. The
highways maintenance market is forecast to
see significant investment with the announcement
of an additional £2.5 billion in funding, increasing
local council budgets by 45% over the next
five years. Further, over £700 million of
outsourced contracts are up for renewal
between 2021 and 2025. The rail maintenance
market also has a positive trajectory with an
additional £10 billion of funding for renewals
as part of the latest Network Rail control
period (CP6).

Utilities revenue increased by 3% to £565 million
(2019: £551 million) whilst the order book
decreased to £0.7 billion (2019: £1.0 billion),
as the current regulatory cycles in gas and
water reach the end of their periods in 2021
and 2020 respectively.

TOTAL REVENUE'

12%

2019:12%

UNDERLYING REVENUE'

£1,067m

2019:£1,023m

STATUTORY REVENUE

£1,037m

2019:£991m

UNDERLYING PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

£46m

2019: £47m

STATUTORY PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS

£50m

2019: £(11)m

ORDER BOOK'

£2.7bn

2019:£3.2bn

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates,
before non-underlying items.

_ E Discover more at
balfourbeatty.com
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Performance at power transmission and
distribution continues to improve, with a clear
plan to deliver key projects such as Hinkley
Point C overhead cabling, Viking Link,
Inveraray-Crossaig and the National Grid
and SSE portfolios. During the year, work
commenced at the Viking Link project, a
£90 million contract to deliver the onshore
civil works for the Viking Link interconnector
project with National Grid Ventures. As part
of the four-year contract Balfour Beatty will
be responsible for the civil engineering and
installation of 68 kilometres of high voltage
cabling across Lincolnshire.

In December, the Group was awarded a

£48 million contract to design and build a
new 400 kilovolt (kV) substation in Peterhead,
Scotland on behalf of SSEN Transmission.
The contract for a 25,000 square metre
substation with associated cabling and
overhead line works, forms part of the East
Coast Reinforcement programme, which will
strengthen the network in the area and
facilitate the connection of more renewable
energy generation to the national grid.

In gas, Balfour Beatty delivers network
maintenance and asset enhancements for
the largest gas distribution companies in the
UK and Ireland. The Group continues to
manage two long term gas contracts in the
RI1O-GD1 period (until second quarter 2021)
which have historically underperformed. The
gas market is no longer considered viable to
the Group because of the unfavourable working
capital and onerous terms and conditions.

The water business has completed the end
of the current UK water regulatory cycle (AMP6
2015-2020). Under the new AMP7 regulatory
period (2020-2025) contracts are generally
being awarded on terms that are not acceptable
to Balfour Beatty and therefore the Group has
only retained one contract (Anglian Water).

SUPPORT SERVICES

MAGIC MOMENTS
e saitour Beany
SOUTHA 0w

Working in partnership
1 -

UK: Hinkley Connection Project, EDF Energy. Photo credit: Michelle Collins

Order book! (Ebn)
Revenue' (Em)

Profit from operations? (Em)
Non-underlying items (Em)

Statutory profit/(loss) from operations (Em)

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates.
2 Before non-underlying items (Note 10).

A reconciliation of the Group’s performance measures to its statutory results is provided in the Measuring our financial performance section.
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Transportation revenues increased by 6%
to £602 million (2019: £472 million) whilst
the order book decreased to £2.0 billion
(2019: £2.2 billion).

Balfour Beatty continues to maintain,
manage and operate major highway and

road networks across the UK. The largest
contract, for M25 Connect Plus, will continue
for another 20 years. During the year, the
M25 Connect Plus team was awarded The
Chartered Institution of Highways and
Transportation (CIHT) UK Climate Change
award 2020 for its innovative surfacing trial
using 50% reclaimed asphalt.

The largest contract in rail maintenance is
for Network Rail under a £1.5 billion Central
Track Alliance contract. Balfour Beatty has

UK: Inveraray to Crossaig project, Scottish Hydro Electric Transmission (SSEN). Photo credit: Adrian Smith

-

an 80% share in the ten-year alliance which
is responsible for the development, design
and delivery of track renewals and crossings,
as well as associated infrastructure works
across the London North West, London
North East and East Midland routes.
Performance has been good since contract
inception in 2019, including during COVID-19
lockdowns, with safe delivery of the work
ensuring that vital national rail infrastructure
remains operational. Work has been accelerated
where revised schedules allow renewal of
the network that would be difficult to access
under normal working conditions, such as the
rapid mobilisation and execution of the Kilsby
Tunnel project on the West Coast Main Line.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Infrastructure
Investments

Our Infrastructure Investments business develops
and finances both public and private infrastructure

projects in the UK and the US.

UNDERLYING REVENUE!

£556m

2019: £524m

STATUTORY REVENUE

£315m

2019:£371m

UNDERLYING PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

£20m

2019: £98m

STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£15m

2019:£93m

DIRECTORS’ VALUATION

£1.09bn

2019:£1.07bn

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates,

before non-underlying items.

_ E Discover more at
balfourbeatty.com

Key points

> Pre-disposals operating profit includes
provision for an estimate of historical
military housing incentive fees which the
Group has not been able to fully verify

» Continue to seek resolution on US
Department of Justice investigation

2 No disposals given market uncertainty
caused by COVID-19

2 Demand for high-quality infrastructure
assets expected to exceed supply

2 New investment opportunities in
student accommodation, US PPP
and multifamily housing

Financial review

Underlying pre-disposals operating profit

in the year decreased to £8 million (2019:
£13 million), primarily due to a provision for
an estimate of historical military housing
incentive fees which Balfour Beatty has
proposed to repay. There were no Investments
assets disposals in the year, therefore the
underlying profit from operations was also
£8 million (2019: £82 million).

As a result of the market uncertainty
generated by COVID-19, and the strong
liquidity position of the Group, Balfour Beatty
did not dispose of any Investments assets

in the year. In 2021, the Group will re-
commence selling Investments assets

timed to maximise value to shareholders

as demand for high quality infrastructure
assets in the secondary market is expected
to exceed supply.
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TOTAL REVENUE'

7%

2019:6%

Net interest income reduced to £12 million
(2019: £16 million), primarily as a result of the
recognition of impairment losses on loans to
joint ventures, contributing to an underlying
profit before tax of £20 million (2019:

£98 million).

Operational review

As a result of the market uncertainty
generated by COVID-19, the number of
transactions in 2020 was relatively low for
the Infrastructure Investments business with
only two new projects and no disposals.

Operationally, the majority of operations in
the UK continued as normal, supported by
the Government advice that private finance
initiative (PFI) contractors should consider
themselves to be part of the public sector
response to COVID-19. Availability-based
assets were not affected but a number of
demand-based road projects were impacted
by lower traffic volumes, which are expected
to recover quickly as COVID-19 restrictions
lift. The Group's strategy to invest in
on-campus accommodation in partnership
with established universities resulted in the
impact on these projects being immaterial as
universities continued to nominate rooms and
income remained strong.

In the US, Balfour Beatty Communities
continues to work with its partners to
support military families, noting that
employees are working to social distancing
rules, as agreed with the US military, which
restrict access to properties and thus
maintenance activity. The Group's strategy to
work in partnership with universities limited
the impact on US student accommodation
and in the longer term there are clear
demographic drivers to support future cash
flows for student accommodation.
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The Infrastructure Investments business
strategy is to continue to invest in new
opportunities whilst optimising value through
the disposal of operational assets. The Group
achieves enhanced returns when Infrastructure
Investments, Construction Services and
Support Services deliver as one, as currently
evidenced at Sussex University in the UK and
with the LAX people mover project in the US.
There is an inherent advantage in bidding for
projects when the Infrastructure Investments
business utilises the expertise of Construction
Services and Support Services. Additionally,
the negative working capital generated in the
Construction Services business provides
opportunity for Infrastructure Investments.
The business continues to see significant
opportunities for future investment in its
chosen geographic markets, particularly in
the US where the focus is on student
accommodation, multifamily housing and
public-private partnership (PPP) opportunities.

Under the Military Housing Privatization
Initiative (MHPI) established in the US in
1996, Balfour Beatty Communities (BBC)
manages more than 43,000 family housing
properties across 55 Army, Navy and Air
Force bases under long term concessions.
This spans financing the project development,
designing and constructing new houses and
community amenities, renovating older
legacy properties inherited from the military
so that they meet modern requirements, and
managing day to day property leasing and
maintenance services, within the project'’s
budget that is approved by the government.

In June 2019, allegations about the handling
of certain work orders were publicised about
a number of military bases managed by
Balfour Beatty Communities (BBC).
Subsequently, the US Department of Justice
(DoJ) commenced an investigation into the
allegations of false claims. Balfour Beatty
instructed Hunton Andrews Kurth LLP, BBC's
outside counsel, to conduct its own
investigation, and BBC proactively contacted

MAGIC MOMENTS

US: Fort Bliss Family Homes.
Photo credit: Jennifer Adauto

the DoJ to notify them of the review. Balfour
Beatty's own investigation is substantially
complete, and the Group's findings have
been shared with the DoJ.

Balfour Beatty has made a provision in its
2020 year end results for an estimate of the
historical incentive fees that its investigation
was unable to fully verify and which BBC has
proposed to be repaid. The Group's external
counsel is engaging with the DoJ, with the
intention of seeking resolution but as the DoJ
investigation is still ongoing, the Group is not
able to provide any further indication or
measure with sufficient reliability the
outcome of the investigation, including timing
or any quantum of any possible fine, penalty
or damages that may arise.

Following a series of operational challenges
at Tinker Air Force Base in Oklahoma, the US
Air Force required BBC to develop a
comprehensive Performance Improvement
Plan (PIP). The plan, which includes a variety
of objectives and performance metrics, was

(©) MAGIC MOMENTS

US: Balfour Beatty's San Mateo office.
Photo credit: Robera Bilata

agreed with the Air Force in February 2020.
All initiatives set out in the plan have been
completed, including implementing a
significant management restructuring to
better align technical support and resident
services and appointing a Transformation
Director. To date, 44 lines of effort have been
signed off by the Air Force, whilst four
remain under review.

There are opportunities for Infrastructure
Investments in the military housing sector in
connection with ongoing efforts by the US
Army to refinance its military housing projects.
Proceeds from any such refinancing of
projects within Balfour Beatty's military
housing portfolio would be used toward
continued demolition of older housing and
replacement with new construction homes,
as well as for renovations of other homes
across a number of Army bases.

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS 2020 2019

£m £m
Pre-disposals operating profit? 8 13
Gain on disposals? - 69
Profit from operations? 8 82
Net investment income* 12 16
Profit before tax? 20 98
Non-underlying items (5) (5)
Statutory profit before tax 15 93

2 Before non-underlying items (Note 10).

+ Subordinated debt interest receivable, net interest receivable on PPP financial assets and non-recourse borrowings, and impairment to subordinated debt receivable.
A reconciliation of the Group’s performance measures to its statutory results is provided in the Measuring our financial performance section.
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DIRECTORS’ VALUATION OF THE INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO

Strong track record
of value creation

The Directors’ valuation increased 2% to £1,086
million (2019: £1,068 million), primarily as a result of
the unwind of discount in the year. The number of
projects in the portfolio decreased to 67 (2019: 69).

The Group invested £46 million (2019:

£64 million) in new and existing projects.
The two new assets were both multifamily
housing projects in the US: a 260-unit site at
Chenal Point in Little Rock, Arkansas; and a
135-unit site named Moretti at Vulcan Park in
Birmingham, Alabama. Material investment
in existing projects included student
accommodation projects at Sussex
University in the UK and the University

of Dallas, Texas.

Four projects that were all previously included
at nil value in the Directors’ valuation have
now been removed from the project count.
Two of these projects have been at preferred
bidder stage for several years without
progressing further and are no longer
expected to reach financial close. The other
two projects are no longer expected to generate
a return and have accordingly been removed.

Cash yield from distributions amounted to
£72 million (2019: £65 million) as the portfolio
continued to generate cash flow to the Group
net of investment. The continuing yield during
COVID-19 demonstrates the essential nature
of the Infrastructure Investments portfolio.
Unwind of discount at £83 million (2019:
£87 million) is a function of moving the
valuation date forward by one year with the
result that future cash flows are discounted
by twelve months less. Negative foreign
exchange movements were consistent with
prior year at £19 million (2019: £19 million)
whilst operational performance movements
resulted in a £20 million decrease (2019:
£86 million decrease).

The methodology used for the Directors’
valuation is unchanged, producing a valuation
that reflects market value and which therefore
changes with movements in the market.
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PORTFOLIO VALUATION DECEMBER 2020

Value by sector

2020 2019 2020 2019
Sector No. projects No. projects £m £m
Roads 13 13 188 206
Healthcare 3 3 114 112
Student accommodation 4 4 88 59
OFTOs 3 3 44 53
Waste and biomass 2 4 51 60
Other 4 4 29 24
UK total 29 31 514 514
US military housing 21 21 446 453
Healthcare and other PPP 2 2 21 17
Student accommodation 3 B 52 40
Residential housing 12 10 53 44
North America total 38 38 572 554
Total 67 69 1,086 1,068
Value by phase

2020 2019 2020 2019
Phase No. projects No. projects £m £m
Operations 65 62 1,037 954
Construction 2 B 49 114
Preferred bidder 0 2 - -
Total 67 69 1,086 1,068
Value by income type

2020 2019 2020 2019
Income type No. projects No. projects £m fm
Availability based 22 22 371 389
Demand - operationally proven
(2+ years) 39 38 519 517
Demand - early stage (less than
2 years) 6 9 196 162
Total 67 69 1,086 1,068




MOVEMENT IN VALUE 2019 TO 2020

Equity Distributions Sales Unwind of Operational Forex
£m 2019 invested received proceeds discount  performance movements 2020
UK 514 24 (33) — 38 (29) = 514
North America 554 22 (39) = 45 9 (19) 572
Total 1,068 46 (72) — 83 (20) (19) 1,086
Cash flows for each project are forecast
based on historical and present performance, UK PORTFOLIO VALUE AT A RANGE OF DISCOUNT RATES
future risks and macroeconomic forecasts
and which also factor in secondary market 800
assumptions. These cash flows are then
discounted using different discount rates c £e0
based on the risk and maturity of individual “ 68 570
projects and reflecting secondary market % 514
transaction experience. As in previous —§ 500 467
periods, the Directors’ valuation may differ »
significantly from the accounting book value ‘0503 400
of investments shown in the financial statements, a
which are produced in accordance with 300
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) rather than using a discounted cash O e wi5%  w1%  +05% Dvcass  05% 1% -1.5% 2%
flow approach. A full reconciliation is provided T R
in section i) of the Measuring Our Financial
Performance section. @ December 2020 December 2019
Discount rates applied to the UK portfolio
range between 7% and 10.5% depending on US PORTFOLIO VALUE AT A RANGE OF DISCOUNT RATES
project risk and maturity. The implied weighted
average discount rate for the UK portfolio is 800
8.0% (2019: 8.3%). Discount rates applied to
the North American portfolio range between c 700 652
7.5% and 10.6%. The implied weighted 2 572
average discount rate is 8.4% (2019: 8.3%). % 600 508
Consistent with other infrastructure funds, 73 66
Balfour Beatty's experience is that there is v
limited correlation between the discount rates £ 400
used to value PPP, and similar infrastructure g
investments, and long term interest rates. 300
In the event that interest rates increase in
response to rising inflation, the impact of any O e % +1% +0.5% DVcase -0.5% 1% 1.5% 2%
increase in discount rates would be mitigated Discount rate
by the positive correlation between the value
of the UK portfolio and changes in inflation. A @ December 2020 @ December 2019
1% change in the discount rate would change
the value of the UK portfolio by approximately
would change the value of the North American 1500 250
portfolio by approximately £72 million. 1250
200 &
1000 o
150 £
g 750 E
E o~ 100 3
LT I T LT TR T
E 1
4] 0 0 ]
2 oF
e 250 50 5
2 E
-500 -100 §
750 -150

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

M Distributions Investment Sales = Directors' valuation
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Our disciplined contracting is further strengthened by our approach to building the
right culture — where people are encouraged and supported to always do the right
thing, achieve high performance and make a positive difference, every day.

In this section

HEALTH, SAFETY
AND WELLBEING

The health, safety and
wellbeing of all those

who work for us and the
communities we touch
remains at the heart of our
culture and is our license
to operate.

Read more on

BUSINESS
INTEGRITY

Embedding a culture of
ethics and integrity enables
our employees and partners
to make the right choices,
empowering them to speak
up and challenge if anything
doesn't feel right.

Read more on

P52

SUSTAINABILITY

Our Building New Futures
sustainability strategy
guides our approach to help
ensure the Group leaves a
positive legacy for the
people we work with, the
communities we work in,
and the world in which

we operate.

Read more on

OUR PEOPLE

As part of our Build to Last
strategy, our strategic people
priorities include, enabling
the business, building expert
capability and creating a
great place to work.

Read more on

RISK MANAGEMENT

A robust and dynamic risk
management framework
ensures that risks are
mitigated and that the Group
adheres to both regulatory
requirements and industry
good practice when
identifying, assessing

and monitoring risk.

Read more on

Our cultural framework refresh

As part of our cultural framework refresh in 2020, we introduced two new behaviours. ‘Make a Difference’ which reflects how our
employees are a force for positive change — for the business, in their Balfour Beatty careers and for the customers and communities they
serve. 'Value Everyone' which reflects our continuing journey to nurture a truly diverse and inclusive culture, and the value we place on

different perspectives, new ideas and on giving everyone a voice. Our five behaviours are:

\We're passionate about
what we do, talking with
pride and enthusiasm
about our business, our
colleagues, our industry,
and our future.

We're at our best when we
share ideas and expertise,
build connections and work
as a team to drive
performance and
strengthen relationships.
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\We nurture a supportive
environment, empowering,
motivating and inspiring
each other with regular
and powerful feedback,
giving credit where credit
is due so we can all reach
our potential.

We challenge ourselves to
always have a positive
impact, find solutions and
stand up and be counted
when it matters.

We are inclusive,
celebrating difference and
respecting one another
for who we are and the
perspectives we bring

to the table.
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O BELOW

March Schull, Project
Executive, renovation of
Hoover High School,
San Diego
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING

Committed to creating a

safe and healthy workplace

Collaborating relentlessly. Treating Health like Safety. Leading the industry.

Our commitment
to Zero Harm

‘Safe’ is one of the five Build to Last values,
and all the Group's operations must ensure
the health and safety of everyone who
comes into contact with its activities. Zero
Harm is Balfour Beatty's vision, where no
injury, ill health or environmental incident is
caused by its work activities, and all operations
are charged with constantly improving
performance and sharing learning and

best practice.

The Group's safety culture is led by its senior
leadership team, with the Board's Safety and
Sustainability Committee reviewing the
Health Safety Environment and Sustainability
(HSES) Strategy, monitoring progress and
ensuring accountability (see page 57 to 59 in
the sustainability section for the governance
structure). Site visits by executive leaders
form one of the leading key performance
indicators (KPIs) used to monitor performance;
over 1,500 executive site visits for health and
safety were recorded in 2020.

The strategy is based around 12 key areas,
including leadership, behavioural safety,
supply chain engagement and health and
safety by design. Each of these key areas
has three-year rolling action plans, designed
to drive continual improvement.

Each year a calendar is produced, setting
out central business-wide initiatives linked to
Zero Harm. These are proactive initiatives
based on evidence and risk profile, and
include focused campaigns and Group-wide
stand downs on key topics. Each individual
site or project is encouraged to take
ownership of the resources and make safety
personal to their part of the business as well
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SUPPORTING NHS SCOTLAND

As part of Scotland'’s rapid response to COVID-19,
Balfour Beatty was commissioned to convert the
Scottish Events Campus (SEC) exhibition arena into
a field hospital, named NHS Louisa Jordan. The
conversion required the entertainment venue to be
transformed into a hospital for over 1,000 patients.

The project was mobilised incredibly quickly, and
through relentless collaboration between different
Balfour Beatty business units, alongside the Scottish
Government, military and other contractors, the
conversion was completed in just over two weeks.
Observing strict COVID-19 regulations, as well as
Making Safety Personal, 187,880 hours were worked
on the project, achieving Zero Harm.

DAYSTO
COMPLETE

20

HOURS WORKED
WITHOUT LOST
TIME INJURY

187,880

ZERO HARM



as share their innovations, learning and
successes. In 2020 focus areas included
health, lifting, segregation of people and
vehicles or plant and service strike avoidance.

Delivering excellence

The Group capitalises on its global capability,
drawing on expertise from across its different
geographies and networks to drive standards
which exceed local regulatory requirements
and push boundaries.

Balfour Beatty's target is Zero Harm, and
each day hundreds of Balfour Beatty sites
send their colleagues home safely. For example:
in the US, the South East Civils team reached
the milestone of over four million hours worked
without a lost time incident over five years; in
the UK the Thames Estuary Asset Management
team achieved two million hours of Zero Harm;
and all UK businesses worked the whole of
August without a lost time injury (LTI). Elsewhere,
Balfour Beatty drew praise from Minister for
Transport Grant Shapps, after deploying Project
Brock in just 12 hours —a 20km moveable
concrete barrier on the M20 to segregate
lorries due to the emergency COVID-19 travel
clampdown — while maintaining a record of
Zero Harm. Balfour Beatty continues to return
industry-leading performance in its lagging
indicators, such as incident rates. To continue
to drive safety performance, the Company
also sets challenging leading indicators.
Leading indicators include, but are not limited
to Fit for Role assessments, behavioural safety
programme roll-out, observations and
supervisor development plans.

Balfour Beatty won many awards in 2020 for
its health and safety performance including
27 UK Considerate Constructors Awards, of
which nine were Gold Awards. The Group's
Hong Kong based joint venture Gammon also

four Gold Considerate Constructor awards.
Balfour Beatty also received client recognition,
including four Blue Star awards for safety
innovation from Highways England.

Risk management

in response to incidents, including fatalities,
both within and outside its operations in
2020 (see page 50), the Group redoubled
its focus on Temporary Works, establishing
a Temporary Works Group Forum; an
international collaboration within Balfour
Beatty, with experts in engineering and
design, operations and HSES. The forum
reviewed, revised and strengthened Balfour
Beatty's policies and procedures around
Temporary Works, including planning, training,
competency levels, permits and hold points
to enhance existing control measures.

The Group's Fatal Risk Working Groups
(FRWG) continue. Led by operational managing
directors and supported by HSES directors,
these focus on Balfour Beatty's ten fatal risks
and eliminating risk by design. The groups
meet regularly and progress is reported at
Board, Executive Committee and operational
Safety Health, Environment & Sustainability
Leadership Team meetings. The outputs and
the ongoing work by each FRWG are published
on Balfour Beatty's intranet pages, and made
available to all Balfour Beatty personnel as
well as shared wider. Examples include
destructive testing of cabbed dumpers to
ensure operators’ safety prior to mandating
cabbed dumpers on sites in October, adopting
new mechanical planing and pothole filling
equipment to remove the workforce from the
roadside, and designing out hand-arm vibration
as part of the Group's UK Zero hand-arm
vibration syndrome by 2020 challenge.

MAJOR INJURY RATE*

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

LOST TIME INJURY RATE*

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

* Excluding international joint ventures.

Discover more at

; . . . T 1-t=3 balfourbeatty. fet
received 13 industry safety awards, including alfourbeatty.com/safety
BALFOUR BEATTY GROUP LOST TIME INJURY RATE AND OBSERVATIONS*
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www.balfourbeatty.com/safety

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING CONTINUED

#

Leading by example

The impact of COVID-19 on Balfour Beatty's
activities in 2020 necessitated a robust,
pragmatic, and risk-based response. The Group
worked hard to keep sites open and safe. In
the UK, Balfour Beatty representatives
collaborated relentlessly with relevant
industry groups to develop and update
COVID-19 Site Operating Procedures. Along
with five other companies, Balfour Beatty
commissioned a report by Loughborough
University '‘COVID-19 and construction: Early
lessons for a new normal?’ on the impact and
lessons of COVID-19 which was shared
freely and well received by government and
the industry.

Other examples of Balfour Beatty's
leadership include its continued support

and co-chairing of the Health in Construction
Leadership Group and its work with Mates

in Mind, the mental health charity for the
construction industry. Representatives from
Balfour Beatty also lead the ‘Stamp it Out’
campaign in conjunction with Safer Highways
— a campaign that seeks to eliminate violence
and aggression towards road workers.

THE BIG CONVERSATION

> 1,000 employees

> 309 projects

» International
collaboration

Promoting a culture of safety

The 2020 Group employee survey results
demonstrated consistently high engagement
scores on health and safety. 88% of responders
agreed or strongly agreed that they saw
evidence of Zero Harm being applied at their
workplace. 80% agreed or strongly agreed
that they felt able to discuss their health,
safety and wellbeing at work — an increase of
12% and 94% of employees said they felt
cared for at Balfour Beatty.

The Group's four Golden Rules remain core.
They comprise: be fit for work; always
receive a briefing; report all unsafe events;
and stop work if anything changes. Raising
observations remains key to the Group's
safety culture of reporting all unsafe events.
Over 207,000 observations were recorded
and actioned in 2020. Trials of the UK
Observation App have been well received
in the US prior to roll-out in 2021.

In November 2020, the Group launched

a health and safety initiative called The Big
Conversation. Projects from different
geographies and areas of speciality were
partnered together, to discuss fatal risks

and share lessons, advice and best practice.
Using virtual meeting rooms over 1,000
employees across over 300 projects were
linked. Topics included temporary works,
lifting and people and plant interface as well
as mental health. 80% of participants said
the conversation was worthwhile and

53% reported a direct improvement to
health and safety.

Safety performance

The Group's lost time injury rate (LTIR)
improved for the sixth consecutive year from
0.14 to 0.10, excluding international joint
ventures, and since the start of Build to Last
in 2014 has reduced by 66%. Other health
and safety lagging indicators also fell in 2020,
including the number of high potential
incidents (incidents that could have caused

a significant injury). This fall in high potential
incidents occurred in spite of the fact that
the organisation has broadened its definition
of high potential incidents to encompass

a wider range of less-serious incident types,
ensuring that the opportunity to learn from
all incidents and near misses are maximised.

Conversation

Key numbers
66% 207,335 1,534 5388
IMPROVEMENTIN  OBSERVATIONS EXECUTIVE MENTAL HEALTH
LTIR SINCE 2014 RAISED SITE VISITS FIRST AIDERS
1 OOO IN THE 2020 EMPLOYEE SURVEY:

b
LINE MANAGERS RECEIVED 9 40 / 800/ 880/
‘MANAGING THE 0 0 0
CONVERSATION' MENTAL of employees feel felt able to discuss health, agreed they saw evidence of
HEALTH TRAINING cared for safety and wellbeing Zero Harm in their workplace
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CORPORATE WELLBEING AWARD

Gammon secured the Gold award for Best Corporate Wellbeing
Programme from Hong Kong publication Career Times Online
for its health and wellbeing provision, and commitment to going
the extra mile for its workforce. Gammon hired registered nurses
to serve as the company'’s ‘health ambassadors’, conducting
simple examinations, including blood pressure, blood sugar and
cholesterol tests, and to provide health information for workers
on site.

1 _RQOV%\RDS

HR AWARDS PRESENTATION CEREMONY

Working hours in remote locations can make access to clinics
difficult, so as well as providing health checks, Gammon also
hold on-site health seminars for workers to provide their workforce
with basic health knowledge. Following the success of this
scheme, Gammon aims to build on it, looking to provide workers

yodai a16sjeng

Sadly, despite the Group’s continued focus
on Zero Harm throughout the year, one
subcontractor colleague in the UK lost his life
during a lifting operation. Gammon recorded
three fatal injuries in 2020: a subcontractor
trapped by a partial wall collapse; a colleague
working on a rebar base which collapsed; and
a third party fall from height when the
scaffold they were on was hit by a falling
stanchion. Lessons learned from these four
incidents, along with a fatal incident in the
US involving a joint venture partner have
been shared across both the Group and the
industry. (See page 49).

Health and wellbeing

The Group has always acknowledged that a
healthy workforce is a happier and more
productive one, and aims to support its
employees as much as possible. COVID-19
generated a great deal of uncertainty, and
Balfour Beatty quickly produced a dedicated
COVID-19 employee resource centre on its
intranet with a wealth of support focused on
employee health and wellbeing, ranging from
homeworking to financial concerns to Balfour
Beatty's independent employee assistance
programme. Within the Group's internal
virtual networking site, specific groups were
created where employees can share tips and
advice between peers to support each other
and discuss challenges they are facing.

The organisation was in a strong position,
with a robust, mature structure already in

place to support the mental health and
wellbeing of its employees, having trained
588 Mental Health First Aiders, and worked
with Mates in Mind since 2017. The challenge
was to adapt to new ways of working remotely
and digitally without compromising on quality;
upskilling managers and supporting good
mental health and wellbeing throughout the
business. Further collaboration with Mates in
Mind enabled the digital rollout of bespoke
‘Manage the conversation’ training with great
engagement and interaction from over 1,000
line managers who attended the course in
2020. As well as continuing the conversation
around mental health, the Group focused on
wider wellbeing, including a new Community
Wellbeing site for employees on its intranet.

In 2021, the Group will continue its relentless
focus and leadership on Zero Harm within
the business and continue to remain industry
leader on health, safety and wellbeing.

with annual comprehensive physical examinations and
vaccination programmes.

(95

Balfour Beatty
believes in treating
health like safety and
mental health like
physical health.

)
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BUSINESS INTEGRITY

Ensuring integrity
within the business

We work with the utmost integrity to ensure we are

making the right choices.

Our Business Integrity
programme

Balfour Beatty's values and behaviours define
its culture and the way the Group works.

The Business Integrity programme makes
“Doing the Right Thing” the responsibility

of all employees, to ensure Balfour Beatty
operates with the upmost integrity, makes
the right choices and is “Trusted”.

The Business Integrity programme (the
programme) is well established, implementing
a framework of policies and standards to ensure
the Company’s commitment to working with
integrity and assurance, but policies and rules
are just one part of the programme.

The Code of Conduct (the Code) also requires
employees and those who work within the
supply chain to follow the principles and spirit
of the Code and to always do what is right.

The Code covers many topics from anti-bribery,
corruption and fraud to bullying, harassment
and discrimination and is available to all
employees online at:
www.balfourbeattycodeofconduct.com

and in printed form. This is supported by

the Suppliers Code of Conduct: www.
balfourbeatty.com/codeofconductsuppliers
which sets out Balfour Beatty's commitment
to work with companies whose standards are
consistent with its own and these standards
are reflected in the contractual terms
required of its supply chain.

Training

In the UK, Code of Conduct training is undertaken
by all new employees within 30 days of
starting with Balfour Beatty. Thereafter, Code
of Conduct training is assigned through the
Learning and Development platform to all
employees on a two-year cycle. The training
module is in the form of an assessment which
can be adapted to reflect current trends
within the Group or wider industry and is
supported by supplementary mini modules
and in person materials.

Other specific elements of the Code of
Conduct, such as Data Privacy, Competition
Law, Sustainability and Diversity & Inclusion
are the subject of separate training modules
mandated to employees as appropriate.

BUSINESS INTEGRITY PROGRAMME

CULTURE & MESSAGING

INTERNAL CONTROLS

EDUCATION & TRAINING

REPORTING &
INVESTIGATION

Deliver a high awareness
of integrity to ensure the
right choices are made and
a just and ethical culture
exists in the organisation.

Implement policies and
procedures that comply
with legal and corporate
governance and monitor
the effectiveness of and
compliance with the
Business Integrity
programme.
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Provide tailored training to
all parts of the business,
ensuring the Business
Integrity programme
remains relevant and
embedded within

the organisation.

Manage Balfour Beatty’s
whistleblowing service
(Speak Up), investigate
reported breaches of the
Code and identify, mitigate
and report risk.


http://www.balfourbeattycodeofconduct.com
http://www.balfourbeatty.com/codeofconductsuppliers
http://www.balfourbeatty.com/codeofconductsuppliers

#

In the US, Business Integrity training
continues to be delivered in line with the
Group and legal requirements. The Code of
Conduct training has been tailored to align
with US terminology and business
requirements and like the UK this is
supplemented with bespoke training on
Anti-Trust, Data Privacy, Sustainability and
Diversity & Inclusion.

In addition, the Business Integrity
programme issues regular communication
and guidance on integrity related subjects
including (but not limited to) Conflicts of
Interest, Gifts & Hospitality, Security and
the Speak Up whistleblowing service.

Governance

Business Integrity reports are presented
to the Board of Directors twice a year with
issues considered higher risk reported
directly to the Executive Committee and
the Board as necessary. The Board retains
ownership of the Business Integrity
programme which is delivered through the
Business Integrity and Security function,
compliance officers and senior leadership
across all business units.

Speak Up

The Company actively encourages the
reporting of concerns about unethical
conduct. Balfour Beatty is committed to
supporting staff for doing “the right thing”
and will not tolerate any retaliation or
discrimination of any kind against anyone
reporting concerns in good faith.

SPEAK UP HELPLINE CASES
Number (EXCLUDING

Number

2017 2017

2018 2019 2020

SPEAK UP HELPLINE CASES

The Speak Up helpline is the Group's
independent and strictly confidential
whistleblowing service which can be used
anonymously if necessary. All submissions
are reviewed and 100% of in scope cases
submitted to Speak Up were investigated

in 2020. The total number of cases reported
in 2020 (292) has remained consistent with
2019 levels, despite the significant disruption
and changes to working practices caused by
COVID-19. The total number of cases represents
15.5 submissions per 1,000 employees which
compares favourably to the global benchmark
which reduced from 13.0 in 2019 to 11.5

in 2020. This demonstrates the continued
confidence of employees that concerns they
raise will be addressed.

Modern slavery

Balfour Beatty remains committed to
addressing the risk of labour exploitation
within its business and wider supply chain
and as a member of the Modern Slavery
Construction Protocol, works closely with
the Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority
(GLAA) to prevent the exploitation of workers.
Balfour Beatty also requires all of its suppliers
and subcontractors to demonstrate their
awareness of, and take steps to mitigate, the
threat of Modern Slavery in the industry and
has published a guidance document, setting
out the Group’s expectations and
requirements for all suppliers.

Balfour Beatty also provides training to site
personnel on how to spot signs of Modern
Slavery and what to do if it is suspected.

HR GRIEVANCES) (BALFOUR BEATTY)

Number

CASES PER 1,000 EMPLOYEES

Balfour Beatty's latest full Modern Slavery
Act transparency statement can be accessed
here: www.balfourbeatty.com/services/
modern-slavery

Data protection

The General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR), Irish Data Protection Act 2018 and
UK Data Protection Act 2018 have continued
to apply. Balfour Beatty is regulated by

the Information Commissioner’s Office

(CIO for UK activities and the Irish Data
Protection Commission for Irish processing.
Notwithstanding Brexit, the GDPR principles
remain in the UK Data Protection Act 2018
and Balfour Beatty is working to ensure that
adequate provisions are in place in relation
to cross-border transfers post-Brexit.

During 2020, the Data Privacy team adapted
swiftly and robustly to the challenges of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the additional
personal data processing this gave rise to.
This included conducting Data Protection
Impact Assessments (DPIAs) on technologies
such as thermal imaging, contact tracing and
health data, amongst others. As Balfour
Beatty's office-based employees pivot
towards more agile and remote working, this
in turn brings Data Privacy challenges which
are continually assessed via DPIAs and due
diligence by the Group’s Data Privacy, Legal
and Information Security teams.

CASES PER 1,000 EMPLOYEES
(GLOBAL BENCHMARK)
Number

2018 2019 2020

2017 2018 2019 2020
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BUSINESS INTEGRITY CONTINUED

Balfour Beatty continues to use a dedicated
privacy management tool. Throughout 2020
this system has been enhanced to include
Data Subject Requests and a revised
information assessment qualifier assessment
process (including updates to the DPIA
process). The Data Privacy team in 2020 has
been working on delivering a Data Privacy
'Project Toolkit' designed to embed privacy
standards on all UK and Ireland projects sites.
This will be delivered with the help of Balfour
Beatty's Data Privacy Champion Network in
the first half of 2021.

Throughout 2020, Balfour Beatty assessed
circa 54 data incidents, one of which was
notified to the ICO, and processed circa
88 subject access requests. The Group
Data Protection Officer is working on
continued training and awareness
programmes and rolling out a data privacy
strategy for the Group. The Data Protection
team continue to work with the US Legal
team on readiness for the US California
Consumer Protection Act compliance and
the US California Privacy Rights Act, due
to come into force 1 January 2023.

(95

Doing the right thing is
the responsibility of all
employees to ensure
we are trusted.

)

BEING A RESPONSIBLE TAXPAYER

Tax strategy

This tax strategy has been prepared and
published in accordance with paragraph
16 (2), Schedule 19, Finance Act 2016,
on behalf of Balfour Beatty plc and all
UK tax resident entities in the Balfour
Beatty Group.

Being a responsible taxpayer
Balfour Beatty recognises that paying taxes
arising from its activities is an important
part of how it supports the communities in
which it operates. The Group makes a major
contribution to the tax revenues of
governments in the numerous territories in
which it operates. For example, the Group's
tax contribution extends considerably
beyond corporation tax and the collection
of substantial amounts of income tax and
includes the payment of significant
employer social security contributions.

The Group's tax strategy, approved by the
Board, is to sustainably minimise tax cost
whilst complying with the law. In doing
so, Balfour Beatty ensures it acts in
accordance with its cultural framework,
which provides a simple and clear view of
the purpose, values and behaviours of the
Group's Build to Last strategy. The Group
aims to meet all legal requirements, filing
all appropriate tax returns and making tax
payments accurately and on time. The
Group's tax strategy applies to all
territories in which it does business.

Tax governance

Balfour Beatty has clear tax policies,
procedures and controls in place which are
overseen by the Chief Financial Officer.

A dedicated internal tax team, led by the
Group Head of Tax, is responsible for the
implementation of the Group's tax strategy
and supporting tax policies. Members of
the tax team are highly experienced with
appropriate professional qualifications and
experience which reflect the responsibilities
required for their roles.

Tax risk appetite

The Group manages its tax affairs in a
proactive manner that seeks to maximise
shareholder value and as such utilises tax
incentives or opportunities for obtaining tax
efficiencies where appropriate and where
they support genuine commercial activity.
The Group does not enter into artificial
arrangements that lack commercial purpose
in order to secure a tax advantage. The aim
is to ensure full compliance with all statutory
obligations and as a consequence attempt to
minimise risk wherever possible.

Balfour Beatty does not tolerate tax evasion
or the facilitation of tax evasion. Following
the introduction of the Corporate Criminal
Offence of Failure to Prevent the Facilitation
of Tax Evasion legislation, Balfour Beatty
applies appropriate procedures and controls
which seek to prevent any person acting on
its behalf from facilitating tax evasion.

Managing tax risk

There are a number of factors that affect
the Group's tax risk and these arise both
internally and externally. Balfour Beatty's
ability to control these factors varies and its
internal tax team works to minimise these
risks to an acceptable level. For example:
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2 new and developing tax legislation is
monitored and where it is relevant Balfour
Beatty participates in consultations issued
by the tax authorities. When new or
changed legislation is announced, the
impact on the Group is assessed and
active measures are taken to ensure
there are adequate processes in place
to comply with any change;

> tax risks in relation to compliance and
reporting are managed by meeting regularly
with professional advisers, industry
groups and the tax authorities to both keep
abreast of changes in these areas and to
seek information on new systems and
software; and

> risk in relation to tax in general is managed
by the internal tax team and if a position is
uncertain the Group may obtain third-party
advice in order to gain clarity or support
for a particular stance or approach.

Interaction with tax authorities
Balfour Beatty’s approach to its tax affairs is
supported by an open, honest and positive
working relationship with the tax authorities,
with regular dialogue. Should any dispute
arise with regard to the interpretation

and application of tax law, the Group

is committed to addressing the matter
promptly and resolving it in an open

and constructive manner.



SUSTAINABILITY

Building New Futures

Leaving a positive legacy for the people we work with, the communities

we work in, and the world in which we operate. Enhancing our impact on
the environment, working with our supply chain partners, customers and
communities to ensure our choices are sustainable.

At the end of 2020, the Group launched its

new sustainability strategy, ‘Building New
Futures'. It has been developed with input

including a formal commitment to set a
science-based target to reduce carbon
emissions, and outlines the Group's 2040

from key stakeholder groups in the UK, US
and Hong Kong, and is focused on the three
areas most important to the Group’s
business — the environment, materials and
communities. It sets firm 2030 targets,

2040
AMBITIONS

2030
TARGETS
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Responding to climate change
and managing our impact on the
environment

Beyond Net
Zero Carbon

@

Achieve our
science-based carbon
reduction target

ambitions to go Beyond Net Zero Carbon, to
Generate Zero Waste and to Positively
Impact More than 1 Million People. The 2040
ambitions have been identified as the most
material to the business by key stakeholder
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Choosing the right materials,
using less materials and creating
value from the materials we no
longer need

Generate
Zero Waste

@

40% reduction
in waste
generated

®
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Local Sustainability Action Plans

groups including the Group's customers,
employees, shareholders and the

communities in which the Group operates.

For further information, see the Group's
Materiality Assessment webpage: www.
balfourbeatty.com/materialityassessment

Improving the prosperity and
wellbeing of individuals and
communities

Positively Impact More
than 1 Million People

®

£3bn social value
generated

@
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

#

UN Sustainable
Development Goals

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

13 i

The Group’s 2030 targets are aligned to the
UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
to provide a blueprint to achieve a better and
more sustainable future for all. Whilst each
area is aligned to one or more SDGs, the
strategy as a whole focuses on parts of SDG
9 — Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure.
For more information visit:
www.balfourbeatty.com/sdgs

Building New Futures builds upon the
significant progress the Group has made
since the launch of its first sustainability
strategy in 2009 and is fully aligned with the
Group's refreshed cultural framework. Progress
against the strategy will be reported annually
with the results for the 2021 reporting year
being published in next year’s annual report.

Sustainability is an integral part of modern
infrastructure projects — public sector
customers require conformance to standards
such as BREEAM, LEED®, BEAM, Green
Mark, and CEEQUAL and these are important
to planning authorities. In 2020, the total
revenue of projects that related to green
infrastructure was £2 billion.

The Group's certifications in this area and its
technical knowledge improve the whole-life
performance of customers’ built assets.

Increasingly, customers are scoring against
sustainability criteria as in the case of the
HS2 civil engineering contracts awarded to

Balfour Beatty VINCI, a long-established joint
venture between two global infrastructure
leaders. 32% of the technical score of the bid
was influenced by sustainability factors. The
contract stipulates a 50% carbon reduction
against the baseline design using the PAS
2080 standard.

In 2020, Balfour Beatty was awarded a total
of £240 million worth of contracts on both
SCAPE infrastructure frameworks which
have a focus on social value, i.e. the
economic, environmental and social benefits
to local communities.

In 2020, Balfour Beatty was awarded a

£47.5 million contract to design and build a
new 400kV substation in Peterhead, Scotland
on behalf of SSEN Transmission. This contract
forms a critical part of SSEN Transmission’s
East Coast Reinforcement programme, which
will reinforce the network in the area and
facilitate the connection of more renewable
energy generation to the national grid, supporting
the transition to net zero emissions.

The Group was also awarded Phase Il of
Inveraray Crossaig in Scotland worth
approximately £90 million which involves
reinforcing the existing transmission network
to enable renewable energy projects to connect
to the grid, and to ensure security of supply.

Improving access and reducing emissions
from public transport are key opportunities
for Balfour Beatty’s UK rail business. In
December, the Rail business was awarded
the Southern Region Buildings and Civils
Framework for Network Rail for the next
eight years which has an approximate value
of £50 million. The business was also
awarded £22 million of electrification work
for Transport for Wales on the Core Valley
Lines network to install 25kV overhead
electrification equipment under its Early
Contractor Involvement package.
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In late 2020, the US$2.3 billion extension of
the Massachusetts Bay Transportation
Authority’'s (MBTA) Green Line achieved its
halfway point. The US Civils business is part
of GLX (Green Line Extension) Constructors,
a consortium including Fluor Enterprises, the
Middlesex Corporation, and Herzog Contracting
Corporation working on the scheme.

The extension expands the rail service for
4.7 miles along two lines into Somerville and
Medford and will significantly improve access
to public transport for local residents.

Many customers are exploring new solutions
to drive efficiencies and be more sustainable.
Utility network providers, for instance, are
interested in smarter installation and
maintenance solutions that cause less disruption
and reduce excavations, vehicle movements
and materials usage.

The US Buildings business completed four
LEED® buildings in 2020, with a combined
contract value of US$666 million. Gammon,
the Group's joint venture based in Hong
Kong, completed seven BEAM Plus
buildings, two of which achieved LEED
Platinum ratings.

The iconic Portland Building originally built in
1982 was refurbished by Balfour Beatty's US
Buildings business in 2020 and achieved
LEED® Platinum status. It is also pursuing
WELL building certification. The refurbished
design significantly improves the amount of
natural daylight that can enter the building.
Aside from incorporating an array of
sustainability features, the project team
exceeded the City’s social equity
subcontracting goals, achieving Minority,
Women, and Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise participation of 27% for
professional, technical, and expert trades
and 33% across all construction trades.

O LEFT
The iconic Portland Building, US

BUILDINGS CREATED/REFURBISHED

WITH CERTIFICATION
us 4
B Gammon 7
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Governance

Balfour Beatty has a solid governance
process that underpins everything it does to
ensure that the business is being managed
and run properly, effectively and ethically.

The Safety and Sustainability Committee
reviews the Group's sustainability strategy
and monitors progress on climate-related
issues. This ensures governance and
accountability for delivery and performance
at Board level. The Group Chief Executive,
Group Chair and two other non-executive
Directors are members of the Safety and
Sustainability Committee. The Group Chief
Executive has overall responsibility for setting
Balfour Beatty’s sustainability policy and
overseeing how ESG matters are managed.

The Executive Committee sets the Group's
sustainability ambitions and targets, helping
each business unit develop its own

action plan.

Each business unit has a sustainability lead,
who is responsible for cascading the
sustainability strategy and developing
bespoke sustainability action plans that are
aligned to the Group’s 2040 ambitions and
2030 targets. These plans have short-term
milestones with clear action owners,
communicating the priorities for the business
unit. The sustainability action plans ensure
that projects are managed sustainably and
best practice is shared. The senior leadership
of each business unit is responsible for agreeing
its sustainability action plan and ensuring it is
delivered and adequately resourced.

Internal audit teams review performance
against the Group's sustainability strategy
and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC LLP)
is engaged by Balfour Beatty to provide limited
assurance over selected greenhouse gas
performance data for annual reporting purposes.

In December 2020, six years on from the
start of its Build to Last transformation
programme, the Group refreshed its cultural

AWARD-WINNING SUSTAINABILITY AT ONE TAIKOO PLACE, HONG KONG

framework to include ‘Sustainable’ as one of
its core values alongside Lean, Expert,
Trusted and Safe to further drive a positive
culture across the business and launched its
new sustainability strategy, Building New
Futures, to ensure that the business leaves a
positive legacy for the people it works with,
the communities it works in, and the world in
which it operates. The focus of the strategy
is to enhance the Group's impact on the
environment, working with its supply chain
partners, customers and communities to
ensure its choices are sustainable. Making
the right choices is embedded through the
Group's operations and supported with a
robust governance framework.

Environmental compliance

In 2020, one environmental incident resulted
in a fine of S$5,000 which was issued by
Singapore’s National Environment Agency as
a result of mosquito breeding being detected
within a construction site.

One Taikoo Place, a 41-storey triple Grade-A
office tower, which forms part of Swire
Properties HK$15 billion Taikoo Place
redevelopment project in Hong Kong,
secured the LEED® platinum certification in
2020. In addition to meeting BEAM and
LEED® platinum sustainability criteria, it was
designed to address the seven concepts of
the WELL building standard that focus on
occupant health and productivity.

The office tower was built to the highest
sustainability standards and includes a
number of cutting-edge passive and active
energy-saving design features to reduce
annual energy consumption during
operation by up to 30% against a typical
building of this size as well as deliver
excellent indoor environmental quality
performance for the health and wellbeing
of occupants.

Each floor offers occupants panoramic
views of Victoria Harbour and an abundance
of natural light through expansive glass
walls, while an extensive open green space
is provided for the community’s enjoyment
and to reduce the urban heat island effect.
Two elevated air-conditioned walkways link
it to the thriving interconnected campus of
office buildings that make up Taikoo Place.

It was also built in the spirit of collaboration.
Long before the tendering phase for

One Taikoo Place had even begun,
Gammon worked with Swire to carry out

an independent buildability study to suggest
a number of ideas that promoted sustainable
construction, with Gammon leading its
value chain to adopt modern methods of
construction that are safer and leaner,
including design for manufacture and
assembly and virtual planning.

It was built with the support of Gammon'’s
considerable in-house expertise, providing
prize-winning innovative digital solutions for
more efficient planning and management,
through to award-winning mechanical
solutions. And it was built with the use of
building information modelling, 3D scanning
and printing that underpinned the precision
installation required for much of the works.

With this outstanding performance,

One Taikoo Place obtained industry-wide
recognition as the Winner of the CIC
Sustainable Construction Award 2018,

and Gammon's Director of Building Operation,
Mr. Sammy Lai, also picked up the top
Excellence award in the Construction
Manager category for his leadership and
efforts on sustainability.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

How we manage sustainability

SAFETY AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Our Group Safety and Sustainability Committee reviews our sustainability strategy, monitoring progress and ensuring

accountability at Board level.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

V)

Our Executive Committee sets ambitions and targets, helping each Business Unit develop its own action plan.

BUSINESS UNITS

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL AUDITS

Internal audit teams review performance against our sustainability strategy. PwC is engaged by

Balfour Beatty to provide limited assurance over the reporting of the Group’s Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions.

Supporting global standards
For many investors Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) matters are becoming increasingly important, which
is why Balfour Beatty participates and is listed in the FTSE4Good index, Sustainalytics, MSCl and CDP.

FTSE4Good

In June 2020, Balfour Beatty
achieved a FTSE4Good' ESG
score of 3 on a scale from 0 of 5
(higher scores are better).

| SUSTAINALYTICS —

e

| RATED

In February 2021, Balfour Beatty
plc received an ESG Risk Rating
of 26.1 from Sustainalytics? and
was assessed to be at medium
risk of experiencing material
financial impacts from ESG.

MSCI

ESG RATINGS
[cco] & [os [eee] o XM Ann

In January 2021, Balfour Beatty
plc received a rating of AA (on a
scale of AAA-CCC) in the MSCI®
ESG Ratings assessment. This
MSCI ESG AA rating, which
measures resilience to long-term
industry material ESG risks,
benchmarks Balfour Beatty as a
leader in managing ESG risks.

SNCDP

DISCLOSER

2020

In December 2020, Balfour
Beatty achieved a CDP* rating of
B which demonstrates that it is
taking coordinated action on
climate issues.

1 FTSE Russell (the trading name of FTSE International Limited and Frank Russell Company) confirms that Balfour Beatty plc has been independently assessed
according to the FTSE4Good criteria, and has satisfied the requirements to become a constituent of the FTSE4Good Index Series. Created by the global index
provider FTSE Russell, the FTSE4Good Index Series is designed to measure the performance of companies demonstrating strong Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) practices. The FTSE4Good indices are used by a wide variety of market participants to create and assess responsible investment funds and

other products.

2 Copyright ©2020 Sustainalytics. All rights reserved. This publication contains information developed by Sustainalytics (www.sustainalytics.com). Such information
and data are proprietary of Sustainalytics and/or its third party suppliers (Third Party Data) and are provided for informational purposes only. They do not constitute
an endorsement of any product or project, nor an investment advice and are not warranted to be complete, timely, accurate or suitable for a particular purpose.
Their use is subject to conditions available at: www.sustainalytics.com/legal-disclaimers.

3 The use by Balfour Beatty plc of any MSCI ESG Research LLC or its Affiliates (MSCI) data, and the use of MSCI logos, trademarks, service marks or index names
herein, do not constitute a sponsorship, endorsement, recommendation, or promotion of Balfour Beatty plc by MSCI. MSCI services and data are the property of
MSCI or its information providers, and are provided ‘as-is’ and without warranty. MSCI names and logos are trademarks or service marks of MSCI.

4 CDP drives companies and governments to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions, safeguard water resources and protect forests. Over 9,600 companies with
over 50% of global market capitalisation disclosed environmental data through CDP in 2020. This is in addition to the over 920 cities, states and regions who
disclosed in 2019, making CDP’s platform one of the richest sources of information globally on how companies and governments are driving environmental change.
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Photo ‘credit: °East Wick and Sweetwater

East Wick and Sweetwater (EWS) forms part of the post-Olympic
Games legacy development being delivered by the London
Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC). In 2015, LLDC
appointed East Wick and Sweetwater Projects, a joint venture
between Balfour Beatty Investments and Places for People,
as lead developer for the two new neighbourhoods. Over its
lifetime, EWS will bring new schools, nurseries and
community spaces to the area around the Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park, as well as creating a strong residential
community with up to 1,800 new homes.

Following grant of planning consent the joint venture awarded
to Balfour Beatty’'s UK Construction business the contract to
design and build the first phase of the development. Phase 1
forms the heart of the scheme with a new neighbourhood
centre comprising a mixture of 302 residential units across
four blocks and circa 22,000 m? of non-residential uses
including retail, workspace and community facilities.

The project has over 160 sustainability and social value targets
driving high standards from the start. The non-residential units
were designed to BREEAM ‘Excellent’ standards. The
residential units were designed to ‘Zero Carbon Homes'
standard utilising a combination of a ‘fabric first’ approach, as
well as being powered by the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
district heating network and on-site renewable energy. So far
one of the blocks has been completed, achieving final Code
for Sustainable Homes Level 4 certification; with the
remainder of phase one due to complete in spring 2021.

Using the National TOMs, a reporting standard for measuring
social value, over £34 million of social value has been
delivered to date. This has been achieved in collaboration with
East Wick and Sweetwater Projects, supply chain partners,
the LLDC, local schools, charities, social enterprises and other
local organisations.

DELIVERING SOCIAL VALUE AT EAST WICK & SWEETWATER, LONDON

e AT

Key successes to date include:
> attended three careers fairs advertising vacancies in the
local boroughs

2 42 work experience placements for students from local
schools and organisations

2 41 apprentices working throughout the project (7% of
the workforce on average)

> seven graduates employed

2 promoted a diverse and inclusive workforce by employing
those from under-represented groups to achieve: 30% local;
70% BAME; 6% female; and 3% with a registered disability

> delivered careers talks to 38 people with barriers to
employment through organisations such as Newham
Workplace and Bounceback

> as a direct result of these careers talks, one person with
mild to moderate disabilities and one youth ex-offender were
successfully placed into full time employment on the project

2 delivered over 1,011 hours of volunteering:

» 660 hours delivered through ECHO, upskilling and
mentoring local businesses and SMEs

» 261 hours of curriculum engagement through 37 activities

> over £17,500 raised for local charities by the joint venture
and Balfour Beatty since the beginning of the project

2 33 local residents trained in accredited Mental Health First Aid
2 26% reduction in embodied carbon in construction

> 99.8% waste diverted from landfill

2 100% of work packages advertised to local businesses

> 18 SMEs employed within a 30-mile radius with a spend
of over £32 million
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENT |

Beyond Net Zero Carbon

Optimising environmental performance forms
a key component of the Group’s new
sustainability strategy and is essential for
driving efficiencies and winning work. Balfour
Beatty is fully committed to minimising its
impact on climate change and mitigating the
business risks that climate change presents.
That is why Balfour Beatty has set out its
ambition to go Beyond Net Zero Carbon by
2040 from its direct and indirect operations,
by continuing to implement the Institute of
Environmental Management and
Assessment'’s (IEMA) Greenhouse Gas
Management Hierarchy'.

The Group is collaborating with its supply
chain partners and aiming for all products and
materials it procures to be net zero carbon by
2040. In limited cases where it is not able to
reduce emissions, it will invest in
environmental projects, in the form of carbon
offsets, to make sure it goes beyond net zero
carbon by 2040.

In 2020, the Group committed to setting a
carbon reduction target well below 2 degrees

IEMA'S GREENHOUSE GAS MANAGEMENT HIERARCHY

‘ ELIMINATE

il

REDUCE
&

1 www.iema.net/document-download/51806

COMPENSATE

centigrade pathway with the Science Based
Targets initiative (SBTi).

At an operational level the Group has
continued to take steps to reduce Scope 1
and 2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions and
its reliance on fossil fuels through the use of
technology and algorithms that have been

developed in-house to assist decision making.

Balfour Beatty has also continued to use data

to monitor and drive sustainability performance.

Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions
The Group has seen a reduction in carbon
emissions intensity in 2020 compared to
2019 from 20.3 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(CO,e)/ £m revenue to 18.8 tonnes of
CO,e/Em revenue when using a location-
based approach. Using the market-based
approach this drops further to 18.4 tonnes
of COe/fm.

Since establishing a baseline in 2010, the
tonnes of CO,e/Em revenue have dropped by
54.7% from 41.5 tonnes of CO,e/£m revenue
to 18.8 tonnes of CO,e/£m revenue. The

Our decisions will consider options to eliminate
carbon emissions

®

We will use resources efficiently to lower our

carbon intensity

®

We will adopt low carbon alternatives

®

We will offset unavoidable emissions through

environmental projects
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Group has therefore exceeded its 2020 target
of 50% reduction of Scope 1 and 2 emissions
per £ million revenue against a 2010 baseline.
Balfour Beatty's 2025 goal is to achieve a
60% reduction in its Scope 1 and 2 emissions
per £ million revenue against a 2010 baseline.
The Group's performance to date illustrates it
is on track to meet this target.

The Group's total Scope 1 and 2 emissions
also reduced by 2.4% from 210,632 tonnes of
CO,e in 2019 to 205,517 tonnes of CO,e in
2020. These are the Group’s lowest Scope 1
and 2 absolute emissions since the 2010
baseline was established representing a
reduction of 162,466 tonnes of CO,e (42.6%).

As evidenced, the Group has made
significant progress in reducing energy and
fuel consumption and associated Scope 1
and 2 emissions, which is leading to reduced
operating costs and therefore improved value
to customers and shareholders. Reduced
consumption also limits the Group’s exposure
to transitional market risks from energy and
fuel price fluctuations.


http://www.iema.net/document-download/51806

#

USING BUILDING INFORMATION MODELLING TO IDENTIFY CARBON HOTSPOTS

In 2020, through Innovate UK funding, Balfour Beatty, Leeds Beckett University, University of
Hertfordshire and industry partner White Frog Publishing developed a Carbon Calculator that fully
integrates into Revit (a building information modelling software platform). The software automatically
calculates the embodied carbon of the different structural elements of a building.

Through identifying carbon hotspots, it is possible to efficiently target areas where alternative
construction solutions and/ or materials may result in a carbon saving. The calculator provides a visual
representation of the hotspots within the structural model.

Whilst initial trials were undertaken in 2020, the software is now being refined further.

BALFOUR BEATTY COMMUNITIES NAMED 2020 MOTILI CARBON REDUCTION CHAMPION

The requirements for reducing Scope 1 and 2
emissions are well understood and controlled.
In 2020, the Group has continued to: improve
the fuel efficiency of its fleet; introduce fully
electric cars; install electric vehicle charging
points; expand electric plant options; optimise
the sizing of generators and the power profile
of projects; improve the energy efficiency of
site cabins; undertake energy efficiency
improvements to properties; optimise grid
connections; and launch EcoNet. In the UK
many of these energy efficiency improvements
have been driven by Balfour Beatty's Plant
and Fleet business that is certified to ISO
50001, the 'Energy Management System’
standard. Gammon is also certified to

that standard.

Since launching the Enertainer in 2019 with
Hong Kong start-up, Ampd Energy, to replace
noisy, polluting diesel generators on
construction sites, Gammon has procured
four of these battery units for use on its sites.
It has also rented one unit. The units use
small grid supplies to charge up, but are able
to power large pieces of equipment when in
use and vary in size from 250kVA to 400kVA.
The combined carbon saving in 2020 from
these units was 546 tonnes of CO,,.

As illustrated, the UK accounts for 43% of
the Group's Scope 1 and 2 emissions, the US
17%, Ireland 1% and the Rest of the World
39%, when using the market-based
approach. Gammon is certified to ISO
14064-1, the international standard for

quantifying and reporting greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions. Its Scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions are independently verified by SGS.

GHG reporting and assurance
Balfour Beatty’'s GHG emissions are reported
in accordance with the UK Government'’s
GHG reporting requirements covering all
seven UNFCCC/Kyoto gases. The Group
uses the operational control approach under
the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard as at 31 December 2020
to report emissions from its operations
around the world.

In 2020 alongside the location-based
method, Balfour Beatty adopted the GHG
Protocol Scope 2 market-based reporting
methodology. This method allows the
application of an emissions factor of zero
tonnes of CO,e equivalent per kWh to supply
contracts from suppliers of purchased
electricity from renewable sources with a
guarantee of origin certificate. For example,
in 2020 in the UK 12 MWh of Renewable
Electricity Guarantees of Origin (REGO)
certificates for electricity were procured for
electricity purchased through the Group
utility procurement contract. A residual mix?
emission factor is applied to electricity where
a REGO is not available. For electricity which
does not come from a renewable source and
a country specific residual mix emission
factor is not available, Balfour Beatty has
applied either the appropriate supplier factor
based on the supplier’s published fuel mix

In 2020 Balfour Beatty Communities (BBC) partnered with Motili to provide routine HVAC maintenance,
repair and replacement work across BBC's military housing portfolio. HVAC systems in 94% of the
44,000 home portfolio were serviced, cleaned and maintained by Motili at regular intervals throughout
the year. As part of this preventive maintenance work, BBC replaced HVAC systems in more than 1,200
military housing units, improving system performance for residents while driving operational efficiencies.
Specifically, the highly efficient HVAC replacements are expected to reduce system energy use by
almost 25% and significantly cut the carbon emissions from each unit. The total carbon emission reduction
per year equates to 2,500 tonnes. It is estimated that these upgrades will result in US$4m of energy
savings over the next 10 years. As a result, BBC was named a 2020 Motili Carbon Reduction Champion.

where it is known and can be evidenced, or
the country average electricity emission
factor provided by the IEA, EPA or Defra (as
appropriate). Balfour Beatty's total energy
consumption in MWh is shown on page 62 to
allow readers to make more informed
comparisons of the Group’s energy use.

Although Balfour Beatty's Scope 1 and 2
CO,e emissions reduced by 2.4% (5,115
tonnes) from 2019 to 2020, energy use
measured in MWh dropped by 3.2% (25,292
MWh). This difference can be explained by
the fact that different fuels have different
carbon intensities, with some fuels attracting
greater carbon conversion factors than
others. Furthermore, the M\Wh table does
not include fugitive emissions.

The energy use table illustrates that there has
been a 41% reduction in 5% biodiesel blend
since 2019 which can be explained by the
reduced amount of travel undertaken during
the COVID-19 pandemic and a greater switch
to hybrid vehicles. However, the use of gas
oil (red diesel) increased over the same period
as a result of large infrastructure projects in
the US. Overall fuel usage for most fuel types
has reduced, except for industrial gas and
boiler fuel. Since 2015, the energy intensity of
the Group's operations has dropped by 43.1%
from 122.88 MWh/E£m revenue to 69.89
MWh/£m.

2 The residual mix is defined by the GHG Protocol for Scope 2 reporting as,”default emission factors representing the untracked or
unclaimed energy and emissions if a company does not have other contractual information that meets the Scope 2 Quality Criteria”.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Balfour Beatty's Scope 1 and 2 CO,
emissions include emissions from assets that
are otherwise not referred to across the rest
of the financial statements such as energy
provided by landlords or customers that
Balfour Beatty does not pay for. In 2020, the
Group generated 35,141 kWh of renewable
electricity from solar cabins, solar tower
lights and solar powered charged points for
electric vehicles, compounds and plant.

The Group has determined and reported the
emissions it is responsible for within this
boundary and does not believe there are any
material omissions. The Group uses the UK
Government'’s carbon conversion factors,
updated in 2020, to calculate its emissions
into equivalent tonnes of carbon dioxide
(CO,e) and the IEA’s 2020 international
conversion factors for electricity (Scope 2)
except for the UK and the US where the UK
Government and the US EPA conversion
factors were applied as they more accurately
reflect geographical carbon intensities of
local grids.

PwC LLP was engaged to undertake an
independent limited assurance engagement

Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions

of the Group’s Scope 1 and 2 emissions,
reporting to Balfour Beatty plc, using the
assurance standards ISAE 3000 and ISAE
3410 over the GHG data that has been
highlighted in this report with the symbol @.
PwC LLP’s full statement is available at:
www.balfourbeatty.com/ILA

The level of assurance provided for limited
assurance is substantially lower than a reasonable
assurance engagement. In order to reach its
opinion, PwC LLP performed a range of
testing procedures over the GHG data. A
summary of the work PwC LLP performed

is included within its assurance opinion.

Non-financial performance information, GHG
quantification in particular, is subject to more
inherent limitations than financial information.
The limited assurance statement should be
read in the context of the reporting criteria as
set out in Balfour Beatty's Global Sustainability
Reporting Guidance available at: www.
balfourbeatty.com/sustainabilityreporting

The guidance outlines the non-financial KPIs
measured by the Group, their definitions, and
evidence requirements.

(1

Since establishing a
baseline in 2010, the
Group’s Scope 1 & 2
emissions / £m revenue

have dropped by 54.7%.

)

Absolute tonnes of CO,e

Base year 2010 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Scope 1 283,821 220,355 170,937 175,065 167,071 162,816®
Scope 2 (location-based) 74,162 77,943 71,170 49,365 43,561 42,701®
Scope 2 (market-based) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 38,5696 ®
Total Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions (location-based) 357,983 298,298 242,107 224,430 210,632 205,517
Total Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions per £m revenue
(location-based) 41.5 29.4 221 24.5 20.3 18.8
Total Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions per £m revenue
(market-based) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 18.4

Scope 1 emissions include those resulting from the combustion of fuel and operation of facilities.

Scope 2 emissions result from the purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for own use. The full description of Balfour Beatty's definitions can be found in its reporting guidance at

https://balfourbeatty.com/sustainabilityreporting.

® Included within PwC LLP’s limited assurance scope.

Energy use in MWh

Fuel 2018 2019 2020
Electricity 100,333 88,061 89,655
Heat and steam 14 - -
Natural gas 15,242 8,691 8,147
Industrial gases 3,013 4,095 4,687
5% biodiesel blend 434,524 414,387 245,452
5% biofuel petrol blend 72,190 63,305 54,799
Biodiesel different blend 67 104 53
E85 petrol 603 1,278 188
Gas oil (red diesel) 191,374 197,590 344,754
100% mineral diesel 15,372 13,298 14,071
100% mineral petrol 6,076 - 3,701
LPG 261 187 57
CNG - - -
Boiler fuel 653 214 454
Global total 839,722 791,210 765,918
UK energy use % of total 36.2% 45.4% 50.0%
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Climate disclosure

The Group is committed to addressing
climate change risk and reducing the lifetime
emissions of the assets it builds, as
evidenced by its performance in the global
evaluation standard, the Climate Disclosure
Project (CDP), where a B rating was achieved
in 2020, which is an improvement on the
previous year's C rating (see page 58). The
annual rating is based on CDP’s evaluation of
the Group's strategy, goals and actual
emissions reductions, as well as transparency
and verification of reported data. It assesses
the completeness and quality of Balfour
Beatty's measurement and management of
carbon footprint, climate change strategy,
risk management processes and outcomes.
The score’s purpose is to provide a summary
of the extent to which companies have answered
these questions in a structured format.

Although the Group has identified a number of
climate change related risks and opportunities,
none of these pose a principal risk to the
business. The risks identified include:

> infrastructure is deemed to be
incompatible with the UK's net zero
carbon targets;

> climate change increasing the intensity and
frequency of extreme weather events,
including flooding and high winds which
could impact sites negatively;

> large fluctuations in energy costs;

> sustainability performance failing to keep
pace with demands;

> sudden tightening of environmental
legislation and/or Environmental Social
Governance reporting requirements; and

TRANSPLANTATION OF TREES, HONG KONG

2 changes in temperature extremes can have
an impact on the resilience of building
materials and therefore determine the
materials we are able to use.

The opportunities identified include:
> energy savings;

> increased demand for climate change
mitigation measures by customers; and

2 improved reputation and ability to win work
through the Group’s capability.

The Group is preparing for the Taskforce on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
reporting requirements for 2022. Whilst the
Group has started its journey on TCFD reporting,
more work is required in 2021 to address the
disclosure requirements. These will be shared
in the Annual Report and Accounts 2021.

In November 2019, Gammon successfully transplanted giant native ‘twin’ trees at Shap Sze Heung, using a novel method not seen before in
Hong Kong. In 2020, we continued to look after the trees during their establishment period in their new home and monitor their health using
wireless motion sensors for real-time health and stability monitoring, as well as capturing motion data in a hybrid reality platform for data

analysis in a 3D model alongside an i-Tree app.

Consisting of two Ficus microcarpa trees that have merged into one root system, the trees are over 50 years old and weigh more than
170 tonnes. Originally standing as a landmark near Nai Chung Public Transport Interchange (PTI), they were moved to a location near the
new PTI to provide a better area to grow and to minimise impact from nearby construction activities. They are now living in an enlarged
planter to allow the root system to spread and encourage vigorous growth.
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Improving air quality

Construction equipment that runs on diesel
is known to produce particulates and nitrous
oxides that are harmful to human health. HS2
and the Greater London Authority have strict
air quality emission standards for construction
equipment that projects have to comply with.

In addition to the innovative retrofit project
on the Junttan PM20 piling rig (see pages 66
and 67), the Group supported the Centre for
Low Emission Construction and Datatag in
developing an Emission Compliance
Verification Portal with HS2 that links to
Datatag's Emission Compliance Labelling
Scheme to simplify reporting on construction
sites and demonstrate compliance.

The Group released a further update to its
power profiler that accurately predicts the
power demand of its project compounds
allowing generators to be sized efficiently and
accurately rather than being over-specified and
launched EcoNet, the energy demand-side
response technology. (See page 27 for more
information on EcoNet). Both solutions not
only cut carbon but also improve air quality

in comparison to traditional set-ups.

@ ABOVE
New electric LCV

The Group invested in solar powered plant
such as tower lights to reduce the need for
diesel-powered equipment and commenced
a number of innovation projects to reduce
nitrous oxides and particulate emissions.

ELECTRIFICATION OF COMPANY CARS

2024

58%

23%

64 Balfour Beatty plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

43.1%

REDUCTION IN ENERGY INTENSITY
IN MWH/£EM REVENUE SINCE 2015

2.4%

REDUCTION OF SCOPE 18& 2
INtCO,e IN 2020

I8.8

TONNES OF SCOPE1 &2
C0,e/£Em REVENUE IN 2020

54.7%

REDUCTION IN TONNES OF SCOPE 1 & 2 C0,e/£m
REVENUE AGAINST 2010 BASELINE

SCOPE1&2C0,e (MARKET BASED)
BY COUNTRY

UK 43%
m US 17%
m Ireland 1%
B Rest of the World 39%
TONNES OF SCOPE1 &2
COzeIEm REVENUE

2010 2018 2019

2020



MATERIALS

Generate Zero Waste

In the UK, the Group continues to
decarbonise its company car and light
commercial vehicles (LCV) fleet by switching
to electric and plug-in hybrid options where
possible and using more electric and hybrid
powered solutions for plant operations,
which will improve air quality. The Group
continued to make progress on its roadmap
to phase out diesel company cars with 42%
of its current UK vehicles being electric,
plug-in hybrid and hybrid in 2020. The Group
also continued to trial several fully electric
LCV solutions for operations where drivers
do not have to transport heavy loads.

As part of the Group's new sustainability
strategy, the Group has set itself a 2040
ambition to generate zero waste from its

89% REDUCTION IN MATERIALS DELIVERED THROUGH INNOVATION, LONDON

operations and a 2030 target to reduce the
amount of waste it generates per £1 million
of revenue by 40%. The 2030 target excludes
hazardous wastes that cannot be diverted.

Whilst the Group has good waste data for the
UK, Ireland and Gammon, there are limitations
on the completeness of Balfour Beatty's waste
data for the US, making like-for-like comparisons
of its annual data difficult. The Group's aim is
to establish a baseline across all its geographies
in 2021 to allow for comparisons and progress
reporting. Comparing waste data year on
year will also vary depending on the type of
projects the Group undertakes and the stage
that the projects are at. Balfour Beatty is
working with its operating businesses to
improve this data.

TONNES OF WASTE LANDFILLED
PER £M REVENUE

2018 2019 2020

In 2020, our signalling renewals teams
working at Hither Green, London
developed a new anchor post system to
support elevated cable routes. The new
anchor post foundation uses steel
micro-piles that are driven into the ground,
removing the need to use cast in-situ
posts. Use of this system was approved
by Network Rail and has delivered:

2 73% embodied carbon reduction on
materials;

> 89% material saving;

2 60% time saving on foundation
installation;

2 40% cost saving;

> zero on-track plant and zero water
consumption; and

> reduced safety risk.

The project won the 2020 International
Green Apple Award for Environmental
Best Practice Category Building

& Construction/Rail and received

a National Green Apple GOLD award.
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In 2020, 3,455,954 tonnes of waste that
Balfour Beatty produced were avoided from
landfill. This equates to 98.15% of the total
amount of waste that Balfour Beatty produced
in 2020, but does not include materials that
were reused directly without entering the
waste stream. Although these figures are
impressive, the Group is working on circular
economy solutions to reduce waste in the
first place and has a 2040 ambition to generate
zero waste from its construction activities.
This will mean a greater shift towards Design
for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA)
techniques which are inherently more
resource efficient. The Group’s 2030 target is
to reduce the amount of waste generated by
40% against a 2021 baseline.

Balfour Beatty has steadily reduced the
tonnes of waste it produced per £ million
revenue from 9 tonnes/Em revenue in 2018
to 6 tonnes/£m revenue in 2020.

To make sure the Group delivers its 2040
ambition, it will work with its partners right
from the start of every new scheme to
ensure solutions to Generate Zero Waste are
considered through design and construction,
and through applying the waste management
hierarchy. Where this is not possible, the
Group'’s priority will be to maximise the value
of materials throughout their lifecycle.

Bringing all of the parties — customer,
designer, contractors and supply chain
partners — to the table from the outset will
allow projects to be developed in a manner
that eliminates waste by design and enables
circular economy initiatives such as take back
schemes for packaging and unused materials
to be utilised. Increased demand for materials
and dwindling natural resources will help drive
the development of innovative new ways of
working that will help Balfour Beatty achieve

its ambition to Generate Zero Waste by 2040.

Modern methods of construction, such as
off-site manufacturing and modularisation,
will also help to streamline operations,
helping to reduce waste and activity on-site
and delivering significant quality, productivity
and safety benefits.

Modern tools and construction methodologies
such as virtual and augmented reality and
scanning technologies will also help to
reduce waste, with smart material selection
and management leading to a high percentage
of an infrastructure asset being recycled at
the end of its lifecycle. Balfour Beatty has
delivered significant value to its customers
by applying this approach and recycling
aggregates and clay on highways projects.

As the demand for low carbon solutions increases, CUBIC METRES OF WATER

Gammon has increased the number of concrete PER £M REVENUE
mixes that carry the Construction Industry

Council (CIC) Green Product Certification °
(GPC) scheme "Platinum’ and ‘Gold"’ certification ©

(the highest two certifications) to 300 across
its three concrete batching plants. Under the
scheme, the life cycle carbon footprint of the
different concrete mixes is measured and
benchmarked to help users identify those
with a low-carbon profile. Gammon was the
first construction company to pioneer and
have products certified to the scheme in
Hong Kong. In 2020, 25% of concrete
quantity produced was certified or equivalent
to the 'Outstanding / Platinum’ grade of the
CIC GPC scheme.

2018 2019 2020

Water intensity

Water intensity is an optional indicator in
Balfour Beatty's sustainability strategy. It is
measured in cubic metres per £ million
revenue. Depending on the geography in
which the Group operates, water can be a
sparse or abundant commodity. Almost all of
its operating businesses in the UK and Hong
Kong reported on water use. Neither the US
Construction business nor the US Investments
business elected to monitor water use as an
optional indicator.

The Group has seen a decrease in its water
intensity in the areas of its business where
water is monitored from 110m?3/£m revenue
in 2019 to 109m?/£m revenue in 2020.

The Group continues to identify opportunities
to reduce mains water use through dry wheel
washes, water efficient appliances, and

@ ABOVE

First EU Stage V equivalent retrofit project on a Junttan piling rig
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rainwater systems. A recent example of this
is a rainwater harvesting system installed on
a salt dome in the depot on the Aberdeen
Western Peripheral Route that will be used to
make brine during the winter months for road
maintenance. The system also uses drainage
water from the fuel storage and vehicle wash
bay that is treated. In 2020, this system
saved 668m? of mains water.

Supply chain and collaboration
Balfour Beatty recognises the critical role of
its supply chain partners in helping to make it
a more sustainable business. The Group has
continued to improve its approach to sustainable
procurement in 2020 by working with its supply
chain partners and customers to deliver social
value outcomes and agree improvement plans
across key categories. Much of the Group's
work is undertaken collaboratively.

For instance, in 2020 Balfour Beatty worked
with HS2, the Centre for Low Emission
Construction, Eminox, and Emissions
Analytics to develop a retrofit solution for
construction plant to improve air quality.

The trial that uses EMxS5 technology was
conducted on a Junttan PM20 piling rig, was
successful and has been approved by the
Energy Saving Trust. This retrofit is the first

WELL PRECERTIFICATION GOLD FOR GAMMON'S HEAD OFFICE

of its kind in the UK. Whilst engine standards
are improving and new electric, hybrid and
hydrogen solutions are starting to enter the
market, there is a lot of plant and machinery
that still runs on Stage IlIA and 1lI1B engines.
This solution reduces exhausts of nitrous
oxides, hydrocarbons, carbon monoxide and
particulate emissions and brings them within
Stage V standards. This solution can now be
used by the wider construction industry and
offers a practical and cost-effective solution to
improve emissions from construction sites.

The Group has worked with its supply chain
partners to improve their low carbon product
offering as technology and solutions evolve.
2020 saw the roll out of the EcoNet solution
that it developed with Invisible Systems and
Sunbelt Rentals across 25 of its compounds
on larger construction sites. (For more
information see page 27.) It also saw the trial
of its first B-rated site accommodation cabins
on Viking Link that it developed with Sunbelt
Rentals. These reduce energy consumption
and associated carbon emissions by 27%.

In the UK, the Group is a member of the Supply
Chain Sustainability School (SCSS)’s Climate
Action Group. The aim of the group is to drive a
reduction in carbon emissions from the built
environment value chain through the products,

Balfour Beatty plc Annual Report and Accounts 2020

works and services procured. During 2020 the
Group engaged a number of its suppliers to trial
the Carbon Tool developed by the SCSS. This
reporting tool supports businesses who have
never reported their carbon emissions before
to do so quickly and easily.

In 2017, the Group became the first company
to implement and be assessed against ISO
20400:2017 the international standard for
sustainable procurement for its UK operations.
Since then it has improved its processes and
approach to sustainable procurement. In its
most recent assessment in 2020 by Action
Sustainability, the Group's scores increased
by 30%, moving its sustainable procurement
maturity practices from a level 3 to a level 4
(out of b). Its approach is described as ‘Mature’.

Similarly, since Gammon became the first
Asian company to be assessed against ISO
20400:2017, it has continued to have ongoing
regular dialogue with its supply chain partners.
It holds workshops with them to communicate
its expectations in a number of key areas, as
well as provide an opportunity for the suppliers
to discuss any issues they may have or
propose alternative solutions or products.

For more information visit:
www.gammonconstruction.com/en/
sustainability-report.php

In 2020, Gammon's new head
office achieved WELL
Precertification at the Gold
level, making it the first
construction company in
Hong Kong to have been
awarded this international
designation. The new office
follows the WELL Building
Standard (ver. 1) for interiors,
a performance-based system
for built environments that
integrates health and wellbeing
considerations in the design
and fit-out. The project team
considered every aspect from
air and water quality to light,
comfort and mental wellbeing.

3

Take a tour of
the new office:
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

DECENT HORKAND

ECONOWCGRONTH

COMMUNITIES | 4

Positively impact more
than 1 million people

As part of the Group's new sustainability
strategy, the Group has set itself a 2040
ambition to positively impact more than

1 million people and a 2030 target to
generate £3 billion of social value using the
Social Value National TOMS framework.

Whilst infrastructure already has a hugely
positive impact on people’s lives, markets
now require the Group to demonstrate the
social value of its operations in economic
terms. To benefit local areas, the Group uses
local supply chain partners, employees and
materials wherever possible, and invests in
future talent through apprenticeship schemes
and work placement opportunities. Involved
(Balfour Beatty's community investment
programme in the UK) was established in
2015 and focuses on three key areas where
the Group can add value to its customers and
the local community:

GREEN APPLE DAY OF SERVICE, SAN DIEGO

Balfour Beatty Construction in partnership with the
San Diego Green Building Council hosts its

9th annual Green Apple Day of Service

Balfour Beatty's California team and the San Diego Green Building
Council, partnered with Poway Unified School District (Poway USD)
to host their ninth annual Green Apple Day of Service. The
international day of service takes place every year at different schools
around the world. This year, Poway USD’'s Garden Road Elementary
School was selected to receive an outdoor interactive learning
classroom, accommodating students upon return to campus. One of
the aims of the project was to provide students with a safer learning

environment during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Over 100 eager volunteers, including students, employees, families,
and supporting community and trade partners, willingly dedicated their
Saturday to one common goal: creating an Outdoor Learning Classroom
for students to learn and engage in a healthy, connective way.

Additional measures to transform and enhance the school included
several painted murals, picnic tables, an owl box, walkways, a new
shed, mulch, weeding, pavers, student-decorated rocks, instalment
of outdoor dry-erase boards for the teachers, and a new shared library

for students.

The effort supports and enhances Garden Road Elementary School,
providing students and teachers with the opportunity to become
further engaged and inspired by outdoor learning.

> local employment and skills;
2 supporting local businesses; and

2 community engagement through charitable
fundraising, volunteering and mentoring.

Wherever the Group operates it seeks to
integrate within the neighbourhood,
supporting the local community, its
businesses and its workforce. Involved gives
Balfour Beatty the opportunity to work within
a framework whereby the results of its
interventions are captured and the benefit to
society shared with its customers and other
interested parties.

All employees have the opportunity to
volunteer up to two days per year to give
something back to local communities.
Unfortunately, due to COVID-19, and the risk
of infection, many of the volunteering
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activities that had been planned in 2020 had
to be cancelled. This has had a negative
impact on the number of volunteering hours
the Group was able to record and has also
impacted on fundraising activities, with many
fundraising events being cancelled. In some
cases, projects were still able to provide
virtual volunteering to support communities
such as supporting NHS programmes.

This impact was reflected in the October
2020 employee engagement survey with
only 58% of the Group’s UK and US
employees responding that “At Balfour
Beatty, | am able to give something back to
the community”, a drop of 15% from the
previous year. However, the score for
“Balfour Beatty genuinely cares about having
a positive impact on the environment and
local communities” went up from 75% to
78%, demonstrating that there is a will to




#

2020 CCS SCHEME NATIONAL
SITE AWARDS

Gold 9
| Silver 13
B Bronze 5
O BELOW

Volunteers planting bulbs at the side of
Blackheath's station to enhance biodiversity.

support the environment and communities
which the Group operates in.

The focus areas for the Group's charitable
work have been on:

> supporting skills in infrastructure;

> supporting people and families with health
and wellbeing;

> regenerating local communities;

> inspiring tomorrow's workforce;

> supporting Affinity Networks; and
> supporting national charity partners.

In the UK Balfour Beatty has continued to
support the Considerate Constructors
Scheme (CCS). The CCS is a non-profit-
making, independent organisation founded in
1997 by the construction industry to improve
its image. In 2020, 109 of the Group’s UK
sites were assessed against the scheme,
with an average score of 41.8 out of 50
against an industry average of 37.8.

The Group won 27 National Site Awards
under the CCS scheme in 2020.

Community investment through
charitable fundraising

The Balfour Beatty Shaping Better Futures
(SBF) Charitable Trust was formed in 2009 to
help the most disadvantaged young people in
society. In 2020, COVID-19 restrictions
greatly restricted the ability of employees to
raise funds with many events being cancelled
or indefinitely postponed. SBF donated a
total of £50,000 to The Prince's Trust.

The Group has worked closely with The
Prince’s Trust since the beginning of the
partnership and has raised over £1.59 million

for the charity. This includes funds raised by
employees and matched by SBF, direct
donations from SBF, as well as funds raised
by the Group directly. Through The Prince’s
Trust, the funding from 2020 will support 50
young people into positive outcomes in
employment, education and training,
transforming their life chances and
developing their confidence and
employability skills. With more than half a
million young people already unemployed and
youth joblessness predicted to increase as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
programmes that The Prince’s Trust runs are
vital to provide young people with the skills
and opportunities needed to stabilise their
lives and start something new. In the UK, a
further £176,024 was raised by employees
for charitable purposes. A total of £113,255
was provided in direct donations. £114,813
was made in in-kind donations.

The US construction business contributed
over US$341,914 to charitable causes in
2020. Some of the organisations receiving
donations were:

> Feeding America

> American Heart Association

> Canine Companions

> North Texas Food Bank

> San Diego Green Building

> ACE-Mentor Program

> Make-A-Wish® Foundation

> Boys and Girls Club of the Austin Area
> Oregon Trail of Hope

> Ronald McDonald House Charities of
San Diego

> Sharefest Community Development
> Los Angles Sustainability Coalition

While 2020 presented challenges for
employees being able to volunteer their time
in large groups or raise funds with many
signature charitable events being cancelled,
the US construction business still found ways
to give back to communities, by volunteering
in smaller groups and raising funds locally.

Some highlights of 2020, include the
California team’s Green Apple Day of Service
at Garden Road Elementary School in
POWAY (see page 68) and the Sharefest
fundraiser for the Southbay area of Los
Angeles. Balfour Beatty donated US$5,000
and helped raise an additional US$195,000
through vendors and suppliers and
volunteers, with the funds used to empower
youth and transform communities in some of
Los Angeles’ most deprived neighbourhoods.
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#

Balfour Beatty sponsored and chaired the
COVID Safe — NO SHOW 2020 for the Ronald
McDonald House charity donating US$8,000
and helping raise another US$284,000 in
additional donations from trade partners.

A further US$90,000 was raised by
employees for Rebuilding Together Seattle,
the American Heart Association, Oregon Trail
of Hope, the Oregon Community Association
and other charities in the Northwest area
which the business has longstanding
relationships with.

In Texas employees were able to come
together this year and host an outdoor social
distanced golf and sporting clay shoot
benefiting Texas Health Resource, 22Kill,
Children’s Health, Elizabeth Toons, Make-A-
Wish and many other charities. The total
charitable contributions of these events
amounted to US$147,340.

In order to support the University of North
Carolina at Wilmington (UNCW), Balfour
Beatty made a commitment to sponsor

two junior merit-based scholarships in
Coastal Engineering worth US$5,000 per
year with the first two students receiving
their grants in 2020. Additionally, through the
Balfour Beatty US$50,000 Support Fund in
Coastal Engineering, UNCW will advance
the mission of its new degree programme to
address issues affecting coastal communities
around the world. UNCW continues to
emerge as a leader in coastal research and

is the first university in the US to offer a
Bachelor of Science degree focused on
coastal engineering.

Balfour Beatty Communities donated
US$30,000 to the Balfour Beatty Communities
Foundation. The Foundation is a non-profit
organisation committed to supporting the
post-secondary educational goals of residents
living in a community managed by Balfour
Beatty Communities, as well as to organisations
that support military personnel and their
families. Balfour Beatty Communities
Foundation awarded US$139,000 in
academic scholarships to residents of Balfour
Beatty managed properties over the same
period. A total of 68 scholarships were
awarded. Furthermore, a US$10,000 charitable
donation to the Jacksonville chapter of Blue
Star families, an armed forces charity,

was provided.

The US Civils team donated US$10,000 to
the Carolinas Association of General
Contractors (CAGC) Build Your Career (BYC).
The CAGC BYC's mission is to help fight the
skilled labour shortage by raising awareness
of viable career opportunities within
construction through local education efforts
at middle and high school levels, as well as in
community colleges and with individuals
wanting to change careers through
apprenticeship opportunities.

In 2020, Gammon, its employees and
partners contributed to over 30 activities and
community events in Hong Kong and provided
over HK$2 million in charity donations.
Employees and subcontractors on four
building projects raised over HK$280,000 to
support an initiative that helps students and
families facing hardship and financial
difficulties due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Gammon ran a number of programmes during
the year to supply free face coverings and
bottles of sanitiser to employees and workers
on its construction sites during the COVID-19
pandemic. Colleagues and their families also
joined with a number of NGOs in Hong Kong
to support low-income families and the elderly
by distributing over 70,000 face coverings.

Across the Group's operations, employees
volunteered 13,467 hours for charitable causes
and raised £721,939 for charitable purposes. The
Group donated £626,105 and made in-kind
donations of £153,422. This has brought
multiple social value benefits to the communities
in which Balfour Beatty operates.

(1

Balfour Beatty
Communities
Foundation awarded
68 scholarships

in 2020.

)

DIRECT DONATIONS BY
GEOGRAPHY

UK £113,255
m US £279,790
B Gammon £233,060
Total £626,105

IN-KIND DONATIONS BY GEOGRAPHY

UK £114,813
m US f-
H Gammon £38,609
Total £153,422
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AMOUNTS RAISED

BY EMPLOYEES
UK £176,024
m US £524,791
B Gammon £21,124
Total £721,939




Our people

Leadership and talent WAYNE'S JOURNEY FROM LINEMAN TO GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT
development

Balfour Beatty has continued its commitment
to investing in employees’ capability despite
the challenges presented throughout the
pandemic. We have shown innovation to
remotely deliver programmes and initiatives
that support the transfer of knowledge and
collaboration for our employees.

Across the UK, US and Gammon, many
training courses were switched to virtual
delivery. Webinars were provided across
several leadership topics, with an additional
focus on promoting mental health and
supporting employees through the crisis. In
the UK, 170 webinars reached 7,500 people.

In the UK, Balfour Beatty has mature, well
established leadership and talent
programmes at various levels within the
business, including the Future Leaders
programme, which launched its fourth cohort
with 25 leaders at the end of 2020 and the

Aspiring Leaders programmes, which Wayne Kibee developed his love of Wayne enjoys the opportunity to successfully
supported leadership readiness for 102 construction from watching his dad work as  deliver top-notch projects for many education
employees. Internal coaching and mentoring a lineman. Upon graduation, Wayne began clients and school programmes throughout
arrangements continue to be developed and his first full-time role working for Balfour California. With more than 32 years of
embedded to support the UK business. Beatty in the field. experience working in the industry,
Internal coaches have been trained to Working his way up through the company, Wayne's work ethic and personal drive to
support talent programmes, performance Wayne established himself as a high SUBEEEE) EIMENEIES @ HiD [BELe, InsEiing
and career coaching requirements, with achiever and quickly moved from skilled unese aeuniel [l W eomiinLe vwerldng
380 coaching hours being recorded in 2020. labourer to carpenter, then from assistant I greatness.’Whep YU SIELD (e

. . : . 7 . onto one of Wayne's projects, there is an
In 2020, work continued with senior leaders in superintendent to now general superintendent, overaelnie senes of plde et by
the AUS business to create networks, solve where he continues to thrive. every team member. (Photo taken prior to
business challenges, and share lessons COVID-19 pandemic).

learned and best practice.

Our people priority strategic pillars

1. Enabling the business 2. Building expert capability 3. Creating a great place to work
Support the business to drive Recruit, develop and provide great Grow an innovative, inclusive,
operational excellence in all that we career opportunities for our people, and collaborative culture that is
do, ensuring our projects, functions ensuring they have the skills, technology enabled, creating
and businesses can outperform. development, experience and an existing and successful future
capability to delight our customers. for our employees, customers
and shareholders.
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3,209

TRAINING DAYS FOR
2,482 DELEGATES

360+

DELEGATES ON LEADERSHIP
MASTERCLASSES IN THE UK

38,000+

HOURS OF TRAINING
COMPLETED IN GAMMON

Monthly virtual meetings occur for the vice
presidents of operations with the goal of
addressing important business topics such as
the Gated Business Lifecycle, lean
construction practices, and improving
operational standards.

Across Balfour Beatty, learning is made
accessible and development is facilitated
across all aspects of a person’s role, including
technical; professional; leadership and
personal development; health, safety and
wellbeing, all to develop the best that our
people can be.

Engagement

Employee engagement remains a key focus
to support and enhance business
performance, in 2020 employee wellbeing
has been more important than ever and at
the heart of the Group's engagement
strategy. Work has continued in pursuit of
nurturing our great place to work, a place
where everyone feels included and supported
and continuous listening is the norm.

With the COVID-19 pandemic meaning that
many employees in the UK, US and Gammon

BEST LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT TECHNOLOGY IMPLEMENTATION AWARD

Many training programmes in Gammon were forced to suspend following restrictions due
to the pandemic. The Learning & Development team built a new online learning platform to
allow employees to learn and add value while maintaining social distancing. Adjustments
have been made to course content, with text materials now being delivered through videos
and animations to continue delivering content in an engaging way while face-to-face
training isn't an option. (Photo taken prior to COVID-19 pandemic).

needed to work differently, the opportunity
was taken to look at working arrangements.
Employees were supported through new
ways of working productively, with flexibility to
balance work with other commitments, where
possible through greater use of technology. In
2021 and beyond, the lessons learnt in 2020
from the pandemic will inform how to adopt
these practices into new ways of working. A
range of COVID-19 guides for employees was
developed, including best practice for remote
working, furlough, financial wellbeing and
domestic abuse.

Balfour Beatty continues to conduct
employee engagement surveys, providing
immediate feedback on the results and
ensuring complete transparency to build trust
in the survey and the organisation. The 2020
survey results showed increased levels of
engagement across the business and the
contribution that the enhanced communications
and additional levels of support provided to
employees played in achieving these results.
The Group's engagement score increased to
75% from 66% in 2019.
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The UK engagement index score increased
from 63% to 73%. Each of the four questions
comprising the score (satisfaction, motivation,
advocacy, retention) increased between 5%
and 10%. An increase of 10% was achieved
for employees recommending Balfour Beatty
as a great place to work. There was a great
increase of 13% in the score for graduates
and under-represented groups responded very
positively with female colleagues at 79% and
BAME employees having the highest
engagement score of 83%.

The 2020 US Buildings engagement index
score was 89%, with 87% of people feeling
a strong connection with their team, 88% of
people saying the culture is inclusive to all
people, 90% of people saying that they feel
comfortable they can be themselves and
accepted at work and 91% of people saying
they can see themselves working at Balfour
Beatty in 12 months’ time.

Another indication of positive engagement in
the Group's workforce is the voluntary
employee turnover rate, decreasing year on
year, to 9.8% in the UK. Voluntary turnover
within Gammon is currently 12.3% in 2020.



#

Employee survey results

ENGAGEMENT INDEX SCORES %*

2017 2018 2019 2020

RECOMMEND AS A GREAT
PLACE TO WORK %*

Q4 Q2 2020
2018 2019

FEMALE EMPLOYEES
ACROSS THE WORKFORCE %*

2017 2018 2019 2020

* Excluding international joint ventures.

Gammon continue to implement their action
plan that incorporates a health and wellbeing
programme. This included initiatives such as
online Sunday Live stretching exercise, virtual
Tai Chi workshop and health talks.

Many development activities have been
enhanced through the non-executive Directors
meeting and engaging with employees
through site visits and attendance at virtual
development events. This provides additional
insight and benefit to participants and a great
opportunity for Board members to gain an
in-depth view of engagement throughout the
business. As part of its employee engagement
activities, Balfour Beatty continues to develop
strong relationships through collective
bargaining agreements across the UK and
US, recognising multiple arrangements with
trade unions in different part of the business.
Appropriate employment practices and
policies are applied for each market within
the national collective agreements that are
applicable to the Group’s operations.

Balfour Beatty recognises the need to retain
skills and expertise and therefore employees
may be eligible for enhanced family friendly
benefits whilst on, for example, maternity,
adoption, or shared parental leave. Employees
in the UK can also invest in Balfour Beatty
through the Share Incentive Plan, and access
lifestyle, health and wellbeing benefits

and discounts.

MAGIC MOMENTS

AanmER []

UK: Virtual leadership conference. Photo credit: Graham Thorley

In addition, the Group aims to make a positive
difference in the community. UK employees
can apply for paid volunteer leave to support
local communities. Business units also operate
schemes to recognise colleagues for their
achievements locally as well as UK-wide
employee referral schemes to incentivise
employees for referring great new colleagues
to the company.

Diversity and inclusion

To reflect the importance to Balfour Beatty of
embedding a truly inclusive culture, in 2020
‘value everyone’ was adopted as one of our
behaviours in the Group’s Cultural Framework
refresh to demonstrate its importance to the
business. The Group Chief Executive is the
Board-level sponsor for diversity and
inclusion (D&I).

Supported by a Steering Committee that sets
the direction for D&I, and a working party
that leads and co-ordinates diversity initiatives,
the UK business has a rolling three-year
‘value Everyone’ D&l action plan which
drives activity to nurture a culture of inclusion
and improve diversity and includes actions to
address barriers for all under-represented
groups. In the UK in 2020 Balfour Beatty was
Highly Commended for the RIDI Awards for
Making a Difference in the Private Sector and
was recognised as a Top Ten Employee Network
Group in The Ethnicity Awards for a second
year. Furthermore, there were fantastic
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

#

BALFOUR BEATTY SIGNS THE AUDELISS AND INVOLVE OPEN LETTER

In the summer of 2020, demonstrations in the UK and US in support
of Black Lives Matter shone a light on the remaining inequalities
within black inclusion and Balfour Beatty realised that it needed to

individual successes with two Women In
Construction & Engineering award winners
and Best New Female Chartered Engineer.

The US business has a five-year strategic
plan that focuses on three areas of opportunity
and growth: gender; race/ethnicity; and
veterans. In the US, Balfour Beatty is working
to recognise, promote and advance the
business on Diversity, Equality & Inclusion
(DEI) and build a foundation for the future. In
the US, there were virtual conferences to
highlight issues relating to discrimination due
to race, ethnicity and sexual preference.
Furthermore, as part of the DEI effort, the
Learning and Development team rolled out
Conscious Inclusion training focusing on how
to create an environment where curiosity
about differences is encouraged and where
inclusion is the mutual responsibility of

all employees.

Gammon has launched a Diversity and
Inclusion Council with cross-discipline
membership from directors, senior managers,
Diversity & Inclusion champions and employee
network representatives. The council has
gathered views on creating a more inclusive
company and initiated training for senior staff
to raise awareness and understanding
amongst project and department leaders.

take more action.

Balfour Beatty has become the first construction and infrastructure
company to sign the Audeliss and Involve Open Letter committing
to engaging and measuring long-term actions for black inclusion
within our UK businesses.

As there was significant interest and some lack of awareness across
the business around many of the issues, we worked with diversity
experts IODA and our Multi Cultural Affinity Network, to design an
awareness raising webinar which was attended by over 600 people
in the UK and many more have watched the recording. This was
then developed into a series of ‘Let’s Talk About Race’ workshops
which were attended by 158 leaders across the business. These
workshops and webinars have helped to build the level of
understanding and have galvanised a real desire across the
business to make a difference by developing and implementing local
action plans to address barriers that exist and make Balfour Beatty a
more inclusive workplace.

Diversity initiatives
The Leading Inclusively programme was
launched in the UK, providing senior leadership
teams with a safe space to explore the
subject matter and focus on leadership
behaviours and mindset. More than 150
leaders participated virtually in 2020. All
colleagues were supported to understand
and champion inclusivity behaviours in the
workplace with the rollout of a new e-learning
module — Value Everyone — during National
Inclusion Week.

Despite the pandemic, in the UK ‘Empower’
development programme a record 87 female
employees participated during 2020. Over
300 women have attended this programme
since 2016 and 42% of delegates have had
a new role or promotion since participation.

In the US, Black History Month was celebrated,
and Martin Luther King Day is now recognised
as a paid holiday in the US business, and the
recruiting strategy revamp will include
Historical Black Colleges and Universities to
increase Balfour Beatty’s African American
employee base.

In the US, two new affinity networks were
launched in 2020, informed by the success
of the strong Women in Construction.
National and local affinity groups have
been established under the Network of
Black Leaders and Executives (NOBLE),
and the business has prioritised DEI
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workflows around NOBLE. The other
affinity group created in 2020 is Building
PRIDE which recognises and supports
employees that represent the LGBTQ+
community within Balfour Beatty.

To complement the well-established affinity
networks in the UK and US, Gammon created
its first affinity network, Women in Gammon
and Allies Group (WinG); to recognise and
support employees representing the
LGBTQ+ community.

Emerging talent

As a member of The 5% Club in the UK, a
dynamic movement of employers committed
to ‘earn and learn’ skills training opportunities
as part of ensuring Britain's social mobility
and shared prosperity, Balfour Beatty already
exceeds its target of 5% of its employee
numbers earn and learn positions.

At the end of 2020, the proportion of UK
employees in earn and learn positions
(graduates, apprentices, trainees and
industrial placement students) was 6.0%.

Despite the pandemic, Balfour Beatty continued
to recruit new entrants and increased its UK
intake of graduates, apprentices, trainees and
industrial placement students by over 35%
compared to 2019. The UK held firm in its
commitment to developing its future workforce
with a 30% increase in its intake of graduates,
apprentices and trainees in 2020.






NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT ‘

This section of the Strategic report constitutes the Group’s non-financial information statement, produced to comply with Sections 414CA and
414CB of the Companies Act. The non-financial information is contained within the various sections of the Strategic report and is cross-referenced
below to help stakeholders find relevant information.

Information necessary to understand our business
Reporting requirement Policies and standards which govern our approach and its impact, policy due diligence and outcomes

Environmental Our sustainability strategy — Sustainability page 55
Building New Futures

Sustainability policy
Sustainable procurement policy
Environmental policy

ISO 14001:2014 & ISO 20400:2017

Employees Health and safety policy Health, safety and wellbeing page 48
Code of Conduct Business integrity page 52
Our people page 71
Social and community Social value policy Sustainability page 55
matters Code of Conduct Business integrity page 52
Respect for Modern slavery statement Business integrity page 53
human rights Code of Conduct
Anti-corruption and Supplier Code of Conduct Business integrity page 52
bribery matters Code of Conduct
Innovation Innovation page 26
Description of the Balfour Beatty at a glance page 2
business model Our strategy: Build to Last page 12
Market review page 16
Business model page 22
Stakeholders Stakeholder value page 24
Description of Risk management page 88
principal risks and Principal risks page 94
impact of business
activity
Non-financial key Our strategy: Build to Last page 12
performance Health, safety and wellbeing page 48
indicators Business integrity page 52
Sustainability page 55
Our people page 71
1

www.balfourbeatty.com/policies

j Discover more about the Group's policies at
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MEASURING OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Providing clarity on the
Group’s alternative
performance measures

The Group includes this section in its Annual Report and Accounts
with the aim of providing transparency and clarity on the measures
adopted internally to assess performance.

Following the issuance of the Guidelines on
Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)
by the European Securities and Markets
Authority (ESMA) in June 2015, the Group
has included this section in its Annual Report
and Accounts with the aim of providing
transparency and clarity on the measures
adopted internally to assess performance.

Throughout this report, the Group has
presented financial performance measures
which are considered most relevant to
Balfour Beatty and are used to manage the
Group'’s performance.

These measures are chosen to provide a
balanced view of the Group's operations and
are considered useful to investors as these
measures provide relevant information on the
Group's past or future performance, position
or cash flows.

The APMs adopted by the Group are also
commonly used in the sectors it operates in
and therefore serve as a useful aid for investors
to compare Balfour Beatty's performance to
its peers.

The Board believes that disclosing these
performance measures enhances investors'
ability to evaluate and assess the underlying
financial performance of the Group's operations
and the related key business drivers.

These financial performance measures are
also aligned to measures used internally
to assess business performance in the
Group's budgeting process and when
determining compensation.

Equivalent information cannot be presented
by using financial measures defined in the
financial reporting framework alone.

Performance measures used to
assess the Group’s operations

Underlying profit from operations (PFO)
Underlying PFO is presented before
non-underlying items, finance costs and
interest income and is the key measure used
to assess the Group’s performance in the
Construction Services and Support Services
segments. This is also a common measure
used by the Group's peers operating in
these sectors.

This measure reflects the returns to the Group
from services provided in these operations
that are generated from activities that are not
financing in nature and therefore an underlying
pre-finance cost measure is more suited to
assessing underlying performance.

Underlying profit before tax (PBT)

The Group assesses performance in its
Infrastructure Investments segment using an
underlying PBT measure. This differs from
the underlying PFO measure used to measure
the Group's Construction Services and Support
Services segments because in addition to
margins generated from operations, there are
returns to the Investments business which
are generated from the financing element of
its projects.

These returns take the form of subordinated
debt interest receivable and interest receivable
on PPP financial assets which are included in
the Group's income statement in investment
income. These are then offset by the finance
cost incurred on the non-recourse debt
associated with the underlying projects,
which is included in the Group’s income
statement in finance costs.

Operating cash flow (OCF)

The Group uses an internally defined measure
of OCF to measure the performance of its
earnings-based businesses and subsequently
to determine the amount of incentive awarded
to employees in these businesses under the
Group's Annual Incentive Plan (AIP). This measure
also aligns to one of the vesting conditions
attributable to the Group’s 2018, 2019 and
2020 PSP awards. Refer to pages 144 to 146.
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Reconciliation of order book to transaction price to be allocated to remaining performance obligations

Order book (performance measure)

Less: Share of orders included within the Group's joint ventures and associates

Less: Estimated orders under framework agreements included in the order book disclosure

Add: Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations in Infrastructure Investments*
Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations for the Group* (statutory measure)

* Referto Note 4.3.

Reconciliation of 2020 statutory results to performance measures

Non-underlying items

Grant income in Provision
relation to UK release on
Intangible  Job Retention blacklisting  Loss on GMP Results of UK deferred

amortisation Scheme provisions equalisation  Rail Germany tax asset
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue including share of joint
ventures and associates
(performance) - - - - (6) —
Share of revenue of joint ventures
and associates - - - - 4 -
Group revenue (statutory) - - - - (2) =
Cost of sales - - - - 2 -
Gross profit - - - - - -
Amortisation of acquired intangible
assets 6 - - - - -
Other net operating expenses - (19) (2) 3 - -
Group operating profit 6 (19) (2) 3 - -
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates - - - - - -
Profit from operations 6 (19) (2) 3 = =
Investment income - - - - - -
Finance costs - - - - - -
Profit before taxation 6 (19) (2) 3 - -
Taxation (2) 4 = (1) = 6
Profit for the year 4 (15) (2) 2 - 6

Reconciliation of 2020 statutory results to performance measures by segment

Non-underlying items

Grant income in Provision

relation to UK release on
Intangible Job Retention blacklisting  Loss on GMP Results of UK deferred
amortisation Scheme provisions equalisation  Rail Germany tax asset
Profit/(loss) from operations £m £m £m £m £m £m

Segment

Construction Services 1 (13) (2) 2 - -
Support Services = (5) - 1 - -
Infrastructure Investments 5 = = = = =
Corporate activities = (1) = = = -
Total 6 (19) (2) 8 - -

2019
£m
14,339
(1,987)
(114)
1,866
14,104
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

Balfour Beatty’s
operations recovered
steadily through the
second half of 2020

Group financial
summary

The Group reported a loss from operations in
the first half of 2020 but as new working
practices developed and sites reopened,
operations recovered through the second half
of 2020 so that for the full year, Balfour Beatty
reported underlying profit from operations of
£51 million (2019: £221 million).

Despite the reduction in profit, the Group
demonstrated its resilience delivering positive
operating cash flow as the year end net cash
balance increased to £581 million (2019:
£512 million) with average net cash ahead

of previous guidance at £627 million (2019:
£325 million). The Group's year end order
book also increased by 15% to £16.4 billion
(2019: £14.3 billion).

Underlying revenue was up 2% (3% at CER)
at £8,587 million (2019: £8,405 million).
Statutory revenue, which excludes joint
ventures and associates, was £7,320 million
(2019: £7,313 million). Construction Services
revenue was up 2% (2% at CER) at

£6,964 million (2019: £6,858 million) as

a result of higher volumes at Gammon.
Support Services revenue increased by

4% to £1,067 million (2019: £1,023 million)
following higher volumes in power

and transportation.
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2020 2019
£m £m
Results for the year Underlying? Total Underlying? Total
Revenue' 8,587 8,593 8,405 8,411
Profit from operations 51 63 221 159
Pre-tax profit 36 48 200 138
Profit for the year 25 30 186 133
Basic earnings per share 3.7p 4.4p 26.7p 19.0p
Dividends per share 1.5p 2.1p
2020 2019
Underlying profit from operations? £m £m
UK Construction (26) 47
US Construction 26 52
Gammon 29 26
Construction Services 29 125
Support Services 46 47
Earnings-based businesses 75 172
Infrastructure Investments pre-disposal operating profit 8 13
Infrastructure Investments gain on disposals - 69
Corporate activities (32) (33)
Total 51 221

1 Including share of joint ventures and associates.

2 Before non-underlying items (Note 10).












RISK MANAGEMENT

The heartof
ULCICPULD¥DIUA

A consistent risk process.

Introduction

Balfour Beatty continues its commitment to
embedding risk management across the
organisation and has continued to develop and
refine existing processes and broaden the
enterprise risk management (ERM) framework
roll out throughout 2020. The Group's simple
risk process remains at the core of the ERM
framework to ensures consistency in the
application across all parts of the organisation.
The Risk Management function ensures the
Group adheres to regulatory requirements and
adopts good practice in its approach to
identifying, assessing, responding to and
monitoring risk.

Our risk management process
Balfour Beatty's simple four-step process
continues to ensure the consistent
identification, assessment, response and
monitoring of risk across the organisation.
Standardising both the process and ERM
system from project operations up to Group
level ensures risks are understood and
communicated clearly at each level of the
organisation. This ensures that the capture
and assessment of risk and opportunity
remain at the heart of decision making at
Balfour Beatty, allowing targeted and
effective management.

Managing risk helps preserve value through
control and mitigation of potential exposures.

1. Identify

Objective-based risk assessment remains a
core component of the identify step. Clearly
defining the risk event in relation to what the
Group is trying to achieve ensures risk
remains directly linked to project outcomes
and strategic business plans. Conducting a
detailed analysis of both the causes (drivers)

of the risk and the potential consequences
(outcomes) aids in understanding the
conditions surrounding the risk, which can be
mapped to the existing control environment to
identify any gaps. Documenting the current
control environment and its effectiveness
forms part of this.

2. Assess

Each risk and opportunity is assessed based
on the likelihood of the risk occurring and the
potential impact should the risk occur, allowing
risks and opportunities to be prioritised. This
assessment is based on the effectiveness of
the current control environment — controls that
are in place at the time of assessment. This
gives a clearer picture of the current risk
exposure in real time and can drive the
required response. A probability and impact
matrix is used for assessment and is
discussed further on page 93.

3. Respond

A response class is determined for each risk
and opportunity dependent on its current
assessment: accept or manage further.
Actions are developed for those risks requiring
further management, with clear ownership
and implementation timeframes in relation

to the current risk assessment.

4. Monitor

All risks undergo regular review to ensure the
information captured remains relevant,
accurate and up to date, including the status
tracking of outstanding actions. Conditions for
risks may change from time to time, with the
emergence of additional causes or impacts
resulting in a requirement to further manage a
previously ‘accepted’ risk. Further detail on
the policy, process and accountability for risk
management is contained on page 126 to 133.
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A robust and dynamic risk
management framework
ensures that risks are
mitigated and that the
Group adheres to both
regulatory requirements
and industry good practice
when identifying, assessing
and managing risk.
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Non- Non-
underlying underlying
Underlying items Underlying items
items’ (Note 10) Total items’ (Note 10) Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue including share of joint ventures
and associates 8,587 6 8,593 8,405 6 8,411
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates 19.2 (1,269) (4) (1,273) (1,093) (5) (1,098)
Group revenue 4 7,318 2 7,320 7,312 1 7,313
Cost of sales (7,079) (2) (7,081) (6,930) (1 (6,931)
Gross profit 239 - 239 382 - 382
Gain on disposals of interests in investments 34.2/34.3 - - - 40 - 40
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 - (6) (6) - (6) (6)
Other net operating expenses (226) 18 (208) (267) (56) (323)
Group operating profit/(loss) 13 12 25 155 (62) 93
Share of results of joint ventures and associates
excluding gain on disposals of interests in
investments 38 - 38 37 - 37
Gain on disposals of interests in investments 34.2/34.3 - - - 29 - 29
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 19.2 38 - 38 66 - 66
Profit/(loss) from operations 6 51 12 63 221 (62) 159
Investment income 8 38 - 38 34 - 34
Finance costs 9 (53) - (53) (55) - (55)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 36 12 48 200 (62) 138
Taxation 1 (11) (7) (18) (14) 9 (5)
Profit/(loss) for the year 25 3 30 186 (53) 133
Attributable to
Equity holders 25 5 30 183 (53) 130
Non-controlling interests - - - 3 - 3
Profit/(loss) for the year 25 30 186 (53) 133
1 Before non-underlying items (Notes 2.10 and 10).
2020 2019
Notes Pence Pence
Earnings per ordinary share
— basic 12 4.4 19.0
— diluted 12 4.4 18.8
Dividends per ordinary share proposed for the year 13 15 2.1
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4 Revenue

4.1 Nature of services provided

4.1.1 Construction Services

The Group's Construction Services segment encompasses activities in relation to the physical construction of assets provided to public and
private customers. Revenue generated in this segment is measured over time as control passes to the customer as the asset is constructed.
Progress is measured by reference to the cost incurred on the contract to date compared to the contract’s end of job forecast (the input method).
Payment terms are based on a schedule of value that is set out in the contract and fairly reflect the timing and performance of service delivery.
Contracts with customers are typically accounted for as one performance obligation (PO).
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Types of assets Typical contract length Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms

Buildings 12 to 36 months The Group constructs buildings which include commercial, healthcare, education, retail and
residential assets. As part of its construction services, the Group provides a range of services
including design and/or build, mechanical and electrical engineering, shell and core and/or fit-out
and interior refurbishment. The Group's customers in this area are a mix of private and public entities.

The contract length depends on the complexity and scale of the building and contracts entered
into for these services are typically fixed price.

In most instances, the contract with the customer is assessed to only contain one PO as the
services provided by the Group, including those where the Group is also providing design
services, are highly interrelated. However for certain types of contracts, services relating to
fit-out and interior refurbishment may sometimes be assessed as a separate PO.

Infrastructure 1 to 3 months for The Group provides construction services to three main types of infrastructure assets: highways,
small-scale infrastructure railways and other large-scale infrastructure assets such as waste, water and energy plants.
works Highways represent the Group's activities in constructing motorways in the UK, US and Hong
24 to 60 months for Kong. This includes activities such as design and construction of roads, widening of existing
large-scale complex motorways or converting existing motorways. The main customers are government bodies.

construction Railway construction services primarily in the UK, US and Hong Kong include design and managing

the construction of railway systems delivering major multi-disciplinary projects, track work,
electrification and power supply. The Group serves both public and private railways including
high-speed passenger railways, freight and mixed traffic routes, dense commuter networks,
metros and light rail.

Other infrastructure assets include construction, design and build services on large-scale
complex assets predominantly servicing the waste, water and energy sectors.

Contracts entered into relating to these infrastructure assets can take the form of fixed price,
cost-plus or target-cost contracts with shared pain/gain mechanisms. Contract lengths vary
according to the size and complexity of the asset build and can range from a few months for
small-scale infrastructure works to four to five years for large-scale complex construction works.

In most cases, the contract itself represents a single PO where only the design and construction
elements are contracted. In some instances, the contract with the customer will include maintenance
of the constructed asset. The Group assesses the maintenance element as a separate PO and
revenue from this PO is recognised in the Support Services segment. Refer to Note 4.1.2.

4.1.2 Support Services

The Group's work in this segment supports existing assets through maintaining, upgrading and managing services across utilities and
infrastructure assets. Revenue generated in this segment is measured over time as control passes to the customer as and when services are
provided. Progress is measured by reference to the cost incurred on the contract to date compared to the contract’s end of job forecast (the
input method). Payments are structured as milestone payments set out in the respective contracts.

Types of assets Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms

Utilities Within the Group's services contracts, the Group provides support services to various types of utility assets.

For contracts servicing utility assets, the Group provides services such as renewal, upgrade and expansion of underground
main pipelines for assets within the gas network. Within the water network, services include clean and waste water mains
renewal and repair, metering and treatment facilities. Contracts are typically delivered through framework agreements which
are normally granted on a regulatory cycle period of five years for water contracts and eight years for gas contracts. Individual
instructions delivered under the framework agreements can vary in size and duration but usually last between one to six
weeks for smaller projects or up to one to two years for major projects. Each instruction is accounted for as a separate PO.
Payments are normally set according to a schedule of rates or are cost reimbursable and may include a pain/gain element.

For contracts servicing power transmission and distribution assets, the Group constructs and maintains electricity networks,
including replacement or new build of overhead lines, underground cabling, cable tunnels and offshore windfarm maintenance.
Contracts entered into are normally fixed-price and contract lengths can vary from 12 to 36 months, and up to 20 years for
offshore windfarm maintenance contracts. Each contract is normally assessed to contain one PO. However, where a
contract contains both a construction phase and a maintenance phase, these are assessed to contain two separate POs.
Infrastructure The Group provides maintenance, asset and network management and design services in respect of highways, railways
and other publicly available assets. The customer in this area of the Group is mainly government bodies. Types of contract
include a fixed schedule of rates, fixed price, target cost arrangements and cost-plus.

Contract terms range from 1 to 25 years. Where contracts include a lifecycle element, this is accounted for as a separate
PO and recognised when the work is delivered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5 Segment analysis continued
5.2 Infrastructure Investments

Share of joint Share of joint
ventures and ventures and
associates associates
Group (Note 19.2)* Total Group (Note 19.2)* Total
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Underlying profit from operations’
uk® 2 (6) (4) 4 (4) -
North America 12 14 26 18 13 31
Gain on disposals of interests in investments - - - 40 29 69
14 8 22 62 38 100
Bidding costs and overheads (14) - (14) (18) - (18)
- 8 8 44 38 82
Net assets/(liabilities)
uKk® 458 264 722 417 278 695
North America 107 194 301 105 178 283
565 458 1,023 522 456 978
Non-recourse borrowings net of associated cash and cash
equivalents (Note 27) (317) - (317) (302) - (302)
Total Infrastructure Investments net assets 248 458 706 220 456 676
+ The Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates is disclosed net of investment income, finance costs and taxation.
A Including Ireland. 2019 results include Singapore and Ireland.
1 Before non-underlying items (Notes 2.10 and 10).
6 Profit/(loss) from operations
6.1 Profit/(loss) from operations is stated after charging/(crediting)
2020 2019
£m £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24 28
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 56 45
Depreciation of investment properties 2 1
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 17
Amortisation of contract fulfilment assets 9 5
Net charge/(credit) of trade receivables impairment provision 9 (1)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 8
Impairment of intangible assets 1 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7) (6)
Government grant income® (27) (3)
Cost of inventory recognised as an expense 98 93
Auditor’s remuneration 4 3
& Additionally, the Group recorded its share of the joint venture's income in the year of £17m relating to the employment support scheme in Hong Kong (2019: £nil).
6.2 Analysis of auditor’s remuneration
2020 2019
£m £m
Services as auditor to the Company 0.6 0.6
Services as auditor to Group subsidiaries 2.5 2.3
Total audit fees 31 2.9
Audit-related assurance fees 0.5 0.4
Other assurance fees - -
Total non-audit fees 0.5 0.4
Total fees in relation to audit and other services 3.6 3.3
7 Employee costs
7.1 Group
2020 2019
Employee costs during the year £m £m
Wages and salaries 1,181 1,150
Redundancy costs 10 9
Social security costs 94 92
Pension costs (Note 30) 57 55
Non-underlying GMP equalisation costs (Note 10.2.2) 3 -
Share-based payments (Note 35) 13 16
1,358 1,322
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7 Employee costs continued
7.1 Group continued

2020 2019
Average number of Group employees Number Number
Construction Services 12,795 12,080
Support Services 4,525 5,429
Infrastructure Investments 1,658 1,548
Corporate 135 140

19,113 19,197

Detailed disclosures of items of remuneration, including those accruing under the Company’s equity-settled share-based payment
arrangements can be found within the Remuneration report on pages 134 to 150.

7.2 Company
The Company did not have any employees and did not incur any employee costs in the year (2019: £nil). Balfour Beatty Group Employment Ltd,
which was established in February 2013, remains the employing entity for the Balfour Beatty Group’s UK employees.

8 Investment income

2020 2019
£m fm
Subordinated debt interest receivable 25 20
Interest receivable on PPP financial assets (Note 21) 8 9
Other interest receivable and similar income 2 3
Net finance income on pension scheme assets and obligations (Note 30.2) 3 2
38 34

9 Finance costs
2020 2019
£m £m
Non-recourse borrowings - bank loans and overdrafts 1" 13
Preference shares - finance cost 6 12
— accretion 2 4
US private placement - finance cost 10 12
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 28) 6 6
Other interest payable — committed facilities 2 2
— letter of credit fees 2 3
— other finance charges 3 3
Impairment of loans to joint ventures and associates 1 -
53 55

The impairment of loans to joint ventures and associates of £11m (2019: £nil) relates to expected credit loss assessments performed on the
Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates. £10m of this impairment relates to subordinated debt receivable from joint ventures and
associates held within the Infrastructure Investments segment. Refer to Note 19.1.

10 Non-underlying items

2020 2019
£m £m
Items credited to/(charged against) profit
10.1 Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (6) (6)
10.2 Other non-underlying items:
— grant income received in relation to UK Job Retention Scheme 19 -
— loss arising from the recognition of GMP equalisation on the Group's pension schemes (3) -
—release of provision held for blacklisting claims 2 -
— impairment of goodwill relating to Gas & Water = (58)
— provision release relating to settlements of health and safety claims - 2
Total other non-underlying items 18 (56)
Credited to/(charged against) profit before taxation 12 (62)
10.3 Tax (charge)/credit:
— non-underlying (derecognition)/recognition of deferred tax assets in the UK (6) 9
—tax on grant income received in relation to UK Job Retention Scheme (4) -
— tax on loss arising from the recognition of GMP equalisation on the Group’s pension schemes 1 -
— tax on other items above 2 -
Total tax (charge)/credit (7) 9
Credited to/(charged against) profit for the year 5 (53)

10.1 The amortisation of acquired intangible assets comprises: customer contracts £5m (2019: £56m); and customer relationships £1m (2019: £1m).
The charge was recognised in the following segments: Construction Services £1m (2019: £1m); and Infrastructure Investments £56m (2019: £5m).

10.2.1 During the year, the Group recognised grant income of £19m in respect of the UK Government’s Job Retention Scheme (JRS) (2019: £nil).
This was a one-off temporary scheme which the Group has decided to voluntarily refund after the balance sheet date. This income has been
presented within non-underlying items to avoid distorting the underlying performance of the Group. In line with this treatment, the Group will also
present its voluntary refund of the grant income within non-underlying items in its results in 2021. Refer to Note 39.

The credit was recognised in the following segments: Construction Services £13m; Support Services £56m and Corporate £1m.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED ‘

10 Non-underlying items continued

10.2.2 In 2020, the Group recognised additional retirement benefit liabilities of £3m in relation to Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)
equalisation following a further ruling which was published in November 2020. The judgement indicated that members who exercised their
statutory right to transfer their benefits will be able to have a top-up payment made from their former scheme to the scheme to which they
transferred their benefits. This follows the judgment on the Lloyds Banking Group High Court Hearing which was published on 26 October 2018,
following which the Group recognised £28m of additional retirement benefit obligations within non-underlying items.

The charge was recognised in the following segments: Construction Services £2m; and Support Services £1m.
10.2.3 In 2020, the Group recognised a provision release of £2m relating to the resolution of disputes associated with blacklisting claims.
The credit of £2m was recognised in the Construction Services segment.

10.2.4 In 2019, following the Group's decision not to re-bid gas contracts under the RIIO-GD2 cycle, coupled with the Group's experience in
managing historically underperforming contracts within this cash-generating unit (CGU), the Group reassessed the long-term outlook for its
Gas & Water CGU. The assessment resulted in a full impairment of the goodwill attributable to this CGU, amounting to an impairment charge
of £68m in 2019.

This charge was treated as a non-underlying item and was recognised in the Support Services segment.

10.2.5 In 2019, the Group recognised a provision release of £2m relating to the settlement of health and safety claims. These claims were
previously included as part of the Group's overall reassessment of potential liabilities relating to historical health and safety breaches following
new sentencing guidelines which was conducted in 2016. As a result of this reassessment, a non-underlying charge of £25m was recognised
in the first half of 2016.

The credit of £2m was recognised in the Construction Services segment.

10.3.1 In previous periods, significant actuarial gains in the Group’s main pension scheme, Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (BBPF), led to the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities. This in turn led to the recognition of additional UK deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses which the
Group recognised as non-underlying due to the size and nature of the credit. In 2020, actuarial losses in the BBPF resulted in the derecognition
of UK deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses. Applying the same methodology used in previous periods, the Group recognised the associated
£9m tax charge as a non-underlying item along with a £1m tax charge arising from certain of the actuarial losses in the Railways Pension
Scheme. These charges have been partially offset by a deferred tax credit of £4m to restate previous deferred tax assets recognised through
non-underlying items due to a tax rate change enacted in the UK during 2020. In 2019, actuarial gains in the BBPF resulted in a £9m tax credit
in non-underlying items resulting from the recognition of UK deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses.

The £9m tax charge in non-underlying items in 2020 arising from the BBPF actuarial losses has increased by £25m as a result of the
adjustment to actuarial losses arising from the changes to the mortality assumptions disclosed in Note 30.2.

10.3.2 As explained in Note 10.2.1, non-underlying income of £19m was recognised in 2020 in relation to grant income received under the UK
Government's JRS. This income gave rise to a tax charge of £4m (2019: £nil).

10.3.3 As explained in Note 10.2.2, a non-underlying charge of £3m was recognised in 2020 to take into account the effect of GMP
equalisation. This charge gave rise to a deferred tax credit of £1m (2019: £nil).

10.3.4 The remaining non-underlying items charged against the Group’s operating profit gave rise to a tax credit of £2m (mainly on amortisation
of acquired intangible assets) (2019: £nil after prior year adjustments).

11 Income taxes
11.1 Income tax charge/(credit)

Non-underlying

Underlying items
items’ (Note 10) Total Total
2020 2020 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Total UK tax 9 9 18 (20)
Total non-UK tax 2 (2) - 25
Total tax charge* 1 7 18 5
UK current tax
— current tax (4) 4 - -
— adjustments in respect of previous periods (1) = (1) -
(5) 4 (1) -
Non-UK current tax
— current tax 3 - 3 6
— adjustments in respect of previous periods (2) - (2) (3)
1 - 1 3
Total current tax (4) 4 - 3
UK deferred tax
— origination and reversal of temporary differences 22 9 31 (25)
- UK corporation tax rate change (10) (4) (14) 4
— adjustments in respect of previous periods 2 - 2 1
14 5 19 (20)
Non-UK deferred tax
— origination and reversal of temporary differences 4 (1) 3 24
— adjustments in respect of previous periods (3) (1) (4) (2)
1 (2) (1) 22
Total deferred tax 15 3 18 2
Total tax charge* 1 7 18 5

x Excluding joint ventures and associates.
1 Before non-underlying items (Notes 2.10 and 10).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED ‘

15 Intangible assets — other

Infrastructure

Customer Customer Brand Investments Software
contracts relationships names intangibles and other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2019 231 48 3 146 132 560
Currency translation differences (8) 2 - (1) 1 (6)
Additions - - - 58 4 62
Removal of fully amortised intangible asset - - - - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2019 223 50 3 203 132 611
Currency translation differences (7) (2) - - - (9)
Additions - - - 32 1 33
Removal of fully amortised intangible asset - - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2020 216 48 3 235 132 634
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2019 (159) (37) (3) (1) (102) (302)
Currency translation differences 6 (2) - - (1) 3
Charge for the year (5) (M - (M (10) (17)
Removal of fully amortised intangible asset - - - - 5 5
At 31 December 2019 (158) (40) (3) (2) (108) (311)
Currency translation differences 5 1 - - - 6
Charge for the year (5) (1 - (2) (9) (17)
Impairment charge - - - - (1) (1)
Removal of fully amortised intangible asset - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2020 (158) (40) (3) (4) (117) (322)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 58 8 - 231 15 312
At 31 December 2019 65 10 - 201 24 300

The Group recognises certain assets held as part of service concession arrangements as Infrastructure Investments intangible assets where
the Group bears demand risk under IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements. In 2020, the Group continued construction on its IFRIC 12
assets, at the University of Sussex, incurring a spend of £32m (2019: £568m) in the year (including interest capitalised of £3m (2019: £4m)).
The Infrastructure Investments intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the projects, which is 50 years.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, which are one to four years for customer contracts,
three to 10 years for customer relationships, three to seven years for software, and up to five years for brand names, except for customer
contracts and relationships relating to Balfour Beatty Investments North America which are amortised on a basis matching the returns earned
over the life of the underlying contracts and relationships of up to 50 years.

Other intangible assets are amortised over periods up to 10 years.
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16 Property, plant and equipment §
Infrastructure Assets in g
Lapd.and Plgnt and ) leasehold the course of :
buildings equipment  improvements construction Total o
£m £m £m £m £m o
Cost or valuation g
At 1 January 2019 73 281 66 2 422 =
Currency translation differences (1) (3) - - (4)
Transfers 3 (3) - - -
Additions 6 14 - - 20
Removal of fully depreciated assets/assets scrapped (6) (5) - - (11)
Disposals (2) (21) - - (23)
Disposal of interest in Reno (Note 34.3.10) - - (17) - (17)
Disposal of interest in BBCS-Hawkeye Housing LLC (lowa)
(Notes 34.3.6 and 34.3.12) - - (49) - (49)
At 31 December 2019 73 263 - 2 338
Currency translation differences (1) (3) - - (4)
Transfers 1 (1) = = =
Additions 3 26 - 4 33
Removal of fully depreciated assets/assets scrapped (1) (6) - - (7)
Disposals (10) (18) - - (28)
At 31 December 2020 65 261 - 6 332
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 (43) (204) (7) - (254)
Currency translation differences 1 2 - - 3
Transfers (3) 3 - - -
Charge for the year (7) (21) - - (28)
Impairment charge - (8) - - (8)
Removal of fully depreciated assets/assets scrapped 6 5 - - 1"
Disposals 2 20 - - 22
Disposal of interest in Reno (Note 34.3.10) - - 2 - 2
Disposal of interest in BBCS-Hawkeye Housing LLC (lowa)
(Notes 34.3.6 and 34.3.12) - - 5 - 5
At 31 December 2019 (44) (203) - - (247)
Currency translation differences 1 2 - - 3
Charge for the year (8) (16) - - (24)
Removal of fully depreciated assets/assets scrapped 1 6 - - 7
Disposals 5 17 - - 22
At 31 December 2020 (45) (194) - - (239)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 20 67 - 6 93
At 31 December 2019 29 60 - 2 91

Infrastructure leasehold improvements comprised student accommodation projects in lowa and Reno, for which all buildings were held under
short leaseholds and were depreciated over 40 years. On 27 September 2019 and 16 December 2019 respectively, the Group disposed of its
interests in the lowa and Reno projects. Refer to Notes 34.3.6 and 34.3.10.

Except for land and assets in the course of construction, the costs of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives. Buildings are depreciated at 2.5% per annum and plant and equipment is depreciated at 4% to 33% per annum.
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19 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued
19.2 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates

Infrastructure Investments

Construction Support North
Services Services UK* America Total Total
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue’ 998 30 103 138 241 1,269
Operating profit/(loss)’ 29 1 (6) 18 12 42
Investment income 3 - 80 15 95 98
Finance costs (1) - (80) (19) (99) (100)
Profit/(loss) before taxation’ 31 1 (6) 14 8 40
Taxation (2) = = = - (2)
Profit/(loss) after taxation 29 1 (6) 14 8 38
Balance sheet
Non-current assets
Intangible assets — goodwill 29 - - - - 29
— Infrastructure Investments intangible - - 42 - 42 42
— other - - 14 - 14 14
Property, plant and equipment 30 - 17 - 17 47
Investment properties - - - 210 210 210
Investments in joint ventures and associates 2 - - - - 2
Money market funds - - - 94 94 94
PPP financial assets - - 1,359 204 1,563 1,563
Military housing projects - - - 104 104 104
Other non-current assets 76 - 16 3 19 95
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 334 - 152 24 176 510
Other current assets 221 - 69 36 105 326
Total assets 692 - 1,669 675 2,344 3,036
Current liabilities
Borrowings — non-recourse (60) - (43) - (43) (103)
Other current liabilities (464) - (130) (18) (148) (612)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — non-recourse - - (1,122) (456) (1,578) (1,578)
Other non-current liabilities (72) - (268) (7) (275) (347)
Total liabilities (596) - (1,563) (481) (2,044) (2,640)
Net assets 96 - 106 194 300 396
Loans to joint ventures and associates - - 158 - 158 158
Total investment in joint ventures and associates 96 - 264 194 458 554

A Including Ireland.

1 Before non-underlying items (Note 2.10).

The Group's investment in military housing joint ventures’ and associates’ projects is recognised at its remaining equity investment plus the
value of the Group’s accrued returns from the underlying projects. The military housing joint ventures and associates have total non-recourse
net borrowings of £2,178m (2019: £2,272m). Note 41(e) details the Group's military housing projects.

On certain Infrastructure Investments concessions where net fair value revaluations of PPP financial assets and cash flow hedges resulted in
the Group’s carrying value of these investments being negative, the Group has not recognised losses beyond the carrying value of its
investments. This is because the Group has not committed to provide any further funding to these investments and the borrowings within
these concessions are non-recourse to the Group. At 31 December 2020, the unrecognised cumulative net fair value charges to other
comprehensive income amounted to £9m (2019: £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED ‘

34 Acquisitions and disposals
34.1 Current and prior year acquisitions
There were no material acquisitions in 2020.

Deferred consideration paid during 2020 in respect of acquisitions completed in earlier years was £3m (2019: £3m). This related to the Group's
acquisition of Centex Construction in 2007.

34.2 Current year disposals
There were no disposals made in 2020.

The Group received £1m of deferred consideration in relation to the disposal of its Middle Eastern joint ventures in 2017. This deferred
consideration was included in the Group's assessment of the gain on disposal recognised in 2017.

The Group also received £1m of deferred consideration in relation to the disposal of its entire 50% interest in Consort Healthcare (Fife) Holdings
Ltd which took place in 2018. This deferred consideration was received as part of the earn-out agreement that was entered into with the buyer
as part of the disposal and was included in the Group’s assessment of the additional gain on disposal recognised in 2019.

34.3 Prior year disposals
In 2019, the Group disposed of several Infrastructure Investments assets as detailed below. These disposals were either structured as a sale of
the infrastructure investment asset itself or through the sale of the Group’s equity interest in the entity which owns the asset.

The gain recognised from the disposal of assets that were held within joint venture entities of the Group is recognised within the Group's share
of results of joint ventures and associates.

Amount
recycled
Percentage Cash Net assets from Underlying
disposed  consideration disposed reserves gain
Notes Disposal date Entity/asset Structure of sale % £m £m £m £m
34.3.1 2 January 2019 Ranch at Pinnacle Point* Asset sale n/a 8 (5) 1 4
34.3.2 1 February 2019 Borden Data Centre” Asset sale n/a 6 (3) - 3
34.3.3 13 February to 28 Dallas 5 Portfolio” Asset sale n/a 1" (4) 1 8
March 2019
34.3.4 28 March 2019 Mobile Alabama portfolio”® Asset sale n/a 5 (2) - 3
34.3.5 18 September 2019 THP Partnership (North Island ~ Equity interest sale 50 17 (11) 1 7
Hospitals)*
34.3.6 27 September 2019 BBCS-Hawkeye Housing LLC Equity interest sale 100 60 (44) - 16
(lowa)®
34.3.7 30 September 2019 Gammon Capital (West) Equity interest sale 50 25 (17)~ 1 9
Holdings Pte. Ltd"
34.3.8 10 October 2019 Evergreen portfolio”® Asset sale n/a 8 (2) - 6
34.3.9 5 December 2019 Townlake of Coppell* Equity interest sale 10 5 (2) - 3
34.3.10 16 December 2019  Reno student accommodation* Asset sale - 22 (15) - 7
34.3.11 Other n/a 3 - - 3
170~ (105) 4 69
Less: Repayment of debt following disposal of lowa and Reno assets (60)
Less: Cash proceeds not included in the Directors’ valuation® (7)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed relating to lowa (1)
Disposal proceeds per the Directors’ valuation 102

+ Disposal of asset within a subsidiary entity.

A Disposal of asset within a joint venture entity. The disposal of Gammon ITE West was structured as a disposal of equity interests in Gammon Capital (West) Holdings Pte Ltd within a
joint venture entity.

# Disposal of joint venture.
& Disposal of subsidiary.

0 Proceeds from the sale within joint venture entities were included within Dividends received from joint ventures and associates — infrastructure investments and within Return of equity from
joint ventures and associates in the statement of cash flows. The proceeds shown above include a non-controlling interest element of £4m relating to the disposal of the Group’s Dallas 5
Portfolio asset.

~ Net assets disposed include £8m of subordinated debt receivable which was settled as part of the disposal.

@ Sales proceeds per the Directors’ valuation do not include the £2m additional sales proceeds received in relation to the Group's disposal of its 50% interest in Consort Healthcare (Fife)
Holdings Ltd, the £1m deferred consideration received in relation to the Group's disposal of its Middle Eastern joint ventures and the £4m element of consideration attributable to a
non-controlling interest relating to the disposal of the Group’s Dallas 5 Portfolio asset.
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34 Acquisitions and disposals continued

34.3 Prior year disposals continued

34.3.1 On 2 January 2019, the Group disposed of its Ranch at Pinnacle Point asset, a 392-unit residential property located in Rogers, Arkansas,
for a cash consideration of £8m. The asset disposal resulted in a gain of £4m being recognised in underlying operating profit, including a gain of
£1m in respect of foreign currency translation reserves recycled to the income statement on disposal.

34.3.2 On 1 February 2019, the Group disposed of its Borden data centre asset located in Ontario, Canada for a total consideration of £6m.
The asset disposal resulted in a gain of £3m being recognised in the Group’s share of joint ventures and associates.

34.3.3 On 13 February 2019, 15 March 2019, 22 March 2019 and 28 March 2019, the Group disposed of its Dallas 5 Portfolio asset, a 1,593-unit
residential portfolio located throughout Dallas, Texas, for a total consideration of £11m. These asset disposals resulted in a gain of £8m being
recognised in the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, including a gain of £1m in respect of foreign currency translation reserves
recycled to the income statement on disposal. Part of the consideration and gain recognised by the Group is attributable to a non-controlling
interest, amounting to £4m cash consideration and £2m gain respectively.
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34.3.4 On 28 March 2019, the Group disposed of its Mobile Alabama portfolio, a 320-unit residential property portfolio located in Mobile,
Alabama, for a total cash consideration of £6m. The asset disposal resulted in a gain of £3m being recognised in the Group's share of joint
ventures and associates.

34.3.5 On 18 September 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 50% interest in North Island Hospitals, the concession for two Acute Care Centres
on Vancouver Island, British Columbia. The infrastructure concession was disposed for a cash consideration of £17m and resulted in a gain
being recognised in underlying operating profit of £7m, including a gain of £1m in respect of foreign currency translation reserves recycled to
the income statement on disposal.

34.3.6 On 27 September 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 100% interest in BBCS-Hawkeye Housing LLC (lowa) for cash consideration of
£60m. This disposal resulted in a gain of £16m being recognised in underlying operating profit. The disposal included cash disposed of £1m.

34.3.7 On 30 September 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 50% interest in Gammon Capital (West) Holdings Pte. Ltd for cash consideration
of £25m. This disposal resulted in a gain of £9m being recognised in the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, including gains of £1m
and £8m in respect of foreign currency translation and PPP financial asset reserves respectively, and a loss of £8m in respect of hedging
reserves, recycled to the income statement on disposal.

34.3.8 On 10 October 2019, the Group disposed of its Evergreen portfolio, a 882-unit residential property portfolio located in Atlanta, Georgia
for cash consideration of £8m. The asset disposal resulted in a gain of £6m being recognised in the Group's share of joint ventures and associates.

34.3.9 On 5 December 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 10% interest in Coppell Properties, LLC (Townlake of Coppell) for a cash consideration
of £6m. This disposal resulted in a gain of £3m being recognised in underlying operating profit.

34.3.10 On 16 December 2019, the Group disposed of its Reno student accommodation asset for cash consideration of £22m. This disposal
resulted in a gain of £7m being recognised in underlying operating profit.

34.3.11 In 2019, the Group received an additional £2m of proceeds, with a further £1m being deferred into future periods, relating to its disposal
of its entire 50% interest in Consort Healthcare (Fife) Holdings Ltd which took place in 2018. The additional proceeds relate to the earn-out
agreement that was entered into with the buyer as part of the disposal. At the time of the disposal, the Group did not include an estimate of
the potential earn-out within its assessment of the gain on disposal as there was significant uncertainty as to whether the earn-out hurdles
would be met. This additional gain of £3m was recognised as an underlying gain consistent with the Group's treatment of the gain on disposal
previously recognised.

The Group also received £1m of deferred consideration in relation to the disposal of its Middle Eastern joint ventures in 2017. This deferred
consideration was included in the Group's assessment of the gain on disposal recognised in 2017.

34.3.12 Subsidiaries net assets disposed
BBCS-Hawkeye

Housing LLC

(lowa)

Net assets disposed Note £m
Property, plant and equipment 16 44

Trade and other payables (1)
Cash 1
44

Cash consideration (60)

Gain on disposal (16)

Net cash flow effect

Total consideration 60

Cash and cash equivalents disposed (1)
Net cash consideration 59
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